
 

 

 

Helen Barrington 
Director of Legal and Democratic 
Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 
alec.dubberley@derbyshire.gov.uk 
Direct Dial 01629 539035 
Ask for Alec Dubberley, Head of 
Democratic and Registration 
Services 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Council 
 
 
 

Tuesday, 17 May 2022 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend the Annual Meeting of the Council 
to be held at 2.00 pm on Wednesday, 25 May 2022 in the Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Matlock, the agenda for which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Helen Barrington 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 
  
 
A G E N D A 
 
1.   Appointment of the Chairman of the County Council for 2022-23  

 
2.   Apologies for absence  

 
3.   Declarations of interest  

 
4.   Chairman's announcements  

 
5.   To confirm, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 23 

March 2022 (Pages 1 - 30) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
6.   Appointment of the Civic Chairman of Derbyshire County Council for 2022-

23  
 

7.   Appointment of the Vice Civic Chairman of Derbyshire County Council for 
2022-23  
 

8.   Report of the Leader of the Council and Members' questions  
 

9.   Public questions  
 

10.   Petitions  
 

11.   Elected Member questions  
 

12.   Committee Memberships, Schedule of meetings and Outside Body 
Appointments for 2022/23 (Pages 31 - 48) 
 

13.   Notification of Portfolio Holders and Membership of the Cabinet (Pages 49 - 
58) 
 

14.   Appointment of the Executive Director for Corporate Services and 
Transformation and Recruitment of the Director of Public Health (Pages 59 
- 64) 
 

15.   Council Performance Monitoring and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 
2021-22 as at Quarter 3 (31 December 2021) (Pages 65 - 188) 
 

16.   Decisions taken as a matter of Urgency and Key Decisions and Special 
Urgency (Pages 189 - 196) 
 

17.   Notices of Motion (Pages 197 - 202) 
 

 



 

 

PUBLIC 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of COUNCIL held on Wednesday, 23 March 2022 in the 
Members' Room, County Hall, Matlock. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor T Ainsworth (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors D Allen, R Ashton, K S Athwal, N Atkin, J Barron, B Bingham, S Burfoot, 
A Clarke, C Cupit, A Dale, C Dale, R Flatley, E Fordham, A Foster, M Foster, 
A Gibson, K Gillott, N Gourlay, D Greenhalgh, A Griffiths, L Grooby, A Hayes, N Hoy, 
R Iliffe, T Kemp, B Lewis, W Major, R Mihaly, P Moss, D Muller, D Murphy, 
G Musson, J Nelson, P Niblock, R Parkinson, J Patten, L Ramsey, R Redfern, 
C Renwick, J Siddle, P Smith, S Spencer, A Sutton, S Swann, D Taylor, J Wharmby, 
D Wilson and J Woolley. 
 
Officers present: Emma Alexander (Managing Director), Helen Barrington (Director - 
Legal and Democratic Services), Alec Dubberley (Head of Democratic and 
Registration Services), Peter Handford (Interim Executive Director - Corporate 
Services and Transformation), Helen Jones (Executive Director - Adult Care), Paul 
Stone (Interim Director of Finance), Emma Crapper (Director - Organisation, 
Development & Policy) and Iain Peel (Director - Schools and Learning). 

 

11/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were submitted for Councillor S Bull, D Collins, J 
Dixon, M Ford, R George, C Hart, G Hickton, S Hobson, J Innes, T King, 
G Kinsella, P Rose, A Stevenson, B Woods and M Yates. 
 

12/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 None received. 
 

13/22 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 The Chairman spoke about the conflict in Ukraine and how the people of 
Derbyshire stood by and supported Ukrainian citizens. 
 
17 March saw the Social Care Day of Remembrance and Reflection 
where the country came together to give thanks to our valued social care 
workers. The day also provided an opportunity to remember the estimated 
922 social care workers who died during the covid-19 pandemic in 
England. 
  
The Chairman offered his condolences to Councillor Stevenson whose 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 

son, David, had recently passed away. This was very unexpected for his 
family and friends.  David always had a smile on his face and his funeral 
took place this morning. 
 
Members paused for a minute of silence to reflect on those who are no 
longer with us and those who are left behind. 
 

14/22 MINUTES 
 

 On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
      
RESOLVED: 
 
To confirm, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of Council 
held on 2 February 2022 subject to: 

 Adding Councillor Hickton to the list of Councillors present 

 Clarifying that Councillor A Dale had submitted apologies 

 Removing Councillor Allen from the list of Councillors in favour of 
the motion at item 9e. 

 
15/22 REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL AND MEMBERS' 

QUESTIONS 
 

 The Leader of the Council spoke about the conflict in Ukraine and how 
tragic the situation is for the people of the Country. He said that 
colleagues from Community Safety and Adult Social Care were ready to 
help with the refugee response locally when required and guidance on 
grant funding available for refugees had been published but further details 
were awaited. He added that in solidarity with the people of Ukraine, 
County Hall had been lit blue and yellow every evening since the start of 
the crisis and there is much more the council would like to do to support 
Ukraine. 
 
The Leader next spoke about recent difficulties on the A57 where a 
number of landslips had been reported. Across the county’s roads around 
25 landslips and sink holes were being monitored with 8 resulting in 
closure of roads. These issues were particularly challenging for 
geographic areas such as Derbyshire, Lancashire and Herefordshire and 
something nationally needed to be done to recognise this. 
 
Recent flooding had hit the county and as a result, the Flood Hardship 
Scheme was again put into action.  38 grants of £500 had been paid to 
businesses, and 41 to individuals of £104. The initial allocation of £20,000 
had therefore been exceeded and the general reserve would be used to 
make up the shortfall. The Council had been forthright in pressuring 
government for the promised resources to combat flooding and this would 

Page 2



 

 

continue. 
 
The Leader thanked members who attended the recent county deals 
briefing and further such briefings including district and borough council 
would be arranged in due course. Discussions on the deal would 
continue. 
 
The Queen’s Platinum Jubilee year was in full swing, and the Leader 
attended the Chairman’s afternoon tea at the weekend. A programme of 
commemorative events was planned for the County and the website had 
further details. As part of the Queen’s Green Canopy a number of trees 
were being planted at county council sites and this would continue during 
the autumn planting season. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Wharmby, the Leader said that 
he was happy to support the donation of £20,000 from the Chairman’s 
fund made to the Disasters Emergency Committee to provide funding for 
a range of support including providing refugees and displaced people with 
food, water, blankets, hygiene items and medical help.  
 
In response to a further question from Councillor Gillott, the Leader 
advised that he would be happy to facilitate providing some written 
information to Members so that they could signpost residents towards 
charities and organisations that were offering help to the people of 
Ukraine. 
 

16/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 a) Question from Michael Pomerantz, to Councillor D Wilson, Chair 
of Pensions and Investments Committee (attending) 

 
“What evidence does the Council have that engagement works better 
than divestment in terms of influencing a fossil fuel company's 
actions?" 
 
Councillor Wilson responded as follows: 
 
“Fossil fuels are expected to remain an important part of the energy 
mix for many years to come and the producers of fossil fuel products 
are also major developers of renewable energy solutions.  
Engagements, particularly collaboratively, and coordinating 
engagements with other like-minded investors by our organisations 
such as the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum enables us to 
influence companies as they adapt their business models for the 
transition to a low carbon economy. 

 

Page 3



 

 

Investor engagement has encouraged investee companies to improve 
the quality of their climate related disclosures and to commit to targets 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions.  The major oil and gas 
companies from the UK, the Netherlands, France, Italy, Spain and 
Norway have all now committed to achieving net zero greenhouse gas 
emissions by 2050.  Ongoing engagement is encouraging companies 
to clearly explain their climate aligned strategies with transparent plans 
for how their assets and business strategies will adapt to achieve net 
zero emissions and with creative transition timetables. 

 
 As a responsible long-term investor Derbyshire Pension Fund is well 

placed to provide support to companies right across the economy 
during the energy transition influencing corporate behaviour through 
engagement to achieve real world reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions instead of walking away from a table.” 

 
 There was no supplementary question. 
 
b) Question from Wendy Bullar, Divest Derbyshire to Councillor D 

Wilson, Chair of Pensions and Investments Committee (not 
attending) 

 
“On behalf of the Divest Derbyshire campaign we applaud the rapid 
action of the Derbyshire Pension Fund in divesting from Russian 
investments. The recent situation in Ukraine shows how unstable 
fossil fuel investments are and the need to reduce our reliance on oil 
and gas from autocratic regimes. As one energy analyst has shown if 
the 649 wind and solar projects already cleared for development in the 
UK were actually built they would, collectively, more than offset the 
gas that is currently imported from Russia. 
 
Given the huge opportunities in investment in renewables coupled 
with the need to reduce our reliance on fossil fuels, what is stopping 
our Pension Fund from equally urgent action in divesting from fossil 
fuels and investing in renewables instead? The development of 
Renewables across Derbyshire would offer excellent job and business 
opportunities for the people of this county.” 
 
Councillor Wilson responded as follows: 
 
“Derbyshire Pension Fund is continuing to liaise closely with its 
underlying managers regarding the unwinding of its exposure to 
investments in Russia following the Russian invasion of Ukraine and 
the subsequent imposition of sanctions against Russia.  

 
 Russian companies, which are subject to the influence of the Russian 

Page 4



 

 

state, are no longer expected to meet investor expectations for 
environmental, social and governance standards and the likelihood of 
effective engagement between investors and Russian companies has 
deteriorated significantly. 

 
 Investors are, however, able to engage effectively with the fossil fuel 

companies to encourage and support the transition to net zero 
greenhouse gas emissions and to support the development of 
renewable energy solutions.  

 
 The Pension Fund has made commitments of over £275m to 

renewable energy funds over the last few years, representing around 
4.5% of the Fund’s total investment portfolio. The assets in these 
funds will include investments in: onshore wind; offshore wind; solar; 
hydro and battery storage.  

 
 Due to the weight of money that investors are currently trying to invest 

in this asset class, investors are now required to accept more risk in 
order to access their required level of return, for example, by 
accepting construction risk rather than investing in assets that are 
already built. The Pension Fund will continue to assess opportunities 
in renewable assets, balancing potential risks and returns and the 
geographical mix of assets for any further incremental renewable 
investments in the context of a diversified investment portfolio.” 
 
As the questioner was not present, there was no supplementary 
question. 
 

c) Question from Dr Stephen Martin to Councillor D Wilson, Chair of 
Pensions and Investments Committee  

 
“The climate and Covid crisis is taking a growing toll on the mental 
health of children and young people. Increasing levels of “eco-anxiety” 
– the chronic fear of environmental doom –are likely to be damaging 
to many in the long term. A 2020 survey of child psychiatrists in 
England showing that more than half (57%) are seeing children and 
young people distressed about the climate crisis and the state of the 
environment. The best chance of increasing optimism and hope in the 
eco-anxious young and old is to ensure that we do everything possible 
to mitigate the climate emergency. If the Derbyshire Pension Fund 
does not divest from fossil fuels, and the continued funding of fossil 
fuel extraction continues, what is the future for our next generation-
especially your children and grandchildren?” 
 
Councillor Wilson responded as follows: 
 

Page 5



 

 

“I am sure we all share Dr Martin’s concern regarding anxieties 
expressed by children and young people about the climate and about 
the environment.  

 
 The risks associated with climate change are wide-ranging and 

climate change is an issue for all sectors of the economy. It is 
essential that all participants in the economy, both on the supply side 
of energy and the demand side of energy, adapt their business 
models for the transition to a low carbon economy.  

 
 Divestment of the producers of fossil fuel products would have no 

impact on real world carbon emissions and would remove Derbyshire 
Pension Fund’s ability to influence fossil fuel companies during the 
energy transition via collaborative engagements with other investors. 

 
 In addition to engaging with the fossil fuel companies on their climate-

aligned strategies, and their plans for achieving net zero greenhouse 
gas emissions, investors are increasing engaging with the users of 
energy, including the industrial, transportation and building 
companies, and with the banks who finance energy projects. 

 

 This recognises that for investors to be able to continue to deliver 
diversified investment portfolios and for the goal of a net zero 
economy to be reached, reductions in greenhouse gas emissions will 
need to be achieved across all sectors. 

 
 As a responsible long-term investor, Derbyshire Pension Fund is well 

placed to provide support to companies right across the economy 
during the energy transition, influencing corporate behaviour through 
engagement to achieve the desired goals.” 

 
As the questioner was not present, there was no supplementary 
question. 

 
17/22 PETITIONS 

 
 None received. 

 
18/22 ELECTED MEMBER QUESTIONS 

 
 a)  Question from Councillor G Kinsella to Councillor C Renwick, 

Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and Environment 
 
“The Derbyshire Cycling Plan 2016-30 states its aim is to double the 
number of people cycling regularly by 2030. What progress has been 
made on this and what spend has been allocated in the 2022/23 budget 

Page 6



 

 

for cycling per head to help deliver this aim?” 
 
Response from Councillor Renwick: 
 
“The Derbyshire Cycling Plan 2016 was developed and signed up to by a 
range of stakeholders, including Derbyshire County Council, the Derby 
City Councils, the Peak District National Park Authority, all local District 
and Borough Councils, the National Forest, the University of Derby, 
Sustrans and British Cycling.  The Plan is actually currently being 
refreshed following the pandemic and this work is now being led by Active 
Derbyshire. 
 
In terms of progress, data taken for 2016/17 showed 88,700 over-16s 
cycling regularly and by 2020/21 this had increased to 120,000 (although I 
would caution that this takes into account the increased levels during the 
pandemic).  It is the Active Lives’ data set that will now be used to monitor 
this going forward and new targets will be assessed and agreed as part of 
the refresh. 
 
For information this County Council has also introduced three new cycling 
targets as part of our Key Performance Indicators to help inform progress.  
These are firstly: 
 

1 The number of kilometres of the Key Cycle and Local Cycle 
Networks that will increase annually. 

 
2 The number of schemes planned in terms of preparation and 

design for the next financial year. 
 

3 The number of people walking, cycling, horse riding on certain 
sections of three specific popular routes which includes the 
White Peak Loop, the Clowne Greenway and the Pennine 
Bridleway National Trail.   

 
The first set of data for all these new targets will be reported at the end of 
the current financial year which will be available via Apex in April 2022.   
 
In terms of the spend allocated for cycling I can confirm that approximately 
£2.2m has been approved through the Highways Capital Programme and 
the Challenge Fund.  That goes towards drainage and resurfacing on both 
the existing KCN/LCN routes but also the development, design and 
feasibility of work on future routes and also some signage on the Key 
Cycle Network.  A further £207,000 has been invested for the Pennine 
Bridleway and we also now employ a full-time dedicated officer. 
 
In addition, the Council was also successful in its £1.6m application to the 

Page 7



 

 

Department for Transport’s Active Travel Fund, Tranche 2.  That was for 
the Chesterfield East-West Cycle Route.  Added to that we have actually 
got a further application for £3.4m for Tranche 3 funding has also been 
submitted and if we are successful that would be used to develop the 
sections of the White Peak Loop and the Little Eaton Branch Line.  The 
Council expects to hear the outcome of this application later this year.  So 
we have many examples of popular and well cycled routes across 
Derbyshire.  If you look at the significant investment £3.4m already, and if 
we do receive the funding for Tranche 3 it would take it to 7.3.  All this will 
help improve, invest and deliver more Key Cycle Networks and linkages.  
I look forward to being able to announce these going forward and the 
refreshed Cycle Plan in due course.   
 
There was no supplementary question as Councillor Kinsella was not 
present. 
 
b) Question from Councillor S Burfoot to Councillor K Athwal, 
Cabinet Member for Highways, Assets & Transport 
 
“It is becoming increasingly common for roads and public open spaces on 
new housing developments not to be adopted by the Local Authority, 
resulting in new homeowners being legally responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of roads, footways, street lighting etc on all new 
developments.  Such repairs and maintenance on these unadopted  
estates are paid for by residents by way of management charges. 
 
Decisions by many developers not to enter into an agreement with the 
Local Authority can, and has resulted nationally and locally in problems 
including lower specification street lighting or no street lighting at all, lower 
specification road construction etc and of course ongoing and often 
increasing management charges without a reduction in Council Tax to 
homeowners. 
 
Does Councillor Athwal agree that this is an ongoing and often 
problematic situation which for many householders can be an intolerable 
burden? Would he commit to lobbying the government to change the law 
to make it mandatory for all developers to build their roads and other 
highway infrastructure to adoptable standards so that LA’s take over their 
maintenance, thus alleviating the current problems?” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“A large number of new roads within Derbyshire ultimately become 
adopted roads and therefore are publicly maintainable by the County 
Council.  Some new roads in Derbyshire are not adopted.  Exceptions are 
normally for minor developments of ten dwellings or less or a stage where 

Page 8



 

 

the developer does not wish their road should receive adoption into the 
highway to be maintained at public expense. 
 
There is currently no legal obligation for a developer to enter into a 
Section 38 agreement under the Highways Act and therefore the County 
Council cannot force a developer to enter into an agreement.  Where a 
developer chooses not to enter into this agreement, or where the process 
of adoption is slow, we do understand that this can lead to ongoing 
challenges for residents over many years.  It can sometimes be difficult to 
hold the owner of the estates to account.  In these circumstances we have 
every sympathy with the affected residents. 
 
We are already working closely with the Government to address a range 
of issues which impact on our ability to deliver our duties as the Highways 
Authority from lack of funding to lack of control of the planning process.  
As part of this we will absolutely seek to put this issue on the 
Government’s agenda and seek their assurance that it will be addressed 
as soon as possible.”   
 
There was no supplementary question. 
 
c) Question from Councillor E Fordham to Councillor K Athwal, 
Cabinet Member for Highways, Assets & Transport 
 
“The recent storms Dudley and Eunice led to considerable pressure on 
infrastructure and highlighted again concerns over flooding and drainage. 
What measures has the Council taken in the light of these two storms to 
step up with regards to gutter and gully clearing and will the Portfolio 
Holder share the details with members of the adjusted plans in order to 
tackle this specific issue?” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“Storms Eunice and Dudley were both significant rainfall events which 
caused flooding to the highway at numerous locations across the county.  
Post event teams have been working hard to clear the highway drainage 
systems and gulleys in the areas that were flooded.  To ensure that they 
are fully operational DCC also continue to operate the cyclical gulley 
cleansing service across the county but unfortunately, as I am sure you 
are aware, the original infrastructure in place was not built for the current 
climate. 
 
Moving forwards this Council will continue to provide a proactive gulley 
cleansing service and the newly formed Highways Drainage Team will be 
ensuring that the service is delivered to a high standard. 
 

Page 9



 

 

A one-off recovery remedy budget of £1.3m along with a base budget of 
just over £1m making a total of £2.37m has been allocated for the 2022-23 
season to deal with the backlog of blocked defective gulleys, highway 
drainage systems which the new Drainage Team will utilise to maintain the 
highway drainage assets. 
 
Highways are also introducing a new asset management system this year 
which will improve the way the highways and drainage systems are 
managed and maintained, therefore maximising the resources we have 
more effectively and efficiently. 
 
This Council has also embarked on a programme of capital works to 
reduce the flood risk on the highway which is focusing on the highway 
flooding hotspots along with capital funding for these works which have 
been significantly increased for 2021-22 and 2022-23 compared to 
previous years.  Also with the considerable investment we are planning to 
install Smart technology in the drainage gulleys along the A6 this spring 
from Matlock Bath to Whatstandwell to monitor issues of blockage, to 
target areas, to clear areas prone to blocking. 
 
Unfortunately flooding to some other areas of the highways will still 
happen but this Council will continue to strive to ensure that the risk to 
both road users and properties is minimised as much as possible.”   
 
Councillor Fordham asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“I wonder, Chairman, whether the portfolio holder might consider working 
with residents directly?  While there are crisis situations such as Dudley 
and Eunice I am assuming that the highway staff will be fully engaged in 
tackling those problems when in fact I wonder if he might work with me 
and with residents on Tapton View Road and Tennyson Road where we 
actually put covers over the gulleys in order to stop the leaf fall and the 
flooding getting worse and actually kept the gulleys clear. It is something I 
think residents could do proactively rather than just relying on pressured 
staff to do it all the time.” 
 
Councillor Athwal responded as follows: 
 
“Yes, Councillor Fordham, we will work with residents.  We are working 
with residents and all stakeholders to look at all options to keep our 
flooding to a minimum.  We will endeavour to explore all possibilities to try 
and mitigate the issue of flooding within our great county.”  
 
d) Question from Councillor E Fordham to Councillor N Hoy, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Care 
 

Page 10



 

 

“In the local elections the Conservative candidate for Clowne stood on a 
ticket which expressed concern over the proposed plans for Care Home in 
particular for the Adult Care Home in Clowne. Given they are now the 
Portfolio Holder for Adult Care does she understand why residents, users 
and staff feel a tad betrayed that the current plans revisit that closure 
threat. Given many of them have written to her and have not had a reply, 
does she understand why the way this has been handled is rousing 
considerable resentment?” 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy: 
 
“I understand this is a very difficult time for everybody affected.  I have 
detailed knowledge and greater understanding of the Homes and the 
potential risks they pose.   
 
As the portfolio holder for Adult Care my priority is the safety and welfare 
of all the residents, their families and the staff who work and live within 
these Homes.  We have had to consult because doing nothing is not an 
option.  These dated buildings are in need of major refurbishment works 
and should major works be undertaken we would need to relocate 
residents and redeploy staff for 40 weeks. We cannot have staff and 
residents living and working on live construction sites so it was only right 
that we consulted.  I can also confirm I have responded to everybody who 
has contacted myself directly.” 
 
Councillor Fordham asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“On the 11 February this year I attended the funeral of Eva Baxter.  She 
was 84.  Chesterfield were disposing of her under the Prevention of 
Diseases Act and the Disposal of Bodies 1948 because Eva Baxter died 
without any next of kin.  She had lived in The Spinney for three years.  
She had not had a single visitor.  I was the sole person at her funeral.  I 
had never met her.  I didn’t know her.  I attend these funerals because I 
think someone should never depart from this planet on their own.  The 
only other people present were the three care home workers who had 
cared for her for three years.  Their staff, they say they have not had a 
reply.  Can I ask the portfolio holder to check whether staff are getting 
replies beyond acknowledgements?” 
 
Councillor Hoy responded as follows: 
 
“I can confirm that everybody who has contact with us would have 
received a response.  We have contacted everybody who has responded 
as part of the consultation process.” 
 
e) Question from Councillor E Fordham to Councillor N Hoy, Cabinet 

Page 11



 

 

Member for Adult Care 
 
“Hundreds of residents across Derbyshire have attended consultation 
meetings, written letters and filled in the consultation forms on the future 
provision of Adult Care. Many of them report that they have not had a 
reply and are concerned that they are not being listened to. Given it is that 
the overwhelming mood is against closure – could the Portfolio Holder 
save the Council a lot of time, effort and bureaucracy by removing the 
closure threat from the Consultation – or will she give a commitment to 
personally write back to each and every respondent explaining why their 
plea against closing homes is still being ignored by the Council?” 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy: 
 
“As you will appreciate it is really important for us to get the views of the 
people of Derbyshire to support our decision making and whilst we are yet 
to receive the feedback from the consultation and are so not clear on the 
number of people who have taken part, I am pleased to hear you believe 
there has been a good level of engagement in this process.  We are 
confident that we have responded to all the comments and queries that we 
have received.   
 
Anyone who has sent in comments via an email will have received an 
automated response confirming receipt advising that their views will have 
been included for analysis and those who have raised specific queries 
have then been responded to separately.  All letters that have been 
received have also been responded to either to confirm that comments 
have been received or to address queries.  We have received no 
complaints or concerns from people indicating that they have not been 
provided with a response.   
 
At this stage having not yet received the report outlining the feedback from 
the consultation we are not clear on what the totality of the views of those 
who have taken part is so it would not be appropriate to change or remove 
any option that had been consulted upon at this point.  When we receive 
the consultation feedback we will consider it fully as part of the decision 
making process.” 
 
Councillor Fordham asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“I didn’t attend many of the consultation meetings I had other events, other 
excuses, and some of my excuses are pretty lame I just wasn’t there.  Did 
the portfolio holder attend all the consultation meetings herself?” 
 
Councillor Hoy responded as follows 
 

Page 12



 

 

“I have been in direct communication with officers who have attended 
these meetings.  It would be inappropriate for me as the Cabinet Member 
to sit in the background of these consultation processes.” 
 
f) Question from Councillor E Fordham to Councillor N Hoy, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Care 
 
“Will the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care provide in specific detail the dates 
and times of her visits to each of the 27 Cares Homes that are part of the 
Consultation on the Future of Adult Care provision in Derbyshire since 
she was appointed to the Cabinet?” 
 
Councillor Fordham advised that he was happy not to put the question so 
a response was not required. 
 
g) Question from Councillor R George to Councillor N Hoy, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Care 
 
“In the proposed transformation of Learning Disability services, will the 
Council guarantee that a place at a Derbyshire County Council Day 
Centre will be available to every former service user who requests one, 
that if service users agree to try a different service, but feel that the 
alternative service is not meeting their needs, that they are then able to 
access a place at a DCC Day Centre again, and that transport to DCC 
Day Centres will continue to be available to all service users whose family 
struggle to provide transport.” 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy: 
 
“We recognise that for some people with complex needs a more traditional 
building base service may need to form part of their care support.  
However, for others it may not be the best way to support them to lead 
fulfilling lives.  This would be determined through a person centred, 
outcome focused assessment or review.   
 
It is proposed as part of the new model that Derbyshire County Council 
would provide transport to anyone where the Derbyshire County Council 
Day Opportunity Service is relocated as part of the proposals should they 
wish to continue to access it.  If Councillor George had taken the time to 
read the report she would have seen that it was clearly outlined within the 
report.” 
 
There was no supplementary question as Councillor George was not 
present. 
 
h) Question from Councillor B Bingham to Councillor K Athwal, 

Page 13



 

 

Cabinet Member for Highways, Assets & Transport. 
 
“I would like to take the opportunity to thank the Lead Member and 
Director of Place for the roll out programme of resurfacing the Class C 
and unclassified roads in my division in the near future, as confirmed. 
 
I would like to ask the Lead Member for Place to confirm when the 
footways around my division are going to be resurfaced, in regard to the 
condition of which Virgin Media have left them in.  Along with the footways 
which have Mares Tail growing through them, causing the surface to 
break-up down to base level, due to this pernicious weed and others 
where the surface is beginning to crumble, becoming uneven affecting 
elderly residents with mobility issues.” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“Within the next Highways capital programme there are no footway 
schemes currently programmed for the Staveley North and Whittington 
Ward.  However, all footways in the area will be subject to routine 
inspections to monitor condition and if reactive work is required this will be 
undertaken based on asset management policy and principles. 
 
With regard to the previous Virgin Media works the Highways Authority 
monitors utility reinstatements in accordance with the powers available to 
us under the relevant legislation.  We ensure compliance with national 
specifications which includes a two year guarantee during which Virgin 
Media are required to rectify any defects.  If the specific locations of 
concern could be provided, officers within the Highways Division will 
assess and feed back to Councillor Bingham. 
 
As regards the reference to Mare’s tail, weed killing is carried out in urban 
areas by the District Councils, in this case by Chesterfield Borough on our 
behalf as part of the agency agreement.  In addition, when we become 
aware of invasive weeds such as Mare’s tail we do target them for specific 
treatments, so again understanding specific locations would be 
appreciated so appropriate action can be taken.   
 
Councillor Bingham asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“I reported a pothole recently that was quite a large one near the mini 
roundabout at Woodmere Drive at Old Whittington in Chesterfield.  I do 
have to say that the response in filling it in was superb.  I didn’t expect 
anyone to come and fill it in as quickly as they did.  That was excellent 
from that perspective.  However, the actual repair lasted approximately, at 
the very most, five days in which it has all come out and the loose tarmac 
has ended up in the gulleys and over the road.  I just wonder if at some 

Page 14



 

 

point a more substantial repair could be done please? 
 
Councillor Athwal responded as follows: 
 
“Thank you, Councillor Bingham, for your kind comments regarding the 
response.  I am sorry if there has been faulty work that dissipated in the 
quickness of time but we will ensure our officers will look at the quality of 
the repair.  If you can email me or get somebody to email me the specific 
location in the area I will make sure you get a timely response.”   
 
i) Question from Councillor A Clarke to Councillor B Lewis, Cabinet 
Member for Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate 
Change 
 
“Whilst I note Cllr Lewis' promise that no libraries will be closing if not 
transferred to community use, the report of the Executive Director of 
Place sent to the Improvement and Scrutiny meeting last month stated in 
paragraph 2.9 that if there was a lack of support for the proposals there 
would need to be a service review of provision. That 'this could result in 
some libraries being open for less than one day a week with few, or no 
new books or resources being added to stock'.  Although this is not 
closure, it cannot be an acceptable alternative. 
 
Could you explain what steps are being taken to ensure that this does not 
happen, and will you promise that the limited library opening hours we 
have at present, at libraries such as Hayfield, will not further decrease?” 
 
Response from Councillor Lewis: 
 
“I am afraid it is a sad fact that footfall to libraries over the years has 
declined quite considerably.  People nowadays get their information via 
various different sources, online and so on, get their books in different 
places as well like Amazon and all sorts of other places, through Kindles 
and electronic devices.  That has had an impact on more particularly our 
smaller libraries not just in Derbyshire but right across the country. 
 
I do agree with the line that you have in your question about books, 
resources and so on saying that “Although this is not closure it cannot be 
an acceptable alternative.”  I have to say we do have an alternative.  
Community management libraries is something that before the pandemic 
we were pushing quite hard.  It has been more of a challenge during the 
Covid-19 pandemic and we have seen interest decline quite considerably 
during that period.  However, we have seen interest renewed since the 
pandemic has diminished somewhat and we are seeing a return of that 
interest in our community managed approach.   
 

Page 15



 

 

Very recently Woodville Library down in South Derbyshire has been taken 
on very successfully by a group there.  They are looking to expand their 
activities within that library and thus give the potential for increased 
opening hours as well in the future.  More strength to their elbow I say.   
 
They are a good way forward community managed libraries and can see 
an increase in the hours that libraries are open for and they can also live 
very much at the heart of the community as well.  In the community 
managed library approach we would put in a package of support such as 
materials and stock and so on and they would be part of Derbyshire 
statutory library offer.  That package of support makes them more 
sustainable as well in the longer-term giving support to those groups for all 
the time they wish to keep working with us. 
 
I would say, Councillor Clarke, that councillors have a key role to play in 
working with those groups to facilitate those relationships and help build 
the community managed library approach in Derbyshire.  They work well 
in other parts of the country.  There is absolutely no reason why they can’t 
work here particularly with that support offer that we have put in place.  
However, it is a sad fact that some councillors have been ideologically 
opposed to this approach and have, anecdotally I might add, potentially 
torpedoed some of these approaches from community groups in their 
communities which is a great shame.   
 
As I say if councillors can work with the groups that would be great.  
When they work they are very successful and can add value to our 
communities and enrich them as well.  I do have to say, however, if we 
don’t manage to achieve success in the community managed libraries 
approach, whether that be in one library or more, then I am afraid we will 
see diminished hours and we will see diminished stocks.  We have 
departmental savings to achieve of £1.6m and half a million of that saving 
needs to be achieved from libraries.” 
 
There was no supplementary question. 
 
j) Question from Councillor R George to Councillor K Athwal, Cabinet 
Member for Highways, Assets & Transport 
 
“In the resurfacing work planned for this summer, will the Council be 
reviewing the specification of the resurfacing contract last summer that left 
millions of loose chippings on all affected roads for months on end, 
creating problems for residents?” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“In the current year this administration is successfully delivering a 

Page 16



 

 

highways capital programme of around £40m as part of our commitment 
to invest £120m over three years.  This has resulted in a significant 
increase in the amount of work undertaken on our highways, including on 
resurfacing and surface dressing. 
 
As you would expect we have undertaken a full lessons’ learnt review of 
the surface dressing works undertaken this year including with our prime 
contractor.  This has enabled us to take remedial action where necessary 
at no additional cost to this Authority or the taxpayer and to better plan 
works for the future.  As a result these specifications for surface dressing 
works have been amended for the next financial year to address a number 
of issues experienced last year. 
 
We look forward to delivering an even bigger highways current 
programme for the coming year, a total of £58m in the highways capital 
programme.  We are confident that this will provide better quality, more 
durable and safer highways for residents across Derbyshire and I invite 
Councillor George to welcome this historic level of investment and join me 
in complimenting the work of our Highways Team in organising the 
comprehensive capital works programme.” 
 
There was no supplementary question as Councillor George was not 
present. 
 
k) Question from Councillor R George to Councillor K Athwal, 
Cabinet Member for Highways, Assets & Transport 
 
“When will the Council take action on the large tree roots growing out of 
the supporting wall for the A5004 above Canal Street in Whaley Bridge?” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“Thank you to Councillor George for bringing this issue to my attention, 
actually twice in a matter of only a few days.  I am led to understand that 
these tree roots in this wall have been monitored over the last ten years 
and no issues have been identified that impact on the safety or integrity of 
the wall but I would imagine she knew this already. 
 
Periodically the trees have been treated to remove and prevent fresh 
growth.  The last time this was undertaken was less than two years ago.  
A further inspection will be carried out over the next few weeks and any 
resulting works to the tree roots will be carried out across the summer 
months.  It is hoped the work required will be minimal as anything 
substantial would take longer to resolve.” 
 
There was no supplementary question as Councillor George was not 

Page 17



 

 

present. 
 
l) Question from Councillor R George to Councillor K Athwal, Cabinet 
Member for Highways, Assets & Transport 
 
“Will the Council take action to protect the residents of George Street in 
Whaley Bridge from flooding from the unregistered land above their 
homes?” 
 
Response from Councillor Athwal: 
 
“The culvert inlet which is located in an area of scrubland, the unregistered 
land at the end of George Street has been an issue for many years mainly 
down to being blocked during storm conditions which increases the flood 
risk to nearby properties.   
 
The Flood Team have attended this site and spoken to residents 
regarding this issue in the past and we are aware that both residents and 
the Flood Warden Group do try and keep the culvert stream clear.  
However, during Storm Eunice in February part of the retaining wall of the 
culvert stream collapsed which blocked the stream.  DCC’s Highways 
Team did attend the site and removed the blockage at that time. 
 
The DCC Flood Team has committed to investigate what are the potential 
solutions to reduce the flood risk in this area but until such time as the 
retaining wall has been repaired it is difficult to try and move forward with 
any potential solution.  Once a full investigation has been carried out by 
the DCC Flood Team we will be able to update all concerned as to what 
potential options there are to resolve this flooding issue.” 
 
There was no supplementary question as Councillor George was not 
present 
 
m) Question from Councillor C Dale to Councillor N Hoy, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Care 
 
“When I used to live in Nottingham my neighbour Brian was the Senior 
Registrar at the Queens Medical Centre in charge of the fracture unit and 
he told me he dreaded this time of year because of the number of elderly 
persons he treated for fractured limbs as a result of climbing ladders 
during their spring cleaning sessions. He could never understand why 
they climbed ladders but said it was an annual recurring event. 
 
In view of the rising costs now occurring for those elderly on low incomes 
do you think it was a wise decision to abandon the practical side of the 
handy man service. Many elderly people can’t afford the services of a 

Page 18



 

 

trusted trader to carry out simple tasks for example removing and 
replacing curtains or light fitments during spring cleaning. Naturally they 
will resort to doing the job themselves at the risk of falling off ladders. 
Have you considered and researched the cost of a preventative 
handyman service against the costs to the NHS in dealing with treating 
fractures and its complications caused by falls in the elderly as a 
consequence of carrying out these tasked themselves?” 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy: 
 
“Supporting Derbyshire residents to live independent fulfilled lives is a 
priority of the County Council and partners and we are always looking at 
ways we can do this more effectively. 
 
Since 2016 the Handyman Scheme has run as a partnership between 
County Council and Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Services, DFRS.  As part of 
this joint working the DFRS supports and maintains the fleet of eight 
handy vans.  We have jointly reviewed the scheme and as the vans are 
now at the end of their lifespan we would need a lot of investment to 
replace.  Both partners have agreed they can no longer support the 
scheme in this current form. 
 
The DFRS has found other ways of delivering its home fire safety checks 
which were part of the scheme and we are also looking at new and better 
ways to deliver services to ensure we can continue to support those who 
need our help the most. 
 
Our review has highlighted that across Derbyshire 17% of all work 
delivered by the scheme has been practical tasks such as changing light 
bulbs.  More than 40% of the work delivered has been safe and well 
checked with the DFRS and the DFRS will continue to deliver this.  
Approximately 40% has been the fitting and maintenance of community 
alarms which we have contracted with a company to deliver.  There are 
other options being considered for the handyman type services, some of 
which are already delivered by our local CBS partners and information on 
these will be available shortly.  We will always continue to work to support 
Derbyshire residents.” 
 
Councillor Dale asked the following supplementary question: 
 
I understand the service finishes at the end of March.  What was the 
democratic process followed for closing the Handyman Service, I have not 
seen any public consultation or anything?  Can you explain to me please? 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy 
 

Page 19



 

 

“Because this was a partnership it was unfortunate that we could not go 
out to consult on this.  As we have said this was partnership work with 
Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service which unfortunately prevented that.”  
 
n) Question from Councillor Anne Hayes to Councillor N Hoy, 
Cabinet Member for Adult Care 
 
“I would like to ask the Cabinet Member for Adult Care, whether the NHS 
Retention Fund payment allowing bonuses to be paid to homecare 
workers, has yet been issued to care providers in the county?  If so, how 
much of the allocation has been spent, how much went to the private 
sector and how much went to Derbyshire County Council’s own staff?” 
 
Response from Councillor Hoy:  
 
“The retention payments for homecare workers were paid out at the end of 
February 2022.  The vast majority of staff received these in their March 
pay. 
 
3,750 independent sector carers were able to benefit from this scheme 
receiving an amount of between £350 to £500.  A total of just over £1.7m 
was spent on this initiative and Derbyshire County Council has invoiced 
the Clinical Commissioning Group for this amount. 
 
The first question I asked when receiving these monies was why aren’t we 
giving these monies to our directly employed staff?  I was disappointed to 
learn that a one-off retention payment is prohibited under the Council’s 
pay policy statement which outlines that the performance related pay and 
bonuses, including lease cars, are not part of the number of packages 
within the Council.  The retention payment would constitute a bonus 
payment and is therefore prohibited and could open Derbyshire County 
Council to legal challenge across the wider organisation.  The majority of 
County Council employees are employed within the Council’s Derbyshire 
package terms and conditions and associated policies and a retention 
scheme policy is not currently part of these terms and conditions.  
Therefore it has not been possible to make any such payments to our 
homecare workers. 
 
The Council hugely values the contribution of all its employees and as 
such Cabinet approved the People Strategy in July 2021.  The strategy 
has five clear People priorities and aims to develop our culture, focusing 
and ensuring we are clear about what we offer and what we expect for our 
people through our employee value proposition.  This is a complex work 
and includes a consideration to our total reward package.   
 
We highly value our staff within Adult Care and the wider organisation.  As 

Page 20



 

 

I have mentioned above, work is in action and papers will be brought 
forward in due course but we also have to protect the Authority from any 
legal challenge.” 
 
There was no supplementary question. 
 

19/22 REVISIONS TO COUNCIL CONSTITUTION: REVIEW OF COUNCIL 
PROCEDURE RULES 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval for 
proposed amendments to the Council Procedure Rules for inclusion in the 
Constitution. 
 
It was explained that the report had been proposed and seconded by 
Councillors B Lewis and S Spencer at the previous meeting of Council so 
Members were invited to debate the report. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor Gillott and duly seconded in the 
following terms: 
 
To add the words “except for the proposals contained in paragraphs 9.2 
and 11.1 to extend the deadline for submitting questions to 10 working 
days which should remain instead at 12 noon on the Friday before the 
Council meeting” to the end of the recommendation  
 
Following debate, the amendment to the motion was duly voted on and 
declared to be LOST. 
 
There followed a debate on the original motion moved at the previous 
meeting by Councillor B Lewis that had been duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Approve the Council Procedure Rules, as set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report, for inclusion in the Constitution. 
 

20/22 MINOR CHANGE TO THE CONSTITUTION: TRADING STANDARDS - 
LEGISLATION UPDATE 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduce a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, notifying Council of minor 
amendments made to the Constitution to update the list of legislation 
under which the Council’s Trading Standards Service can take 
enforcement action. 
 

Page 21



 

 

On the motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the decision made by the Director of Legal Services to amend the 
Constitution to include the updated list of legislation to enable the Trading 
Standards Service to undertake necessary enforcement action. 
 

21/22 REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 
was circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval for a revised 
Code of Conduct for Elected and co-opted Members for inclusion in the 
Constitution.   
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Agree to adopt the proposed Code of Conduct, at Appendix 2 to the 
report, from 1st April 2022 for inclusion in the Constitution.  
 

22/22 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
 

 The Chairman welcomed Mr Simon Westwood, Chair of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel, to introduce the report of the Panel following 
consideration of it by the Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee. 
 
Thanks were expressed for the hard work of Mr Westwood and the other 
members of the Independent Renumeration Panel on behalf of Members. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor Gillott and duly seconded in the 
following terms: 
 
To add two further recommendations to the report as follows: 
 

1) That Council welcomes the decision of the Independent Remuneration Panel to 
review the Special Responsibility Allowance paid to the positions of Civic Chair 
and Vice-Chair of the Council during the next 12 months; 
 

2) That Council notes the decision of the Leader in May 2021 to increase the 
number of Cabinet and Cabinet Support Members and invites the Independent 
Remuneration Panel to review the Special Responsibility Allowances for 
Cabinet and Cabinet Support Members in light of that decision to determine 
whether the current level of payments are still appropriate or whether they 
should be reduced. 

 
Following debate, the amendment to the motion was duly voted on and 

Page 22



 

 

declared to be LOST. 
 
On the original motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Consdier the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel, 
subsequently supported by the Governance Ethics and Standards 
Committee, and approve the recommendations contained in the 
report; 

 
2) Agree the schedule of members’ allowances for 2022/23 as 

attached at Appendix 2 to Independent Remuneration Panel’s 
report; 

 
3) Note the proposal to recruit to the positions on the Independent 

Renumeration Panel as the vacancies arise; and 
 

4) Authorise the Monitoring Officer to make appropriate amendments 
to the Constitution to reflect any changes to the members’ 
allowances scheme agreed. 

 
23/22 REMUNERATION OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

 
 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 

had been circulated advance of the meeting, seeking approval to set the 
level of remuneration for the Independent Remuneration Panel going 
forward. 
 
Councillor B Lewis, when moving the motion, which was duly seconded, 
proposed that the payments should be index linked in the same way as 
Members’ Allowance payments. It was therefore 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Approve that Independent Remuneration Panel members are paid 
a fixed-fee of £600 per annum and that the payment is uplifted 
annually by any increase in the pay award due to employees 
covered by the NJC Pay Rates as of 1 April each year; 

 
2) Approve that the Chair of the IRP is paid an additional chair’s 

allowance of £250 per annum and that the payment is uplifted 
annually by any increase in the pay award due to employees 
covered by the NJC Pay Rates as of 1st April each year; and 

 
3) Approve that the allowances payable to the Independent 

Page 23



 

 

Remuneration Panel are paid in 12 monthly instalments from 1 April 
2022. 

 
24/22 INDEPENDENT PERSONS 

 
 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 

had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval for the 
appropriate number of independent persons to support the Council’s 
regime to maintain high standards of conduct by elected members and to 
determine appropriate remuneration for the independent persons. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Agree that the Council pay independent persons appointed under 
s28 Localism Act 2011 a fixed-fee of £1200 per annum in 12 
monthly instalments from 1st April 2022, but that this should be kept 
under bi-annual review by the Governance, Ethics and Standards 
Committee;  

 
2) Agree that the Council should have two independent persons; and 

 
3) Note that a recruitment process for a second independent person 

will be commenced. 
 

25/22 COUNCIL PLAN REFRESH 2022-23 
 

 The Managing Director introduced a report, which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, presenting the refreshed Council Plan for 
2022/23. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Approve the authority’s refreshed Council Plan 2022-23; and 
 

2) Note the Council Plan Delivery Plan 2022-23. 
 

26/22 DEPARTMENTAL SERVICE PLANS 
 

 The Managing Director introduced a report, which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, presenting department service plans for 2022/23. 
A number of technical amendments had been made to the Plan for the 
Place Department since the plans were approved at Cabinet. These 

Page 24



 

 

technical amendments had been circulated to Members prior to the 
meeting and were outlined in detail by the Managing Director. The 
Managing Director also confirmed the amendments would be reflected in 
the published version of the plan, subject to their consideration and 
approval by Council. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Approve departmental service plans for 2022/23 subject to the following 
technical amendments to the Plan for the Place Department: 
 

1) On page 401 - for Trading Standards, the figure in the brackets 
contained in the unallocated budgets column should read (47) and 
not (105). This amendment has then changed some of the total 
amounts at the bottom of the table.  

 
2) Updates to the Forward Plan section as follows: 

a) Page 404 Agnes meadow – contract start date now 
03/06/2022 

b) Page 405 TS16019 – Novus – contract start date now 
30/06/2023 

c) Page 408 Elvaston Castle Capital Enabling Works – contract 
start date now 27/11/22 

d) Page 409 Restoring your Railway Outline Business Case and 
related works on the Barrow Hill, Ivanhoe and Main Marian 
lines– Value increased from £500,000 to £1,200,000 

 
3) On page 399 Section Two – Priorities (not a Council Deliverable) – 

an additional priority has been added – P-46 Worked with District 
and Borough Councils to optimise our approach to verge 
management whilst balancing biodiversity and highway safety; and 

 
4) On page 379 the performance measure targets for Customer 

satisfaction with Highways and Transportation Services have been 
increased to: 2022-23 57% and 2023-24 60%. 

 
27/22 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

 
 The Director of Organisation Development and Policy introduced a report, 

which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, setting out the Pay 
Policy Statement which the Council was required to publish on its website. 
It was noted that some figures would be updated in light of the recent pay 
award. This would be done prior to publication of the statement. 
 

Page 25



 

 

On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
To approve the Pay Policy Statement for the financial year commencing 1 
April 2022 and agrees that it should be published on the website. 
 

28/22 APPOINTMENT TO THE ROLE OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
CORPORATE SERVICES AND TRANSFORMATION 
 

 The Managing Director introduced a report, which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, seeking approval of various decisions needed to 
commence the recruitment to the position of Executive Director for 
Corporate Service and Transformation.  
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Approve the salary package for the role of Executive Director 
Corporate Services and Transformation as Grade 20 £119,637 to 
£131,600 per annum; 

 
2) Delegate the appointment of the Executive Director Corporate 

Services and Transformation to the Recruitment Panel; 
 

3) Authorise the Managing Director, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Appointments and Conditions of Service 
Committee, to agree an extension to the current acting up 
arrangements to 31 August 2022, or until such time a permanent 
candidate commences in role, whichever is sooner; and 

 
4) Note that a report confirming details of the successful candidate will 

subsequently be presented to Council. 
 

29/22 APPOINTMENT OF CHARITY TRUSTEES - DR BLAND’S ALMS 
HOUSES CHARITY 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval to the 
remove the requirement to appoint a nominative trustee to the trustee 
body of Dr Bland’s Alms Houses Charity from the Scheme of the Charity 
Commissioners dated 23 July 1986. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 

Page 26



 

 

RESOLVED to: 
 
Consent to the removal of the requirement set out in the Scheme of the 
Charity Commissioners dated 23 July 1986 for the Council to appoint a 
nominative trustee to the trustee body of Dr Bland’s Alms Houses Charity. 
 

30/22 CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS AND OUTSIDE BODY 
APPOINTMENTS 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval to make 
changes to the memberships of committees and representatives 
appointed to Outside Bodies following a request from the Conservative 
Group. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED that with immediate effect: 
 

1) Councillor Woolley is appointed as Vice-Chairman of the 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - People in place of 
Councillor Rose; 

 
2) Councillor Wharmby is appointed as a member of the Improvement 

and Scrutiny Committee – Climate Change in place of Councillor 
Rose; 

 
3) Councillor Gourlay is appointed as a member of the Member 

Development Working Group in place of Councillor Rose; 
 

4) Councillor Ford is appointed as the Council’s representative to the 
Midland Rail Forum; and 

 
5) Councillor Redfern is appointed as the Council’s representative on 

the Derbyshire Law Centre 
 

31/22 DECISIONS TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URGENCY AND KEY 
DECISIONS AND SPECIAL URGENCY 
 

 The Director of Legal and Democratic Services introduced a report, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, reporting executive 
decisions taken as a matter of urgency where 28 days’ notice of the 
decision could not be given and where call-in was waived. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis duly seconded it was 
 

Page 27



 

 

RESOLVED to note: 
 

1) The key decisions taken where special urgency provisions were 
agreed as detailed at Appendix 2 to the report; and 
 

2) The urgent decisions taken where the call-in procedure was waived 
under the Improvement and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as detailed 
at Appendix 3 to the report. 

 
32/22 NOTICES OF MOTION 

 
 Motion one received from Councillor D Wilson 

 
Councillor Wilson proposed a motion, which was duly seconded, in the 
following terms: 
 
Council resolves to: 
 

a) stand in solidarity with the Ukrainian people; 
 

b) unequivocally denounce the unilateral military intervention of 
Russia against its immediate neighbour; and 
 

c) actively consider requests from HM Government, public sector 
partners, and civil society groups, such as the British Red Cross, to 
provide practical support to the people of Ukraine, including to any 
refugees who lawfully resettle in Derbyshire pursuant to 
international agreements or domestic legislation. 
 

Following debate, the motion was duly voted on and declared to be WON. 
It was therefore 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
Council: 
 

a) stands in solidarity with the Ukrainian people; 
 

b) unequivocally denounces the unilateral military intervention of 
Russia against its immediate neighbour; and 
 

c) actively considers requests from HM Government, public sector 
partners, and civil society groups, such as the British Red Cross, to 
provide practical support to the people of Ukraine, including to any 
refugees who lawfully resettle in Derbyshire pursuant to 
international agreements or domestic legislation. 

Page 28



 

 

 
Motion two received from Councillor D Greenhalgh 
 
Council considered a notice of motion, which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, from Councillor Greenhalgh. 
 
Councillor Greenhalgh spoke to advise Council that he wished to move an 
amended motion which was duly seconded, in the following terms. 
 
Council resolves to call on the UK Government to allocate the promised 
resources for flood protection to Derbyshire as soon as possible, and 
agrees to give higher priority and resourcing to flood prevention, including 
integration with the climate change strategy and large-scale preventative 
tree planting in catchment areas to slow river flows. 
 
Areas such as slow river flows such as the Derwent Connections Project 
currently being funded by Green Challenge Recovery Fund and similar 
schemes supported by DCC such as the Moorland Drainage Scheme 
trialled above New Mills.  This Council calls upon Government to consider 
a new framework and formula to fund damaged and compromised 
highways and other infrastructure by landslips and sinkholes exacerbated 
by increased rainfall and flooding. 
 
As the time was approaching 5 o’clock, in accordance with Standing 
Order 4.1 an extension of the time limited for the meeting was proposed. 
 
On the motion of Councillor B Lewis, duly seconded, it was 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That under rule 4.1 of the Council Procedure Rules the meeting should 
continue for a period of 10 minutes to enable the remaining business on 
the agenda to be considered. 
 
Following debate, Councillor Greenhalgh’s motion was duly voted on and 
declared to be WON. 
 
It was therefore 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
Council calls on the UK Government to allocate the promised resources 
for flood protection to Derbyshire as soon as possible, and agrees to give 
higher priority and resourcing to flood prevention, including integration 
with the climate change strategy and large-scale preventative tree 
planting in catchment areas to slow river flows. 

Page 29



 

 

 
Areas such as slow river flows such as the Derwent Connections Project 
currently being funded by Green Challenge Recovery Fund and similar 
schemes supported by DCC such as the Moorland Drainage Scheme 
trialled above New Mills.   
 
Council calls upon Government to consider a new framework and formula 
to fund damaged and compromised highways and other infrastructure by 
landslips and sinkholes exacerbated by increased rainfall and flooding. 
 

The meeting finished at 5.07 pm 
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
 

FOR PUBLICATION 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 MAY 2022 
 

Report of the Director - Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Committee Memberships, Schedule of meetings and Outside Body 
Appointments for 2022/23 

 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 For Council to make appointments to the Committees of the Council, 

including Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen for the ensuing year. 
 
1.2 To seek approval of the schedule of Council, Cabinet and Committee  

meetings for the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 
1.3 To seek approval to appoint to Outside Bodies for the ensuing year. 
 
2. Information and Analysis 
 

Committee Membership 
2.1 In determining the membership of committees, account must be taken 

of the requirements of the Local Government (Committees and Political 
Groups) Regulations 1990 as amended made under the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. These regulations require that 
seats on committees and sub-committees are allocated in a way which 
reflects the overall political balance of the Council and that the Council 
gives effect to the wishes of the political groups in the appointments to 
those seats.  

 
2.2 Allocation of seats by a Council must give effect to the following 

principles set out in the 1989 Act. The principles have to be applied in 
priority order as follows: 

Page 31

Agenda Item 12



 
(a) that not all the seats are allocated to the same political group; 
(b) that the majority of seats are allocated to a particular political 
group if the number of persons belonging to that group are a 
majority of the authority’s membership; 
(c) subject to (a) and (b) above, that the total number of all seats 
of the ordinary committees allocated to each particular political 
group reflects the group’s proportion to the membership of the 
authority; 
(d) subject to (a) – (c) above, that the number of seats allocated 
to a particular political group reflects that group’s proportion of the 
membership of the authority. 

 
2.3  Derbyshire County Council has two elected members that have not 

joined a political group. A political group is defined as comprising two or 
more members. Members who are not members of a political group are 
not automatically entitled to seats on committees, however as long as 
the principles of proportionality outlined above are respected and no 
member votes against the recommendation, the Act does not prevent 
Councils choosing to offer seats to unaligned/non-grouped members. 

 
2.4 The current political make-up of the Council is: 
 

 Members Percentage of 
seats 

Conservative Group 44 68.75 
Labour Group 14 21.88 
Liberal Democrat Group 4 6.25 
Green Councillor 1 1.56 
Independent Councillor 1 1.56 

 
 There are a total of 100 committee seats to be allocated for the 2022/23 

municipal year. The allocation of seats on the committees and sub-
committees of the Council is, therefore, as follows: 
 

Committee Total 
Seats 

Con Lab Lib 
dem 

Green Ind 

Appointments and 
Conditions of Service  

8 6 2 0 0 0 

Audit 6 5 1 0 0 0 
DCC Trading 5 4 1 0 0 0 
Governance Ethics and 
Standards 

8 6 2 0 0 0 

I&S - Climate 10 6 2 1 1 0 
I&S - Health 9 6 2 1 0 0 

Page 32



I&S - People 9 5 2 1 0 1 
I&S - Places 9 6 2 1 0 0 
I&S - Resources 9 6 3 0 0 0 
Pensions and 
Investments 

8 6 1 1 0 0 

Planning Delegation Sub 4 3 1 0 0 0 
Regulatory – Planning 10 7 2 1 0 0 
SACRE 5 4 1 0 0 0 
Total 100 70 22 6 1 1 

 
2.5 In addition to the Committees mentioned above the below bodies are 

appointed to on a proportional basis. As they are not formal committees 
or sub-committees of Derbyshire County Council, they are included 
separately on this report and not counted towards the total number of 
seats. 

 
Committee/Body Total 

Seats 
Con Lab Lib 

dem 

Derby and Derbyshire Development 
Plans Joint Advisory Committee 

6 5 1 0 

Derbyshire Combined Fire Authority 12 8 3 1 
Member Development Working Group  7 5 1 1 
Peak District National Park Authority 4 3 1 0 

 
2.6 The Health and Well-being Board is required to appoint the three 

members of Cabinet with responsibility for Health and wellbeing 
matters. 

 
2.7 A full list of proposed appointment to committees, including the relevant 

Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen, is presented at Appendix 2 to this report. 
 

Schedule of meetings 
 
2.7 Council must approve, at the Annual Meeting, a programme of ordinary 

meetings of the Council and its Committees for the ensuing year. This is 
presented at Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
 Outside Bodies 
 
2.8 The Council makes appointments to a variety of outside bodies each 

year, from national and regional bodies to local community groups. 
Council is asked to approve the appointments to outside bodies as 
detailed in Appendix 4 to this report and to note that any in-year 
changes to the list may be agreed by the Cabinet Member for Strategic 

Page 33



Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change in accordance with 
the provisions of Appendix 1 to the Council’s Constitution – 
responsibility for Functions. 

 
2.9 Since the 2021 Annual Meeting, a review of Outside Bodies has been 

undertaken by Democratic Services to ascertain whether all of the 
bodies are still in operation. As a result, several outside bodies have 
ceased to operate so appointments will not be made for this municipal 
year. Further work to review the Outside Bodies that the Council 
appoints to will take place this year  

 
3. Consultation 
 
3.1 There is no requirement for public consultation on this report. Political 

Groups have been contacted for their nominations as appropriate. 
 
4. Alternative Options Considered 
 
4.1 The Council must make the appointments to Committees and Outside 

Bodies, although members could choose to make different 
appointments to those suggested. Members may also choose to set a 
different schedule of meetings to the one suggested at Appendix 3. 

 
5. Implications 
 
5.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the 

preparation of the report. 
 
6. Background Papers 
 
6.1 None identified 
 
7. Appendices 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 – Implications 
7.2 Appendix 2 – Committee Membership 2022/23 
7.3 Appendix 3 – Meetings Schedule 
7.4 Appendix 4 – Outside Body Appointments 
 
8. Recommendation(s) 
 
That Council: 
 

Page 34



1) Appoints the Chair, Vice-Chair and Members of the Council’s 
Standing Ordinary Committees, Sub-Committees and Improvement 
and Scrutiny Committees as set out at Appendix 2 to this report; 

 
2) Approves the schedule of meetings, attached at Appendix 3 to the 

report, for the 2022/23 Municipal Year; and 
 

3) Appoints representatives to outside bodies as detailed at Appendix 4 
to the report. 

 
 
 
9. Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
9.1 To ensure that the Council has appropriate Committees and sub-

committees in place to discharge its functions and duties and that a 
schedule of meetings for the forthcoming year is in place. 

 
9.2 To ensure that the County Council has continuing representation on a 

variety of Outside Bodies that are of benefit to the organisation. 
 
 
Report 
Author: 

Alec Dubberley Contact 
details: 

alec.dubberley@derbyshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01629 539035 

 
  

Page 35



Appendix 1 
Implications 
 
Financial 
 
1.1 There are no direct financial implications arising this report as Special 

Responsibility allowances payable to members have been included in 
the base budget. 

 
Legal 
 
2.1 Legal implications have been considered in the body of the report. 
 
Human Resources 
 
3.1 None 
 
Information Technology 
 
4.1 None 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
5.1 None 
 
Corporate objectives and priorities for change 
 
6.1 None 
 
Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental, Sustainability,  
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding) 
 
7.1 None 
 
 

Page 36



Derbyshire County Council  

Committee Memberships - 2022/23 

  
Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 
 
Councillor B Lewis (Chairman) 
Councillor S Spencer (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor J Dixon 
Councillor R Flatley 
Councillor R George 
Councillor S Hobson 
Councillor T Kemp 
Councillor S Swann 
 
Audit Committee 
 
Councillor G Musson (Chairman) 
Councillor R Parkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor N Atkin  
Councillor N Gourlay 
Councillor R Mihaly 
Councillor J Nelson 
 
Derbyshire County Council Trading Committee 
 
Councillor K S Athwal 
Councillor A Dale 
Councillor R George 
Councillor C Renwick 
Councillor S Spencer 
 
Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee 
 
Councillor S Swann (Chairman) 
Councillor R Flatley (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor C Cupit 
Councillor K Gillott 
Councillor L Grooby 
Councillor D Muller 
Councillor W Major 
 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Climate Change, Biodiversity and 
Carbon Reduction 
 
Councillor W Major (Chairman) 
Councillor R Redfern (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor B Bingham 
Councillor S Bull 
Councillor A Clarke 
Councillor M Ford 

Appendix 2 

Page 37



Councillor A Hayes 
Councillor T Kemp 
Councillor G Kinsella 
Councillor D Taylor 
 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Health 
 
Councillor J Wharmby (Chairman) 
Councillor M Foster (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor D Allen 
Councillor E Fordham 
Councillor P Moss 
Councillor G Musson 
Councillor L Ramsey 
Councillor P Smith 
Councillor A Sutton 
 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – People 
Councillor T Kemp (Chairman) 
Councillor J Woolley (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor S Burfoot 
Councillor C Dale 
Councillor R George 
Councillor A Griffiths 
Councillor P Rose 
Councillor D Taylor 
Councillor J Wharmby 
 
4 Co opted and 2 Trade Union representatives 
 
Parent Governors (with voting rights) 
Vacancy (Secondary) 
Vacancy (Primary) 
 
Church Representatives (with voting 
rights) 
Ms G Neill (RC) 
D Channon (C of E) 
 

Trade Unions – 2 (without voting 
rights) 
Ms D Turner (NUT) 
Vacancy 

Page 38



Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Places 
 
Councillor S Bull (Chairman) 
Councillor J Siddle (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor D Collins 
Councillor N Gourlay 
Councillor D Greenhalgh 
Councillor J Nelson 
Councillor P Niblock 
Councillor R Redfern 
Councillor A Stevenson 
 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - Resources 
 
Councillor S Swann (Chairman) 
Councillor J Barron (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor R Ashton 
Councillor J Dixon 
Councillor M Foster 
Councillor A Hayes 
Councillor J Innes 
Councillor D Muller 
Councillor D Murphy 
 
Pensions and Investments Committee 
 
Councillor D Wilson (Chairman)  
Councillor P Smith (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor R Ashton 
Councillor N Atkin 
Councillor B Bingham 
Councillor M Foster 
Councillor G Musson 
Councillor M Yates 
 
Planning Delegation Sub-Committee 
 
Councillor M Ford 
Councillor R Mihaly 
Councillor D Murphy 
Councillor R Parkinson  
 
Regulatory - Planning Committee 
 
Councillor M Ford (Chairman) 
Councillor D Murphy (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor R Ashton 
Councillor A Griffiths 
Councillor L Grooby 
Councillor R Mihaly 

Page 39



Councillor P Niblock 
Councillor R Parkinson 
Councillor D Wilson 
Councillor M Yates 
 
Standing Advisory Committee for Religious Education 
 
Councillor R Flatley (Chairman) 
Councillor S Swann (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor A Dale 
Councillor C Dale 
Councillor N Gourlay 

Non-Council Committees/Boards 
 
Derbyshire Combined Fire Authority 
 
Councillor T Ainsworth (Chairman) 
Councillor R Ashton 
Councillor S Bull 
Councillor S Burfoot 
Councillor K Gillott 
Councillor N Gourlay 
Councillor R Iliffe 
Councillor J Innes 
Councillor L Ramsey 
Councillor S Swann 
Councillor D Taylor 
Councillor J Woolley 
 
Derbyshire and Derby Development Plans Joint Advisory Committee 
 
Councillor M Ford (Chairman) 
Councillor N Atkin 
Councillor D Collins 
Councillor R Iliffe 
Councillor T King 
Councillor W Major 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Councillor C Hart (Chairman) 
Councillor J Patten 
Councillor N Hoy 
 
Peak District National Park Authority 
 
Councillor D Murphy 
Councillor D Taylor 
Councillor J Wharmby 
Councillor B Woods 

Page 40



Appendix 3 
Schedule of Meetings 

  

Committee 

Preferred 
time and 
day May22 Jun22 Jul22 Aug22 Sep22 Oct22 Nov22 Dec22 Jan23 Feb23 Mar23 Apr23 May23 

Audit Committee 
2:00PM 
Tuesday  21 19  20   6 31  21   

Cabinet 
2:00PM 
Thursday  16 7,28  8 13 17 

8  
(10 am) 12 2,23 16 6 4 

Council 
2:00PM 
Wednesday 25  13  14  30   15 22  24 

Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel 
10:00AM 
Thursday  23   8  17  26 16 16   

Governance, Ethics and Standards 
Committee 

2:00PM 
Thursday   14   20   19  23   

Health and Wellbeing Board 
10:00AM 
Wednesday   6   6   25  29   

Improvement and Scrutiny 
Committee - Health 

2:00PM 
Monday   11  12  21  16  6  15 

Improvement and Scrutiny 
Committee - People 

2:00PM 
Wednesday 

26 
(Thu)  20  7  2   8   3 

Improvement and Scrutiny 
Committee - Places 

2:00PM 
Wednesday   27  21  16   22   17 

Improvement and Scrutiny 
Committee - Resources 

2:00PM 
Thursday   21  15   1   2  11 

Improvement and Scrutiny 
Committee – Climate Change, 
Biodiversity and Carbon Reduction 

2:00PM 
Monday   25  19  28   13   22 

Member Development Working 
Group 

10:00AM 
Monday  27    24    27    

Pensions and Investments 
Committee 

10:30AM 
Wednesday  8 20  7 19  7 18  8 26  

Regulatory - Planning Committee 
10:00AM 
Monday  20 18  5 

10, 
31  5 9 6 6 3 8 

Standing Advisory Committee for 
Religious Education 

1:30PM 
Monday   4    14    20   

Please note that these dates are subject to change. 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

  Appendix 4 
APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/2023    

 

Name of Outside Body Number of 
Representatives 

Name of Representative(s) 

Acre Lane Shardlow, Sand & Gravel Site 
Liaison Committee 

2 Cllrs N Atkin  
        D Muller   

Active Partners Trust 1 Cllr C Hart             

Amber Valley Access Group 1 Cllr R Iliffe 

Amber Valley Community Safety 
Partnership 

1 Cllr P Moss 

Arden (Birchvale) Waste Site Liaison 
Committee 

1  Cllr A Clarke (Local Member)  

Arkwright In Vessel Composting Facility 
Liaison 

1 Cllr J Woolley 

Ashbourne Community Transport Board 
of Trustees 

1 Cllr D Murphy 
 

Association of Greater Manchester 
Councils – Joint Health Scrutiny Panel 

1 Cllr L Grooby 

Belper Leisure Centre Limited 1 Cllrs J Nelson (Member) 

Belper North Mill Trust 1 Cllr J Nelson 

Bolsover Community Safety Partnership 1 Cllr N Hoy 

Bolsover Countryside Partnership 2 Cllrs J Barron 
        A Dale         

Bolsover North East Derbyshire Leader 
Local Action Group  (BNED LAG) 

1 Cllr J Siddle 

Bolsover Partnership Executive Board 1 Cllr J Barron          

Bolsover Woodland Enterprise 1 Cllr J Barron 

Butterley Ironworks Trust 1 Cllr R Ashton 

Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa 
Heritage 
Trading Company Limited (Director)     

1 Cllr T Kemp 

Buxton Crescent and Thermal Spa 
Heritage Trust Limited (Director & 
Trustee) 

1 Cllr T Kemp 

Caudwells Mill Trust Board 1 Cllr S Hobson 

Chapel-en-le-Frith Education Trust (aka 
Bowden Head School Educational Trust) 

2 Cllrs L  Grooby 
        N Gourlay 

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

1 Cllr J Woolley 
 

Chesterfield Canal Partnership 1 Cllr A Dale 

Chesterfield Community Safety 
Partnership 

1 Cllr J Innes 

Chesterfield Muslim Association 1 Cllr R Mihaly 

Coalite Development Board  1 Cllr T King 

Corporate Parenting Board 5 Lead Member for Children’s 
Services (Chair) – Cllr J 
Patten 
Lead member for Children’s 
Education – Cllr A Dale 
Leader of the Council – Cllr B 
Lewis 

Page 43



 
 

 

Name of Outside Body Number of 
Representatives 

Name of Representative(s) 

Support Member for 
Children’s Services – Cllr G 
Hickton 
Shadow Member for 
Children’s Services – Cllr M 
Yates  
 

County Council Network 4 Cllrs  B Lewis 
         S Spencer 
         R Parkinson 
         J Dixon  

Creswell Heritage Trust – Council of 
Management (Director/Trustee and 
Member) 

1 Cllr R Flatley  

Cromford Canal Partnership 3 
 

Cllrs  B Lewis 
         T Ainsworth 
         G Hickton 

Cromford Quarry Liaison Committee 1 Cllr D Murphy 

D2 Joint Committee for Economic 
Prosperity 

1 Cllr B Lewis 
 

D2N2 Investment Board 1 Cllr B Lewis 

D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership Board 1 Cllr B Lewis 

Derby and Derbyshire Local Access 
Forum 

1 Cllr R Ashton 
 

Derby and Derbyshire Music Partnership 
(3 reps from DCC and 2 from Derby CC) 

3 Cllrs  D Muller 
         D Murphy 
         P Smith 

Derby and Derbyshire Waste Treatment 
Centre – Sinfin Community Liaison Group 
(CLG) 

1 Cllr T Ainsworth 

Derby and Sandiacre Canal Trust Board 1 Cllr G Hickton 

Derby Enterprise Growth Fund 1 Cllr T King 

Derby Housing Market Area Joint 
Advisory Board 

1 Cllr T King 

Derby University Court 1 Cllr A Dale 

Derbyshire Archaeological Advisory 
Committee 

1 Cllr B Lewis 
 

Derbyshire Association of Local Councils 
 

2 Cllrs C Hart 
         N Atkin         

Derbyshire Children’s Partnership 1 Cllr J Patten          

Derbyshire Community Health Services 
NHS Foundation Trust - Council of 
Governors 

1 Cllr N Atkin 

Derbyshire Dales Community Safety 
Partnership  

1 Cllr S Bull 

Derbyshire Economic Partnership 2 Cllrs T King  
        B Lewis       

Derbyshire Environmental Trust 
(Trustee and Director) 

1 Cllr T King 

Derbyshire Gypsy Liaison Group 1 Cllr C Hart 

Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Trust 
Foundation (Appointed Governor) 

1 Cllr M Ford 

Page 44



 
 

 

Name of Outside Body Number of 
Representatives 

Name of Representative(s) 

Derbyshire Information, Advice and 
Support Service 

2 Cllrs G Hickton 
        R Flatley         

Derbyshire Law Centre 2 Cllrs R Redfern  
        J Woolley 

Derbyshire Learning Disability County 
Partnership Board 

1 Cllr W Major 
 

Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel 1 Cllr C Hart 
(substitute Cllr A Griffiths) 

Derbyshire Safer Communities Board 1 Cllr C Hart  

Derbyshire Schools Forum 4 Cllrs A Dale 
        R Flatley  
        J Patten  
        R George        

Derwent Valley Line Community Rail 
Partnership  

2 Cllrs T Ainsworth   
        T Kemp        

Derwent Valley Mills World Heritage Site 
Steering Group 

1 Cllr B Lewis 
  

Derwent Valley Mills Heritage Site 
Educational Trust (Trustee) 

1 Cllr R Flatley 

Divisional Fostering Panel 
 

2 Cllrs R Iliffe 
        D Muller 

Dronfield Henry Fanshawe School 
Foundation Trust 

2 B Kenyon 
J Kenyon 

East Midlands Councils 2 Cllrs B Lewis 
        S Spencer 

East Midlands Councils Executive 1 Cllr B Lewis 

East Midlands Reserve Forces and Cadet 
Association (EMRFCA) (Derbyshire) 

1 Cllr N Atkin 

Elvaston Castle and Gardens Trust – 
Board of Trustees 

1 Cllr G Hickton 
 

Elvaston Quarry Liaison Committee 4 Cllrs K Athwal  
         N Atkin 
         G Hickton  

 D Muller      

Environment Agency – Yorkshire 
Regional Flood & Coastal Committee 

1 Cllr G Hickton 
(substitute – Cllr C Cupit) 

Environment Agency – Trent Regional 
Flood and Coastal Committee 

1 Cllr G Hickton 
(substitute – Cllr C Cupit) 

Erewash Community Safety Partnership 1 Cllr C Hart 

Erewash Local Strategic Partnership 1 Cllr K Athwal  

Erin Waste Disposal Committee 1 Cllr A Hayes (Local Member) 

Glossopdale Furniture Project 1 Cllr J Wharmby 

Goseley Community Centre Management 
Committee 

1 Cllr D Muller 

Greater Nottingham Joint Planning 
Advisory Board  

1 Cllr C Renwick 

Hartington Reclamation Scheme Local 
Liaison Committee 

1 Cllr B Bingham (Local 
Member) 

Heage Windmill Society – Trustee Board 1 Cllr P Moss 

Heritage Champion 1 Cllr B Lewis 

Page 45



 
 

 

Name of Outside Body Number of 
Representatives 

Name of Representative(s) 

High Peak and Hope Valley Community 
Rail Partnership 

1 Cllr J Wharmby 

High Peak Community Safety Partnership 1 Cllr N Gourlay 

HS2 Chesterfield and Staveley Delivery 
Board 

1 Cllr T King 

HS2 Executive Board 1 Cllr C Renwick 

HS2 Mitigation Board 1 Cllr C Renwick 

HS2 Strategic Board 1 Cllr C Renwick 

Industrial Communities Alliance 1 Cllr T King 

John Allsopp Educational Foundation  1 C Heywood 

Johnsons Incinerator Bottom Ash 1 Cllr  A Gibson 

Local Authorities Pension Fund Forum 1 Cllr D Wilson 

Local Government Association - National 4 3 conservatives 
Cllrs B Lewis 
        S Spencer 
        S Swann 
1 Labour 
Cllr J Dixon 

Long Eaton Town Centre Forum 1 Cllr A Griffiths 

Lowland Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire 
Local Nature Partnership  

1 Cllr G Hickton 

Markham Vale Liaison Committee 5 Cllrs    N Hoy 
           T King 
           J Woolley 

Markham Vale Partnership Members 
Board 

3 Cllrs  T King 
          B Lewis 
          S Spencer        

MEGZ Limited 
(Directors) 
 

3 Cllrs  B Lewis 
         S Spencer 
         J Dixon          

Mouselow Quarry, Glossop Local Liaison 

Committee 

2 Cllrs D Greenhalgh  
        J Wharmby 

Museum of the Mercian Regiment 
(Worcestershire & Sherwood Foresters 
 Collection)  

1 Cllr N Atkin 

National Coal Mining Museum for 
England Liaison Committee 

1 Cllr R Redfern 
 

New Mills Volunteer Centre 1 Cllr A Clarke (Local Member) 
 

North East Derbyshire Community Safety 
Partnership 

1 Cllr C Renwick 
 

Nottingham East Midlands Airport 
Independent Consultative Committee 

1 Cllr M Ford  

PATROL (Parking and Traffic Regulations 
Outside London) Adjudication Joint 
Committee 

1  Cllr A Sutton  
(substitute – Cllr C Cupit) 

Peak District Local Access Forum 1  Cllr S Hobson 

Peak District Partnership 1 Cllr N Gourlay 

Pentrich and South Wingfield Revolution 
Group (Trustee Board) 

1 Cllr P Moss 

Page 46



 
 

 

Name of Outside Body Number of 
Representatives 

Name of Representative(s) 

Programme Board Heanor Future High 
Street Fund Project 

1 Cllr R Ilifffe 

Rail Forum Midlands 1 Cllr M Ford 

SCAPE Group Ltd (Directors) 
 

1 Cllr S Bull 
(Officer – D Massingham)   

South Derbyshire Community Safety 
Partnership 

1 Cllr M Ford  
 

South Derbyshire Local Strategic 
Partnership 

1 Cllr D Muller 
 

South Normanton Joint Service Centre 1 Cllr J Siddle (Local Member) 

South Yorkshire, Derbyshire and 
Nottinghamshire Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee  

1 Cllr J Wharmby 

Sutton-cum-Duckmanton Education   
Foundation  

1 Cllr J Woolley 
 

Sutton-cum-Duckmanton Relief in Need 
Charity 

1 Cllr J Woolley 
 

Swarkestone Sand & Gravel Pit (Barrow-
on-Trent) Liaison Committee 

2 Cllrs M Ford  
         D Muller 

Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care 
NHS Foundation Trust 

1 Cllr J Wharmby 

Tameside and Glossop (CCG) Integrated 
Board 

1 Cllr B Woods 

Toton Delivery Board  1 Cllr T King 

Town Deal Board – Long Eaton  1 Cllr T King 

Town Deal Board - Clay Cross 1 Cllr T King 

Town Deal Board - Staveley 1 Cllr T King 

Toyota City Partnership Board 1 Cllr T King 

Trans Pennine Trail Partnership 1 Cllr J Wharmby 

Transport for the North Board 1 Cllr C Cupit (sub Cllr J 
Wharmby) 

University Hospitals of Derby and Burton 
NHS Foundation Trust - Council of 
Governors 

1 Cllr D Muller 

Visit Peak District and Derbyshire 
Destination Marketing Agency 

1 Cllr T Kemp 

Waingroves Community Association 1 Cllr R Ashton 

Waste Management Contracts Board 2 Cllr  S Spencer  (Deputy 
Leader of Council) 
C Renwick (Cabinet Member 
with responsibility for Waste                 
Management)      

Whaley4Wards 1 Cllr R George (Local 
Member) 

White Hall Centre 1 Cllr J Wharmby 

Whitwell Quarry Liaiaon 
Committee(Tarmac) 

1 Cllr N Hoy (Local Member) 
 

Whitwell Works Liaison 
Committee(Lhoist) 

1 Cllr N Hoy (Local Member) 
 

World Heritage UK 1 Cllr B Lewis 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

FOR PUBLICATION 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 MAY 2022 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

Notification of Portfolio Holders and Membership of the Cabinet 
 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To notify Council of the identities of Cabinet Members, Cabinet Support 

Members and their respective portfolios and approve amendments to 
the Constitution to incorporate Cabinet delegations. 

 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
2.1 As required by the Constitution of the Council, Members are asked to 

note the portfolios and identities of Cabinet Members and Cabinet 
Support Members for the ensuing year and approve the record of 
delegations to be included in the Council’s scheme of delegation at 
Appendix 1 to the Constitution.  

 
3. Consultation 
 
3.1 Not applicable 
 
4. Alternative Options Considered 
 
4.1 As this report is for noting, there are no alternative options available. 
 
5. Implications 
 
5.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the 

preparation of the report. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 13



 
6. Background Papers 
 
6.1 None identified. 
 
7. Appendices 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 – Implications 
7.2 Appendix 2 – Composition of Cabinet 2022/23 
 
8. Recommendation(s) 
 
That Council: 
 
Notes the information, provided at Appendix 2 to this report, in relation to 
Cabinet and Cabinet Support Members for the ensuing year and approves 
the record of delegations to be included in the Council’s scheme of 
delegation at Appendix 1 to the Constitution. 
 

 
9. Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
9.1 To comply with the provisions of the Council’s Constitution that requires 

the Leader of the Council to inform Council of the composition of 
Cabinet for each municipal year and Council to agree the relevant 
delegations to be incorporated in Appendix 1. 

 
 
Report 
Author: 

Alec Dubberley Contact 
details: 

alec.dubberley@derbyshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01629 539035 

 
  

Page 50



Appendix 1 
Implications 
 
Financial 
 
1.1 None directly arising from this report. 
 
Legal 
 
2.1 Derbyshire County Council operates under the Strong Leader and 

Cabinet style of governance as set out in the Local Government Act 
2000. Under the Local Government Act 2000 as amended, the Leader 
has the authority to appoint his Cabinet and determine how executive 
functions will be exercised. By virtue of section 9C(5), the number of 
members of the executive shall not exceed 10. The Council’s 
Constitution provides that the Leader of the Council is responsible for 
the: 

 
(a) appointment of the Cabinet which will consist of the Leader and not 

less than 2 nor more than 9 other Councillors, as the Leader shall 
determine; and 

(b) allocation of areas of political responsibility to members of the 
Cabinet, as the Leader shall determine from time to time. 

 
 It is therefore appropriate for the Leader to make decision on the remit 
of Cabinet Members.  
 

2.2 There is a requirement in the Constitution for the Leader to notify 
Council at the Annual Meeting of their Cabinet and the record of 
delegations to be included in the scheme of delegation at Appendix 1 to 
the Constitution.  

 
Human Resources 
 
3.1 None 
 
Information Technology 
 
4.1 None 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
5.1 None 
 
Corporate objectives and priorities for change 

Page 51



 
6.1 None 
 
Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental, Sustainability,  
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding) 
 
7.1 None 
 
 

Page 52



 

 

                                      
 
 

CABINET AND PORTFOLIO APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
CABINET MEMBERSHIP 
 
Comprising the Council Leader and 8 Members appointed by the Leader.   
 
Membership   Portfolio Responsibility 

 
Councillor B Lewis (Leader) Strategic Leadership, Culture, 

Tourism and Climate Change  
Councillor S Spencer (Deputy Leader) Corporate Services and Budget 
Councillor C Hart      Health and Communities   
Councillor T King Clean Growth and Regeneration     
Councillor N Hoy Adult Care 
Councillor C Renwick Infrastructure and Environment 
Councillor K S Athwal  Highways Assets and Transport 
Councillor J Patten Children’s Services and 

Safeguarding 
Councillor A Dale Education 

 
 

Cabinet Support Members 
 
 
Councillor S Hobson Strategic Leadership, Culture, 

Tourism and Climate Change  
Councillor L Grooby Corporate Services and Budget 
Councillor N Atkin      Health and Communities   
Councillor A Gibson Clean Growth and Regeneration     
Councillor D Muller Adult Care 
Councillor A Sutton Infrastructure and Environment 
Councillor C Cupit  Highways Assets and Transport 
Councillor G Hickton Children’s Services and 

Safeguarding 
Councillor R Flatley Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Page 53



 

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
 
THE CABINET 
 
1.1 CABINET 

 
The Cabinet will be responsible for guiding the Council in the formulation 

of its corporate plan of objectives and key priorities.  Within the policy 
framework, budgets and major plans are approved by the full Council and the 
Cabinet will have executive responsibility for the implementation of the Council’s 
key goals and objectives. 
 

1.2 CABINET PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Cabinet Members are authorised to make decisions required in the area 
of their individual Cabinet Portfolio. 

 
(a) Cabinet Members may take policy, budget and expenditure 

decisions in accordance with the principles set out in paragraph 
Financial Regulations. 

 

(b) Cabinet Members may take decisions on tenders and contracts in 
accordance with Standing Orders In Relation To Contracts. 

(c) Cabinet Members may take decisions on virement, audit, debt 
write-off and placing of orders in accordance with Financial 
Regulations. 

 
(d) Cabinet Members may deal with certain petitions in accordance 

with the Council’s Petition Scheme. 
 

(e) Cabinet Members may make decisions on: 
 

(i) appointment of Members to outside bodies (Leader of the 
Council) 

 

(ii) appointment of governors to local authority schools (Cabinet 
Member for Education) 

 
(iii) attendance of other Members at courses and conferences 

 

(iv) grants administered by the Council. 
 

(f) The Cabinet Member for Corporate Services & Budget may take 
decisions concerning the acquisition or disposal of land. 

 
 

 

Page 54



 

 

Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change 
 

 Council Plan and overall Council strategy, policy and co-ordination 

 Council performance 

 Council budget strategy 

 Climate Change 

 Strategic lead Enterprising Council 

 Strategic lead Vision Derbyshire 

 Public Relations  

 Policy & Research  

 External Relations (East Midlands Councils, Local Government 
Association, Central Government & MPs)  

 Regional Partnerships including Local Enterprise Partnership and D2 
Economic Prosperity Committee  

 Twinning  

 Visitor Economy and Tourism  

 Libraries and Culture 

 Conservation and Heritage 

 Strategic leadership of any matter of significant local, regional or 
national importance that may otherwise fall within another portfolio 

 
Corporate Services and Budget 
 

 Finance and Budget Monitoring  

 Procurement  

 Human Resources – Policy and Strategy 

 Organisational Health and Safety 

 Legal and Democratic Services  

 Elected Member Development 

 Property Rationalisation and Asset Management  

 Efficiency and Value for Money  

 Service Re-design  

 Information and Communications Technology Services  
 
Highways Assets and Transport 
 

 Highways Assets and Highways Strategy 

 Highways Asset Management and maintenance 

 Highways Capital Programme 

 Future Highways Model 

 Highways Structures Management 

 Road Safety 

 Street Lighting 

 Civil Parking enforcement 

Page 55



 

 

 Flooding and Drainage 

 Public Transport 

 Home to School Transport including SEN 

 Adult Social Care Transport 

 Community Transport 

 Fleet Management and Maintenance 
 
Infrastructure and Environment  
 

 Environment and Natural Capital 

 Countryside Services 

 Local Nature Partnerships 

 Strategic Planning and Local Planning Frameworks  

 Minerals and Waste Planning 

 Strategic Infrastructure (HS2, Chesterfield Staveley) 

 Transport Strategy and Transport Planning (road, rail, other) 

 Regional Transport Partnerships (Midlands Connect, Transport for 
Greater Manchester, Transport for the North and Transport for East 
Midlands) 

 Digital Infrastructure 

 Waste Strategy 

 Waste Management 

 Recycling 

 Corporate Waste 
 

Clean Growth and Regeneration  
 

 Economic Development  

 Economic Partnerships including Derbyshire Economic Partnership, 
International Partnership Boards  

 Local Economic Strategy and Assessment  

 Sector development 

 Major regeneration projects 

 Employment and Skills 

 External Funding  

 Inward Investment and Indigenous Growth  

 Apprenticeships  

 Business Support and Start-ups  

 Markham Vale  
 
Adult Care  
 

 Adult Safeguarding 

 Better Lives Programme 

Page 56



 

 

 Information, advice and assessment for people with social care needs  

 Personalisation 

 Commissioning and Procurement of Services  

 Provision of in house services 

 Social Care and NHS integration 
 
Health and Communities  
 

 Health and Wellbeing Board  

 Relationship with the NHS CCG and Integrated Care Partnership 

 Public Health, including: 
o Health improvement 
o Healthcare related public health 
o Health protection (infectious diseases and environmental health 

threats and preparedness) 

 Prevention 

 Health Inequalities 

 Integration, including Integrated Care System 

 Mental Health and Wellbeing 

 Developing whole person wellbeing, health and care   

 Strategic lead Thriving Communities 

 Engagement with Communities  

 Equalities 

 Community Cohesion  

 Community Consultation and Community Leadership  

 Voluntary and Community Sector  

 Crime and Disorder and Partnerships  

 Domestic Violence  

 Action on Drugs and Alcohol  

 Emergency Planning  

 Trading Standards  

 District and Parish Council Liaison  

 Registration Services  

 Coroner Services  
 
Children’s Services and Safeguarding  

 Designated Lead Member for Children’s Services pursuant to Section 
19 of the Children Act 2004 

 Overall strategy and policy for all Children’s matters, i.e. Education, 
Children and Families pursuant to the requirements of the Children Act 
2004  

 Children and Young People’s Plan 

 Corporate parenting 

 Standards across statutory services 

Page 57



 

 

 Statutory multi-agency partnerships  

 Early help relating to children and families  

 Strategy for Special Educational Needs and Disability 

 Vulnerable youth including young people missing education, those at 
risk of exploitation youth offending  

 To act as champion for children and young people and in order to do so 
ensure the councils engagement with children and young people, 
parents and carers  

 
Education  
 

 Supporting the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding as statutory lead member given the breadth of the 
portfolio by providing:  
o additional capacity drive improvements in school standards and 

educational attainment  
o liaison with schools, academies, colleges and other representatives 

of the education sector. 

 Implementation of strategic direction as set by the Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services and Safeguarding in relation to education, schools, 
and SEND 

 Implementation of policies and strategies agreed by the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services and Safeguarding in relation to 
admissions, infrastructure, home to school transport policy and school 
organisation matter 

 Implementation of policies and strategies agreed by the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services and Safeguarding in relation to early 
years education and childcare 

 Implementation of policies and strategies agreed by the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services and Safeguarding in relation to 
provision for those children and young people at risk of educational 
exclusion for example those who are electively home educated, those in 
alternative provisions, and those who are missing education 

 Post 16 education and skills policies and initiatives- including links with 
FE colleges, adult education, universities and training providers 

 Education inclusion  

  Educational outcomes for those at risk of poor outcomes 

 Specialist education services including the music partnership, sports 
outdoor and recreation and education, school sports  

 Governor appointment and development lead in line with local 
constitution 

 

 

Page 58



 

 

   
 

FOR PUBLICATION 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

COUNCIL 
 

25 May 2022 
 

Report of the Managing Director and Director of Organisation 
Development and Policy  

 
Appointment of the Executive Director for Corporate Services and 
Transformation and Recruitment of the Director of Public Health  

 
 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 To notify Council of the appointment to the post of Executive Director, 

Corporate Services and Transformation and to seek approval from 
Council for the salary package for the role of Director of Public Health.  

 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
2.1 On 23 March 2022, Council approved the salary package for the role of 

Executive Director Corporate Services and Transformation and 
delegated the appointment a recruitment panel.  As permitted within the 
Council’s constitution, a panel consisting of Cllr Spencer, Cllr Swann and 
Cllr Dixon was formed to participate in the recruitment process.  

 
2.2 Following a competitive recruitment process, the Panel agreed the 

appointment of Joe O’Sullivan and he will take up post on 4 July 2022.  
Joe joins the Council following a long and active career in the military 
where he was a Brigadier and Chief of Staff of a large defence 
organisation, and more recently as a Transformation Director for the 
Warwickshire Police and West Mercia Police Alliance. Joe has significant 
experience, having led a large-scale change and investment programme 
for the Chief Constables of Warwickshire and West Mercia Police, and 
through a series of roles dealing with strategy and operational delivery in 
the Ministry of Defence and NATO. 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 14



 

 

2.3  Following the recent resignation of the current Director of Public Health, 
the recruitment process is underway for this role in line with the Council’s 
constitution and in conjunction with the Faculty of Public Health. Whilst it 
is not a legislative requirement for Council to approve the appointment to 
this role, the statutory guidance issued under section 40 of the Localism 
Act 2011 does require the Council or a meeting of members to vote 
before salary packages over £100,000 are offered.  

 
2.4  The salary of the role of the Director of Public Health is determined by the 

Council’s job evaluation scheme as Grade 18 £93,788 to £103,169 per 
annum of the Council’s Pay structure.  The terms and conditions for the 
post are set out in the Council’s standard terms and conditions in the 
Derbyshire package.  Council is therefore asked to approve the salary for 
the role of Director of Public Health. 

 
3. Consultation 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Director 

of Organisation Development and Policy has notified all members of 
Cabinet of the proposed appointment to the role of Executive Director 
Corporate Services and Transformation and has received no objections. 

 
4. Alternative Options Considered 
 
4.1 Council delegated the appointment of the Executive Director Corporate 

Services and Transformation to the Recruitment Panel.  Therefore, the 
decision to appoint has been made by the Panel and is being referred to 
the Council to note.  

 
4.2 The Council could decide not to approve the salary for the Director of 

Public Health however this is a critical, established and statutory position 
within the Council’s senior leadership structure. 

 
5. Implications 
 
5.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the 

preparation of the report. 
 
6. Background Papers 
 
6.1 None applicable.  
 
7. Appendices 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 – Implications. 

Page 60



 

 

 
8. Recommendation(s) 
 
That Council: 
 
a) Notes the appointment of Joe O’Sullivan to the role of Executive Director 

Corporate Services and Transformation with effect from 4 July 2022.  
 

b) Approves the salary package for the role of Director of Public Health 
salary as Grade 18 and therefore, up to £103,169 per annum. 

 
9. Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
9.1 To ensure that all Elected Members are notified of the successful 

candidate to a senior post within the Council. 
 
9.2  To comply with the necessary legislative, statutory guidance and 

Constitutional requirements. 
 
 
 
Report Author: Emma Crapper 
Contact details: emma.crapper@derbyshire.gov.uk  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 61

mailto:emma.crapper@derbyshire.gov.uk


 

 

Appendix 1 
 
Implications 
 
Financial  
 
1.1 The costs associated with the role of the Director of Public Health can be 

met from within the Adult Social Care and Health Department Budget. 
 
Legal 
 
2.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 and the 

Officer Employment Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution set out the 
procedure for the appointment of chief officers and officers reporting directly to 
chief officers. The recruitment process for the Executive Director Corporate 
Services and Transformation has observed the requirements of the Regulations 
and Council’s Constitution. Under the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, 
prior to the appointment of an Executive Director, the Director of Organisation 
Development and Policy must give all executive members the opportunity to 
object to the proposed recommendation before an offer of appointment can be 
made. All Members of Cabinet have been duly notified and no objections were 
received. 

 
2.2  The Openness and accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of 

the Localism Act provides that full council, or a meeting of members should be 
offered the opportunity to vote before large salary packages are offered in 
respect of a new appointment. The Secretary of State considers that £100,000 
is the right level for that threshold to be set. For this purpose, salary packages 
should include salary, any bonuses, fees or allowances routinely payable to the 
appointee and any benefits in kind to which the officer is entitled as a result of 
their employment. As set out in the Constitution, Appendix 1 – Responsibility 
for Functions, approval of remuneration on appointment in excess of £100,000 
is the responsibility of full Council. 

 
Human Resources 
 
3.1 As outlined within the report.  
 
Information Technology 
 
4.1 None directly arising from this report.  
 
Equalities Impact 
 
5.1 The role of Director of Public Health will be advertised in such a way as 

is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply 
for it.  The appointment process will be conducted in accordance with the 

Page 62



 

 

Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy and any reasonable 
adjustments will be made for candidates in order to access the process 
as appropriate. 

 
5.2 It should be noted that the Council has put in place a number of measures 

in its recruitment process in order to promote equality. These include: 
 

- providing disabled job applicants with adjustments throughout the 
recruitment process to help make the process fairer, such as making 
reasonable adjustments at interview. 
- providing all disabled people who meet the essential criteria with a 
guaranteed interview and by ensuring that any test or assessment is fair 
to everyone and focuses on the skills and knowledge needed for the job. 

 
Corporate objectives and priorities for change 
 
6.1 This report supports the Council priorities and the recommendations 

proposed will enable recruitment to key established senior leadership 
positions. 

 
Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability, 
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding) 
 
7.1 None directly arising from this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

   
 

 
 
 

FOR PUBLICATION 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

COUNCIL  
 

25 May 2022  
 

Joint Report of the Interim Executive Director, Corporate Services and 
Transformation and the 

Interim Director of Finance & ICT 
 

Performance Monitoring and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2021-
22 as at Quarter 3 (31 December 2021) 

 
 
 
1. Divisions Affected 
 
1.1 County-wide. 
 
2. Key Decision 
 
2.1 This is not a Key Decision. 
 
3. Purpose  
 
3.1 To provide Council with an update of Council Plan performance and the 

Revenue Budget/forecast outturn for 2021-22, as at 31 December 2021 
(Quarter 3). 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 15



 

 

4. Information and Analysis 
 
Integrated Reporting 
 
4.01 This report presents both Council Plan performance and financial 

budget monitoring and forecast outturn data. 
 
4.02 The Performance Summary sets out the progress the Council is making 

on delivering the Council Plan with a focus on the achievement of the 
Council Plan priorities. 

 
4.03 The Revenue Budget Position and Financial Summary provides an 

overview of the Council’s overall budget position and forecast outturn as 
at 31 December 2022. 

 
4.04 Appendices to this report summarise progress on Council Plan 

deliverables and the controllable budget position by Cabinet Member 
Portfolio for 2021-22 as at 31 December 2021.  Reports have been 
considered at Audit Committee and Cabinet in accordance with the 
Budget Monitoring Policy and Financial Regulations. 

 
Performance Summary 
 
4.05 The new Council Plan for 2021-25, which outlines the Council’s 

priorities, key deliverables and performance measures, was developed 
and approved by Council in March 2021.  

 
4.06 The performance report for Quarter 3 2021-22, which is attached at 

Appendix 3, sets out the progress the Council has made over the last 
quarter on each of the deliverables and key measures set out in the 
Council Plan.  

 
4.07 The Council is performing well in delivering the new Council Plan, with 

82% of the 66 deliverables in the Plan showing “Good” or “Strong” 
progress.  Only 15% have been rated as “Requiring Review” and two 
deliverables (3%) have been rated as “Requiring Action”.  Progress in 
delivering the Plan is shown in the graphic below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

 

Deliverable Progress  

 

 
4.08 The graphic below visualises the performance against target for each 

measure by priority.  For the 30 key measures where data for 2021-22 
against target is available, 12 have been rated as “Strong”, with a 
further six rated as “Good”, whilst three have been rated as “Requiring 
Review” and nine as “Requiring Action”. 
 

Page 67



 

 

Key Measures Against Target 

 
Performance by priority 
 
4.09 The resilient, healthy and safe communities priority shows overall 

‘Good’ performance for deliverables. Overall performance for measures 
is “Review”, however reporting on three of the five measures for this 
priority will not take place until Quarter 4 2021-22. 

 
4.10 Key areas of success include: 
 

Page 68



 

 

 “Making Our Move”, the ten-year physical activity plan for Derbyshire 
and Nottighamshire, has been launched. Several successful network 
sessions with representatives from around 50 different organisations 
have been held to promote the plan and secure buy in to identified 
actions.  

 Public Health is continuing to play an active role leading the Covid-
19 response and at the end of Quarter 3 had increased support due 
to the emerging Omicron variant and requirement to deliver the 
booster vaccine. 

 The Derbyshire Discretionary Fund has supported Derbyshire 
residents with 5,608 awards in Quarter 3 totalling around £600,000. 
There were 5,047 awards of Emergency Cash Payments; 225 
awards of Exceptional Pressure Grants; and 336 awards of Covid-19 
Support Payments. 

 The central hub of practitioners has continued to work successfully 
alongside people with a learning disability and/or are autistic to 
ensure an outcome focused support plan is in place and people 
continue to access support in the community. 
 

4.11 An area for consideration under this priority is as follows: 
 

 The new Covid variant has impacted the number of people with a 
learning disability and/or are autistic who are able to move to a 
more independent setting. The impact of the new variant will be 
more fully understood in Quarter 4. 

 
4.12 The high performing, value for money and resident focused services 

priority shows overall ‘Good’ performance for deliverables, however 
measures are rated as ‘Review’ overall. 

 
4.13 Key areas of success include: 
 

 The positive impact which continues to be seen from the changes 
that have been implemented across children’s early help and 
safeguarding services with improving practice consistency and solid 
performance across a range of performance measures. 
Strengthened case audit processes, Reflective Case Reviews, are 
demonstrating greater consistency in practice and improvements in 
delivery of services in children's social care. 

 Good progress is being made by all six of the workstreams of the 
Achieving Great Futures (AGF) programme. Trials within the 'Design 
Phase' are delivering positive impact with a number now being 
implemented more widely across Children's Services. 

Page 69



 

 

 As part of Phase One of the Channel Shift programme, 140 services 
have been made available online, double the target of 70. 

 Work is progressing on the programme to centralise the Council’s 
property assets with sales of £1.7 million during Quarter 3. 

 Work on Vision Derbyshire has progressed well with the new Joint 
Committee due to be initiated in January. 

 The Modern Ways of Working programme has progressed with the 
clearing of offices in County Hall ready for a phased return. 

 
4.14 Areas for consideration under this priority are as follows: 
 

 At Quarter 3, the projected achievement of budget savings for 2021-
22 is £13.280 million. Whilst this shows a slightly improved position 
from Quarter 2, projected savings are well below the target of 
£26.059m. The resulting base budget overspend is offset to some 
extent by one-off underspends, one-off funding from earmarked 
reserves and additional grant funding received. Where a department 
is unable to achieve the original saving, alternative saving proposals 
will be identified.  

 The number of approved fostering households remains below target 
this quarter. Whilst there are a number of fostering assessments in 
progress, this is not keeping pace with the number of foster families 
leaving the service for a variety of reasons including retirement and 
the impact of the pandemic on family life. Phase 1 of the Fostering 
Service Modernisation Programme is in progress and involves 
targeted intervention through the Achieving Great Futures 
Sufficiency Workstream to improve recruitment and retention, as well 
as the utilisation of foster placements. Whilst trials are proving 
positive, this is unlikely to deliver the increase in foster carer 
numbers in time to reach the end of March 2022 target. 

 The opportunity to improve performance on the percentage of pupils 
attending good or better schools is dependent on Ofsted's 
programme of school inspections. School inspections were 
suspended at the end of March 2020 due to Covid-19. Whilst graded 
school inspections resumed from 4 May 2021, the number of 
inspections completed since suspension remains small, limiting any 
significant improvement on the overall inspection figures. Since the 
re-starting of routine inspection activity, it is more challenging to 
predict when a school may be inspected but it is anticipated that 
inspection activity will be more prevalent in 2022-23 than in 2021-22. 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

 Satisfaction with Highways and Transportation services is at 53% as 
measured by the National Highways and Transportation Survey, 
compared to a national average of 54%. It should be noted, however 
that this survey was undertaken during June/July 2021 and will not 
reflect the response to the substantial investment and good progress 
made in delivering the local transport programme up to the end of 
the year. 

 The latest data on sickness absence show an increasing trend with 
average days lost to sickness per appointment up to 10.1 from 9.4 at 
Quarter 2 and above the year end target of 9 days. A working group 
is being set up to support departments in addressing this trend going 
forwards. 

 Whilst capital receipts from Council land and buildings up to end of 
December 2021 are ahead of target, some sales have been moved 
into 2022-23 so the year end figure is expected to be below target. 

 The medium and long-term organisation recovery and renewal 
strategy has been delayed by Covid-19 with work now rescheduled 
for completion in Quarter 4. 

 
4.15 The effective early help for individuals and communities priority shows 

overall ‘Good’ performance for both deliverables and measures. 
 
4.16 Key areas of success include: 
 

 The Domestic Abuse Support in Accommodation Strategy has 
been published. 

 Progress in developing an integrated approach to mental 
health services for adults continues to be good. Additional 
wellbeing advice regarding mental health and neurodiversity 
was launched on the Derby and Derbyshire Emotional Health 
and Wellbeing website this quarter. This is especially 
important throughout the autumn/winter period to ensure 
communities and individuals remain resilient. 

 Performance of Live Life Better Derbyshire services, which 
support people to stop smoking and lose weight ,continue to 
be strong, building on previously strong performance in 
Quarter 2. 

 The 'Pause Derbyshire' programme, aimed at supporting the 
needs of women who have had multiple children removed with 
the aim of preventing this cycle recurring, is delivering clear, 
measurable impact. 100% of the women who remained part of 
the first community have not had a further pregnancy 18 
months after starting the programme. Recruitment has started 
for the second community. 

Page 71



 

 

4.17 An area for consideration under this priority is as follows: 
 

 The shortage of available homecare has had an impact on both 
short term service performance and residential placements for 
older people and disabled people. The shortage of homecare is 
not unique to Derbyshire and is a national issue; an Adult Social 
Care plan has been drawn together and wider system work is 
under way to seek mitigations.  

 
4.18 The priority for a prosperous and green Derbyshire shows overall 

‘Good’ performance for both deliverables and measures. 
 
4.19 Key areas of success include: 
 

 Good progress is being made on the delivery of the Local 
Transport Programme with spend at the end of Quarter 3 
totalling £30.5 million. 

 The Woodville-Swadlincote Regeneration route opened to 
traffic at the end of Quarter 3, bringing opportunities for new 
housing, business development and land redevelopment. 

 The Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan was approved 
by Cabinet in October 2021.  

 £1.99m in funding has been secured from the Community 
Renewal Fund to support the Covid-19 Economic Recovery. 

 A new Careers Hub, which will support young people in South 
Derbyshire, was launched this quarter. 

 The Derbyshire Superfast Broadband programme is now 
complete and the target of 300 premises to be delivered under 
the final phase has been reached. 

4.20 Areas of consideration under this priority are as follows: 
 

 For the year to date, 77.8% of road defects have been 
completed within target timescales. Whilst this is below the 
target of 90%, latest figures show that the target was achieved 
for Quarter 3 with 90.3% of defects completed within target 
timescales. 

 Whilst the target for principal roads needing maintenance was 
not achieved, the targets for classified and unclassified roads 
needing maintenance were exceeded. The Council continues 
to deploy additional resources to address highway defects and 
deliver the capital programme for 2021-22, focusing on priority 
areas such as drainage improvements, carriageway and 

Page 72



 

 

footway surfacing and surface dressing. The road 
maintenance data is provided by an annual survey that takes 
place between April and June, therefore the data does not 
reflect work undertaken over the last six months 

 Whilst DCMS and suppliers continued to experience some 
delays with the Gigabit Voucher registration process, 
performance has improved towards the end of the quarter. 

 Key activity to improve social mobility is being identified, 
however, development of a new approach is reliant on 
additional capacity being made available through the Vision 
Derbyshire programme team. Work is taking place to address 
this. 

Revenue Outturn Summary 
 
4.21  The Council’s forecast outturn for 2021-22 as at Quarter 3 (31 

December 2022), compared to controllable budget, is summarised 
below.  The forecast outturn table shows the position net of the impact 
of the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £378.684m and 
Public Health grant of £42.607m, other ring-fenced grants and income 
from other third parties and their associated spend. 

 

Page 73



 

 

 
 
4.22 The Covid-19 pandemic is continuing to have a significant impact on the 

Council’s finances in 2021-22.  A summary of these impacts is provided 
at Appendix 16. 

 
4.23 An overall Council underspend of £15.737m is forecast, after 

accounting for use of £16.536m of non-ringfenced grant funding 
provided by the Department for Levelling Up Housing & Communities 
(DLUHC) to support local authorities with the impacts of the Covid-19 
pandemic.  This includes funding from: 

 compensation for lost sales, fees and charges income claimable 
under the Government scheme announced on 2 July 2020, which 
has been extended to 30 June 2021; and 

 Covid-19 emergency grants of £15.337m awarded in 2021-22 
and £11.248m awarded and brought forward from 2020-21. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

4.24 Of the forecast £11.911m portfolio overspend, the significant variances 
are an overspend of £4.770m overspend on the Adult Care portfolio, a 
£3.637m overspend on the Corporate Services and Budget portfolio, a 
£3.435m overspend on the Highways and Transport portfolio, a 
£2.796m overspend on the Children’s Services and Safeguarding and 
Education portfolios and a £1.716m underspend on the Health and 
Communities portfolio. 

 
4.25 The forecast £4.770m overspend on the Adult Care portfolio relates to 

Purchased Services costs driven by the number of new care packages 
required to be provided to assessed individuals. 

 
4.26 The forecast £3.637m overspend on the Corporate Services and 

Budget portfolio is mainly due to current and prior-year savings targets 
which are not expected to be achieved in 2021-22, relating to the 
Corporate Property function, running costs on buildings that are 
awaiting disposal and a delay in the implementation of the new Legal 
Services operating model. 

 
4.27 It is proposed to contribute £0.480m from the Finance & ICT services 

budget to an earmarked reserve to support the funding gap on the data 
centre to cloud transition programme and a further £0.040m to support 
the training requirements for the ICT Schools Traded Services function.  
These amounts have already been accounted for in the Corporate 
Services and Budget portfolio’s forecast outturn position.  It is further 
proposed that £0.050m is transferred to a reserve to support the 
modernisation of the ICT traded service function. 

 
4.28 The forecast £3.435m overspend on the Highways and Transport 

portfolio relates to the Winter Service budget, which doesn’t provide for 
more than a mild winter and to savings targets which have not yet been 
allocated to specific services. 

 
4.29 The forecast £2.796m overspend on the Children’s Services and 

Safeguarding and Education portfolios is primarily due to continued high 
demand for placements for children who are in care or unable to remain 
at home.  The needs of individual children and the availability of 
placements has also meant that there are an increased number of 
children who have been placed in both more expensive fostering 
arrangements and more expensive residential provision.  Other factors 
contributing to the overspend include the price and the number of 
journeys associated with transporting children with educational needs to 
school and the safeguarding costs of supporting a greater number of 
children in care and children and families in need. 

 

Page 75



 

 

4.30 The Council plans to support the Children’s Services and Safeguarding 
and Education portfolios through allocations of a combination of 
ongoing budget growth and one-off funding to put these services on a 
sustainable financial footing by the time mitigation measures are able to 
stabilise the demand pressures on looked after children.  Recent 
modelling suggests that demand is likely to level off by 2023-24. 

 
4.31 The forecast £1.716m underspend on the Health and Communities 

portfolio is due to additional funding for Prevention from the Public 
Health Grant towards Covid-19 mitigation responsibilities, additional 
contributions from Derby City Council towards Coroners’ cost and a 
temporary increase in wedding and other registration income following 
the easing of Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
4.32 There is a forecast underspend on corporate budgets in 2021-22.  The 

underspend on the Risk Management budget relates mainly to a 
contingency amount of £8m set aside to mitigate general risks arising 
from the current uncertain environment resulting from Covid-19 and 
£14m of additional non-ringfenced grants which were announced after 
the 2021-22 Revenue Budget was set.  An underspend on the Debt 
Charges budget is forecast as the portfolio of the Council’s long-term 
loans is repaid and interest on this debt reduces.  A favourable variance 
is forecast in the Interest and Dividends budget.  The Council utilises a 
range of investments to maximise its income on cash balances.  Interest 
income includes interest accrued on the loan advances to Buxton 
Crescent Ltd.  A small underspend on Corporate adjustments is 
forecast. 

 
4.33 The Council continues to look at ways to save money and generate 

income, whilst trying to protect and deliver services suitable for the 
residents of Derbyshire.  Significant consultation and planning 
timeframes are required to achieve many of these savings.  Delays in 
agreeing proposals could result in overspends by departments, which 
would then deplete the level of General Reserve held by the Council, 
decreasing its ability to meet short term, unforeseeable expenditure.  In 
many cases the proposals will be subject to consultation and equality 
analysis processes.  Progress against budget savings targets will be 
closely monitored, however there is a heightened risk of not achieving a 
balanced budget, as a result of both cost pressures and savings 
slippage as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.     

 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

 

4.34 The delivery of the Council’s Five Year Financial Plan (FYFP) is heavily 
dependent on an adequate level of General Reserve.  The need to 
maintain an adequate, risk assessed level of reserves has been a key 
part of the Council’s success in both maintaining its financial standing 
and continuing to deliver high quality services. 

 
4.35 The General Reserve stands at £43.193m at 31 December 2022.  

There are commitments against the General Reserve and the balance 
will be further reduced by the measures required to deliver the Council’s 
FYFP noted in paragraph 4.34 above.  In the Council’s 2022-23 
Revenue Budget Report, in a reasonable pessimistic forecast, the 
General Reserve was predicted to decrease to £9.522m.  The 
adequacy of the Council’s General Reserve balance is considered at 
paragraphs 4.60 and 4.61 below. 

 
Portfolio Costs 
 
4.36 There is a forecast Council portfolio overspend of £11.911m, after the 

use of DLUHC Covid-19 grant funding for Covid-19 related costs 
incurred in 2021-22.  The table at Appendix 16 shows the Covid-19 
related costs across the portfolios as £15.264m.  This is the forecast 
additional cost and lost income of the Council’s response up to the end 
of March 2022, including the impact of slippage to the planned 
programme of savings which cannot yet be implemented as a result.  
This amount allows for any specific funding to offset the gross Covid-19 
related costs which has already been forecast to be allocated to 
individual portfolios; these amounts are detailed in Appendix 16.  
Budget of £15.264m is forecast to be allocated to portfolios, from the 
emergency Covid-19 grant funding and the compensation for lost 
income from sales, fees and charges received from Government, to 
match these costs. 

 
4.37 Portfolio costs are explained in more detail in Appendices 4 to 11. 
 
Risk Management Budget 
 
4.38 There is a forecast underspend on the Risk Management Budget of 

£24.056m in 2021-22. 
 
4.39 The Risk Management Budget of £24.056m includes: 
 

 £11.404m of contingency funding set aside in the 2021-22 
Revenue Budget.  This comprises: 

o £8.391m general contingency; 
o £2.313m for a pay award; and 

Page 77



 

 

o £0.700m for 2021-22 County Council election costs that 
has been confirmed as not required. 

 £1.500m of one-off funding approved in the Council’s 2021-22 
Revenue Budget to pump prime the development of an Assistive 
Technology service.  These funds were returned unused from the 
Adult Care portfolio as the portfolio was able to alternatively 
finance this initiative from its underspend in 2020-21. 

 £14.009m of additional non-ringfenced grants that had not been 
announced when the 2021-22 Revenue Budget was approved by 
Council on 3 February 2021.  This comprises: 

o £6.000m Covid-19 Local Council Tax Support grant; 
o £3.294m Business Rates Relief grant; 
o £2.534m former Independent Living Fund grant; 
o £1.405m Extended Rights to Home to School Transport 

grant; 
o £0.520m Local Reform and Community Voices grant; 
o £0.162m War Pension Disregard grant; and 
o £0.094m Social Care in Prisons grant. 

 £0.585m of ongoing Transition Funding approved in the Council’s 
2020-21 Revenue Budget allocation for Demographic Growth, 
which had not been utilised by 31 March 2021, returned from the 
Adult Care portfolio. 

 Less: £3.243m adjustment for Business Rates income.  The 
amounts were finalised after the 2021-22 Revenue Budget was 
approved by Council on 3 February 2021. 

 Less: £0.200m adjustment to the Tax Income Guarantee grant 
estimated to be receivable.  This amount is not yet finalised. 

 
4.40 £2.313m of contingency funding for a pay award in 2021-22 has not yet 

been allocated as agreement with the unions is not expected to be 
reached until 2022, therefore it is proposed to add this to an earmarked 
reserve to contribute to funding the cost of any back-pay due when this 
arises 

 
Debt Charges 
 
4.41 The Debt Charges budget is forecast to be underspent by £1.675m in 

2021-22. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 

 

4.42 Debt charges are based on interest payments, the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) of 2.5% (in 
keeping with the policy reported to Cabinet on 22 November 2016) and 
a £7.000m one-off reduction in the Council’s Capital Adjustment 
Account Reserve.  This reduction is made on the basis that the amounts 
set aside to repay debt over the last ten years are well in excess of what 
is required to ensure the Council can repay its debts. 

 
4.43 On 15 April 2021 Cabinet approved to move the current storage and 

computer infrastructure to the cloud instead of previously proposed like-
for-like replacement of on-premise hardware.  Migration to the cloud 
necessitates a move away from capital funding to revenue funding.  
Therefore, it is proposed to reduce funding which has been approved in 
the Capital Programme by £2.175m and to make one-off virements of 
£0.435m from the Debt Charges budget to the Corporate Services and 
Budget portfolio in each of the five years 2021-22 to 2025-26.  

 
Interest and Dividend Income 
 
4.44 Interest and dividend income budgets are forecast to be underspent by 

£1.832m in 2021-22. 
 
4.45 The interest base rate rose from 0.10% to 0.25% on 16 December 

2021.  However, the Council utilises a range of investments, including 
pooled funds, to maximise its interest and dividend income on balances. 

 
4.46 A projected decrease of £0.572m in dividend income on the Council’s 

investments in pooled funds, compared to 2019-20, is forecast to be 
supported by the use of DLUHC Covid-19 grant funding.  Pooled fund 
investments have been held for the whole financial year to date. 

 
4.47 The interest rate on the loan to Buxton Crescent Ltd has been reduced 

in recognition of the fact that the revenues from Buxton Crescent hotel 
are expected to be significantly lower than anticipated because of the 
impacts of Covid-19.  The resulting decrease of £0.246m interest 
income accruing to this loan in 2021-22 is forecast to be funded using 
DLUHC Covid-19 grant funding. 

 
Corporate Adjustments 
 
4.48 There is a forecast underspend of £0.112m on Corporate Adjustments 

in 2021-22. 
 
 
 

Page 79



 

 

4.49 The interest income accruing to the loan to Buxton Crescent Ltd for the 
period April 2021 to July 2021 is expected to be written off in recognition 
of the fact that the revenues from Buxton Crescent hotel are expected 
to be significantly lower than anticipated because of the impacts of 
Covid-19.  This is forecasted to be funded using £0.086m of DLUHC 
Covid-19 grant funding.  

 
4.50 Only £0.632m of the allocated £1.000m savings target is forecast to be 

achieved by the Council paying its Local Government Pension Scheme 
employer contributions early.  This is because of the decision not to pay 
in advance all the contributions due for the entire period 2020-21 to 
2022-23, but rather to make separate early lump sum payments for 
each year over that period.  This decision was made in light of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, to preserve the Council’s liquidity of cash flow, 
amongst other considerations.  A sum of £0.368m of DLUHC Covid-19 
grant funding is forecast to be allocated to reimburse the cost of this 
savings target which can no longer be achieved. 

 
Budget Savings 
 
4.51 A summary of the achievement of budget savings targets is provided at 

Appendix 14.  The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £13.291m, with 
a further £12.768m target brought forward from previous years.  The 
savings initiatives identified to meet this target fall short by £8.956m, 
therefore further proposals will need to be brought forward to ensure the 
Council continues to balance its budget.  Of this total target of 
£26.059m, £13.280m is forecast to be achieved by the end of the 
financial year.  Therefore, there is a £12.779m forecast shortfall in 
achievement of budget savings.  The resulting base budget overspend 
is offset to some extent by one-off underspends, one-off funding from 
earmarked reserves and additional grant funding received. 

 
Debt Age Profile 
 
4.52 The age profile of debts owed to the Council and the value of debts 

written off is disclosed in Appendix 15.  This information is collected on 
a departmental rather than on a portfolio basis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

 

Earmarked Reserves 
 
4.53 Earmarked reserves are held to meet known or predicted liabilities and 

the funds should be used for the item for which they have been set 
aside. Any funds no longer required are returned to the General 
Reserve.  The Council reviews the level of earmarked reserves at least 
annually.  The last review of earmarked reserves took place in 
December 2021 and was reported to Cabinet on 24 January 2022. 

 
4.54 A summary of outstanding balances on the Council’s earmarked 

reserves as at 31 December 2021 is set out in Appendix 14. 
 
4.55 The Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic and its effects on the 

Council’s finances are expected to continue into 2021-22.  Any funding 
received to support Covid-19 impacts, which had not been utilised by  
31 March 2021, has been contributed to earmarked reserves or is held 
as a receipt in advance.  This will enable this funding to be used for 
relevant expenditure over the two-year period 2020-21 to 2021-22. 

 
4.56 It is proposed that any additional funding received to support Covid-19 

impacts, which has not been utilised by 31 March 2022, is contributed to 
earmarked reserves or is held as a receipt in advance.  This will enable 
this funding to be used for relevant expenditure into 2022-23. 

 
4.57 A register of funding available for use to meet Covid-19 related costs in 

2021-22 is disclosed in Appendix 16. 
 
General Reserve 
 
4.58 The General Reserve stands at £43.193m at 31 December 2021.  The 

level of General Reserve is £58.930m, after the forecast outturn for 
2021-22, which is 10% of the Council’s Net Budget Requirement for 
2021-22. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

 

General Reserve   

  £m 

Balance at 31 December 2021 43.193 

Projected Outturn 2021-22 15.737 

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2022 58.930 

    

Net Budget Requirement 2021-22 572.475 

    
General Reserve Balance as % of NBR at 31 Mar 
2022 10.29% 

 
4.59 The majority of chief financial officers consider an acceptable level of 

generally available reserves to be one that reflects a risk-based 
approach to potential liabilities.  A relatively crude measure is to expect 
the resulting figure to be between 3% to 5% of a council’s net spending, 
representing a prudent level of risk-based reserves.  As at  
31 December 2021, the figure for the Council stood at 8%, indicating a 
robust balance.  However, it is necessary to consider this indicator over 
the medium term to gain a better understanding of its adequacy. 

 
4.60 In the Council’s 2022-23 Revenue Budget Report, in a reasonable 

pessimistic forecast, the General Reserve was predicted to decrease to 
1.4% (£9.522m) of the Council’s Net Budget Requirement by 2026-27.  
It is recognised that the forecast General Reserve balance over the 
medium term is lower that would be preferred, therefore restorative 
measures will be utilised over the Five Year Financial Plan to build back 
up the balance of the General Reserve to a reasonable, risk assessed 
level. 

4.61 The Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
issued a letter in January 2022 highlighting opportunities for councils 
and communities to engage with the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee to 
support preparations.  The Council is planning to support a number of 
events which celebrate the jubilee.  It is proposed that a sum of 
£0.200m is allocated to support such events and activities, the costs of 
which will be met from the General Reserve.  Detailed proposals and 
costs will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Strategic Leadership, 
Culture, Tourism and Climate Change in due course.   

 
Portfolio Summaries 
 
4.62 A summary of each of the individual portfolio performance and outturn 

positions for 2021-22 is detailed in Appendices 4 to 11. 
 

Page 82



 

 

4.63 Whilst budgets are monitored by portfolio, the individual portfolios are 
not separate entities.  All the portfolios operate in conjunction with the 
others and it is important to consider the Council’s budgetary position as 
a whole in the context of its Five-Year Financial Plan and its overall 
level of reserves. 

 
Traded Services 
 
4.64 A trading area is where the Council receives income in return for 

providing discretionary services to external organisations and/or 
individuals. 

 
4.65 ‘Fully traded’ trading areas are separately identifiable and have a net 

controllable budget of £0, i.e. there is an expectation that on average all 
the controllable expenditure within this area will be funded from external 
income.  An overall contribution to general overheads of £0.382m is 
forecast for 2021-22 on fully traded areas across the Council as a 
whole. 

 
4.66 ‘Partially traded’ trading areas do not have a net controllable budget of 

£0, but they do receive income from external entities which contributes 
to funding some of the discretionary services they provide.  An overall 
shortfall of £0.213m compared to the budgeted income target is forecast 
for 2021-22 on partially traded areas across the Council as a whole. 

 
4.67 Appendix 12 summarises the financial performance of the separate 

trading areas. 
 
5. Consultation 
 
5.1 No consultation is required. 
 
6. Alternative Options Considered 
 
6.1 N/A – the Council is required to outline its forecast revenue outturn 

position to ensure compliance with good financial management 
principles and to support the development of short and medium-term 
financial planning.  Not producing a budget monitoring report would be 
contra to the Council’s Financial Regulations which requires the 
reporting of variances of income and expenditure against budget 
allocation to be reported to Cabinet in line with the Budget Monitoring 
Policy.   

 
 
 

Page 83



 

 

7. Implications 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the 

preparation of the report. 
 
8. Background Papers 
 
8.1 Performance papers held electronically by Policy & Research.  Finance 

papers held electronically by Financial Strategy, Finance & ICT. 
 
9. Appendices 
 
9.1 Appendix 1 – Implications 
 
9.2 Appendix 2 – Key to Performance Ratings 
 
9.3 Appendix 3 – Performance Report 2021-22 Council Overview 
 
9.4 Appendix 4 – Adult Care - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.5 Appendix 5 – Clean Growth and Regeneration - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.6 Appendix 6 – Corporate Services and Budget - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.7 Appendix 7 – Children’s Services and Safeguarding and Education - 

Portfolios Summary 
 
9.8 Appendix 8 – Health and Communities - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.9 Appendix 9 – Highways Assets and Transport - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.10 Appendix 10 – Infrastructure and Environment - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.11 Appendix 11 – Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate 

Change - Portfolio Summary 
 
9.12 Appendix 12 – Traded Services 
 
9.13 Appendix 13 – Earmarked Reserves 
 
9.14 Appendix 14 – Budget Savings Monitoring 2021-22 
 
9.15 Appendix 15 – Aged Debt 
 
9.16 Appendix 16 – Covid-19 Financial Impacts and Funding 

Page 84



 

 

10. Recommendations 
 
That Council:  
 
10.1 Notes the update of Council Plan performance and the Revenue Budget 

position/forecast outturn for 2021-22 as at 31 December 2021 (Quarter 
3). 

 

10.2 Notes the position on General and Earmarked Reserves.     
 
11. Reasons for Recommendations 
 
11.1 The forecast outturn report provides a summary of the expected overall 

financial performance and use of resources against the Council’s 
approved budget for the financial year 2021-22.  The outturn position 
supports the development of budgets in both the short and medium 
term.   

 
11.2 Performance information is important as it enables the Council and the 

public to see how well the Council is delivering services and where it 
needs to make improvements.  

 
11.3 The balance of both the General and Earmarked Reserves support 

good financial planning. 
 
12. Is it necessary to waive the call in period? 
 
12.1 No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

 

Report Authors:    Contact details: 
Sam Holmes    Samuel.Holmes@derbyshire.gov.uk 
Eleanor Scriven    Eleanor.Scriven@derbyshire.gov.uk 
Matthew Walters    Matthew.Walters@derbyshire.gov.uk 
 
 
This report has been approved by the following officers: 
 
 

On behalf of: 
 
Director of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Director of Finance and ICT 
Managing Director 
 

 

Page 86

mailto:Samuel.Holmes@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:Eleanor.Scriven@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Walters@derbyshire.gov.uk


Appendix 1   

 

 
Implications 
 
Financial  
 
1.1  As outlined in the body of the report. 
 
Legal 
 
2.1 None. 
 
Human Resources 
 
3.1 None. 
 
Information Technology 
 
4.1 None. 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
5.1 None.  
 
Corporate objectives and priorities for change 
 
6.1 The Council Plan values commit to spending money wisely, making the 

best use of the resources that the Council has.   
 
6.2  The Covid-19 pandemic has increased the financial uncertainty for all 

local authorities.  The Council is committed to ensuring that it sets a 
balanced budget over the medium-term, therefore ensuring good 
financial management and use of reserve balances to meet the costs of 
any unforeseeable events arising from the pandemic.   

 
Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability, 
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding) 
 
7.1 None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 87



Appendix 2 

  

Key to Performance Ratings 
 

 Strong Good Review Action Unknown 

Council Plan 
Deliverables 
 

On track or 
complete with 
outcomes 
exceeding 
expectations 
/requirements. 

On track or 
complete with 
outcomes in line 
with expectations/ 
requirements. 

Some risk to 
achieving 
timetable and/or 
outcomes. 

Unlikely to 
achieve timetable 
and/or not 
delivering 
required 
outcome. 

Data measuring 
the performance 
of these 
deliverables 
continues to be 
suspended due to 
Covid-19. 

Council Plan 
Measures 
 

More than 5% 
better than target. 

Less than 5% 
better than target 
but not less than 
2% worse than 
target. 

Between 2% and 
10% worse than 
target. 

More than 10% 
worse than 
target. 

No data received 
or no target set. 

Service Lines 
Outturn 
 

 Outturn below 
budget. 

Outturn less than 
or equal to 2% 
over budget. 

Outturn more 
than 2% over 
budget. 

 

Portfolio Outturn 
 

 Outturn  
below budget. 

 Outturn over 
budget. 

 

Budget Savings 
 

 Forecast savings 
better than target. 

 Forecast savings 
worse than 
target. 

 

 

P
age 88



Appendix 3 

 

il Plan Perfor mance R eport Quarter 2 2021- 22 

  

Derbyshire  
County Council 
 

Page 89



Appendix 3 

 

Council Plan  Performance R eport Qu 

Page 90



Appendix 3 

 

Council Plan  Performance R eport Quarter  3 2021Contents  

Contents ....................................................................................................... 27 

Introduction ................................................................................................... 28 

Deliverable Overview ................................................................................... 30 

Key Measure Overview ................................................................................ 31 

Key Measures Updated for Quarter 3 2021-22 ............................................ 32 

Performance – Trend over Time .................................................................. 34 

Deliverables and Measures rated as “Requiring Action” .............................. 34 

Headline Initiatives ....................................................................................... 36 

Resilient, healthy and safe communities ...................................................... 38 

High performing, value for money and resident focused services ............... 44 

Effective early help for individuals and communities.................................... 57 

A prosperous and green Derbyshire ............................................................ 65 

Notes ............................................................................................................ 76 

Key ............................................................................................................... 77 

Page 91



Appendix 3 

 

 

Introduction 

Welcome to the Council’s performance report on the Council Plan 2021-25, for 
Quarter 3 2021-22. The Council Plan sets out the direction of the Council and 
what we are working to achieve on behalf of our residents. At the heart of our 
Plan is ensuring we provide maximum value for money for the council tax our 
residents pay, by delivering the most efficient and effective services we can. 
Our key priorities are: 

 Resilient, healthy and safe communities; 
 High performing, value for money and resident focused services; 
 Effective early help for individuals and communities; 
 A prosperous and green Derbyshire. 

For each priority we have identified a set of key deliverables and performance 
measures which we will focus on to meet our priorities.  

Reporting Performance 
Progress on our Council Plan deliverables and key measures is set out on the 
following pages. To give a clear indication of performance, the following 
categories are used: 

Category Deliverables Measures Council Response 

 Strong On track or 
complete with 
outcomes 
exceeding 
expectations 

More than 5% 
better than target 
(2% better than 
target if the target is 
greater than 95%) 

Continue to 
monitor. Celebrate 
and learn from 
success 

 Good On track or 
complete with 
outcomes in line 
with expectations 

Between 5% better 
or 2% worse than 
target 

Continue to 
monitor. Celebrate 
and learn from 
success 

 Review Some risk to 
achieving 
timetable and/or 
outcomes   

More than 2% 
worse than target 

Keep under review 
to ensure 
performance is 
brought 
back/remains on 
track 

 Action Unlikely to achieve 
timetable and/or to 
deliver required 
outcome 

More than 10% 
worse than target 

Additional action 
will be/is being 
taken to bring 
performance back 
on track 

 

Page 92



Appendix 3 

 

We would welcome your feedback on the report as part of our commitment to 
continually improve what we do and how we serve the people of Derbyshire. 
Please tell us what you think at:  haveyoursay@Derbyshire.gov.uk 

Page 93

mailto:haveyoursay@Derbyshire.gov.uk


Appendix 3 

 

Deliverable Overview 

Good progress has been made in delivering the Council Plan during Quarter 3 
2021-22. Of the 66 deliverables in the Plan, 76% have been rated as 'Good', 
with a further 6% rated as 'Strong'. Only 15% have been rated as 'Requiring 
Review' and 3% as 'Requiring Action'. A graphical representation of the 
Council’s performance for Quarter 3 against its priorities (inner wheel) and 
deliverables (outer wheel) is below. The colours in each segment show the 
progress the Council is making during 2021-22.  
 

Page 94



Appendix 3 

 

Key Measure Overview 

A set of key measures have also been developed to enable the Council to 
further monitor the progress it is making by reporting performance against 
targets. The colours in each segment of the wheel below show the Council’s 
success in achieving its performance targets. Of the 30 key measures with 
data at this point in the year, 12 have been rated as 'Strong', with a further 6 
rated as 'Good'. Only 3 have been rated as 'Requiring Review' and 9 as 
'Requiring Action'. Measures which are grey currently have no data available 
for 2021-22. 

Page 95



  

 

Key Measures Updated for Quarter 3 2021-22 

The following measures have been updated during Quarter 3: 

Key Measure Date Actual Target Performance 

Number of people with a learning disability and/or who are autistic 
with an outcome focused support plan 

Dec-2021 352 270 
 

Strong 

Number of people with a learning disability and/or who are autistic 
supported to move from 24-hour residential care to more 
independent supported living setting 

Dec-2021 32 48 
 

Acti on 

Percentage of pupils in ‘Good’ or better primary schools Dec-2021 82.1% 84.0% 
 

Review 
Percentage of pupils in ‘Good’ or better secondary schools Dec-2021 56.9% 68.0% 

 
Acti on 

Percentage of Council run children’s homes rated as ‘Good’ or 
‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted 

Dec-2021 100.0% 91.0% 
 

Strong 

Number of approved fostering households Dec-2021 291 350 
 

Acti on 
Percentage of children’s social care reflective case review 
judgements rated as ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ 

Dec-2021 77.0% 70.0% 
 

Strong 

Early help assessments completed within 45 days Dec-2021 97.3% 91.0% 
 

Strong 
Social work assessments completed within 45 days Dec-2021 89.6% 91.0% 

 
Good 

Initial child protection conferences within 15 days Dec-2021 89.1% 87.0% 
 

Good 
Percentage of children returning home after a period in care Dec-2021 15.4% 16.0% 

 
Review 

Percentage of residents satisfied overall with Highways and 
Transportation services 

Dec-2021 53.0% 57.0% 
 

Review 

Number of services accessed via e-forms on the Council websites Dec-2021 140 80 
 

Strong 
Employee sickness absence (Council, not including schools) Nov-2021 4.9%  

 

Unknown 

Average number of days lost per appointment to sickness 
(Council, not including schools) 

Dec-2021 10.1 9.0 
 

Acti on 

Amount of money raised from the disposal of land and buildings Dec-2021 £2,783,000 £2,037,500 
 

Strong 
Projected achievement of budget savings Dec-2021 £13.280m  £26.059m  

 
Acti on 

Number of participants in Council delivered stop smoking 
programmes who stop smoking 

Dec-2021 1,257 900 
 

Strong 

Number participants in Council weight management programmes 
who achieve 5% weight loss 

Dec-2021 227 171 
 

Strong 

Number of older people and disabled people able to access short 
term assistance to regain or increase independence 

Dec-2021 2,301 2,691 
 

Acti on 

P
age 96



  

 

Key Measure Date Actual Target Performance 

Number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing 
homes 

Dec-2021 506 699 
 

Strong 

Number of people with social care needs receiving Assistive 
Technology 

Dec-2021 660 450 
 

Strong 

Total amount of expenditure on the delivery of the Local Transport 
Programme 

Dec-2021 £30.500m £30.000m 
 

Good 

Percentage of Principal roads where maintenance should be 
considered 

Dec-2021 15.2% 13.0% 
 

Acti on 

Percentage of Non-principal classified roads where maintenance 
should be considered 

Dec-2021 19.6% 23.0% 
 

Strong 

Percentage of Unclassified road network where maintenance 
should be considered 

Dec-2021 29.9% 31.0% 
 

Good 

Percentage of defects completed within target Dec-2021 77.8% 90.0% 
 

Acti on 
Percentage of 16 to 17 year olds in education, employment or 
training (3 month avg) 

Nov-2021 78.0% 96.0% 
 

Acti on 

 

 

1.1.1 Key Measures with new data for Quarter 2 2021-22 
The following measures have been updated during Quarter 3: 

Key Measure Date Actual Target Performance 

Percentage of identified pregnant women receiving an antenatal 
contact 

Sep-2021 92.4% 93.0% 
 

Good 

Percentage of infants receiving a new baby review between 10-14 
days 

Sep-2021 98.8% 94.0% 
 

Strong 

Percentage of pupils achieving a standard pass (grades 4-9) in 
English and Maths at GCSE 

Aug-2021 71.6% 72.2% 
 

Good 

P
age 97



  

 

 

 

Performance – Trend over Time 

 Deliverables Measures 

 

 

The following deliverables have been completed: 

 Carried out reviews of Human Resources and Finance functions to further improve these services and make savings; 

 Developed and approved the Council’s People Strategy and associated people priorities, encompassing the Council’s people vision, employee 
values and behaviours; 

 Developed a needs assessment and strategy to improve arrangements for tackling domestic violence and supporting victims. 

Deliverables and Measures rated as “Requiring Action” 

Number of people with a learning disability and/or who are autistic supported to move from 24-hour residential care to 
more independent supported living setting 

 

In the year to December 2021, 32 people with a learning disability and /or who are autistic were supported, against a target of 48. The programme 
remains behind target due to the restrictions concerning Covid-19. As these have eased progress was being made however the impact of the new 
variant will be more fully understood in Quarter 4. 

 Jun 2021 Sep 2021 Dec 2021 Mar 2022 
 Strong 3 2 4  

 Good
 52 54 50  

 Review
 6 8 10  

 Action
 1 2 2  

 

 Jun 2021 Sep 2021 Dec 2021 Mar 2022 
 Strong 4 9 12  

 Good
 5 5 6  

 Review
 2 3 3  

 Action
 3 7 9  

 

 Jun 2021 Sep 2021 Dec 2021 Mar 2022 

Improving N/A 3 3  

No Change N/A 52 58  

Declining N/A 7 3  

Completed 0 2 3  
 

 Jun 2021 Sep 2021 Dec 2021 Mar 2022 

Improving N/A 2 2  

No Change N/A 12 23  

Declining N/A 5 5  
 

P
age 98



  

 

Percentage of pupils in 'Good' or better secondary schools 
 

Although there has been a small increase since last quarter from 55.0% to 56.9%, the percentage of children attending  Derbyshire secondary schools 
which are 'good' or 'outstanding' is still below the target of 68% and lower than the national average. Schools continue to be well supported. Locality 
meetings led by senior advisers this quarter have continued to focus on improving the implementation of the curriculum. 

Number of approved fostering households 
 

The 291 approved fostering households at the end of Quarter 3 is below the end of year target of 350. Specific actions to improve our performance 
during the last quarter include the work completed through the Achieving Great Futures Sufficiency Workstream to improve recruitment and retention as 
well as the utilisation of foster care placements. These have included improved monitoring of fostering enquiries, improved data on vacancies and the 
trialling of various initiatives such as 'support to stay' conversations with foster carers considering leaving the service. 

Developed a medium and long-term organisational recovery and renewal strategy to address the challenges and 
opportunities presented by Covid-19 

 

Covid-19 has delayed the start of this workstream and the intended completion date of September 2021 has been missed. Work has been rescheduled 
and is now due to be complete by the end of Quarter 4. 

Average number of days lost per appointment to sickness (Council, not including schools) 
 

The number of days lost to sickness per appointment has risen to 10.1 in Quarter 3 from 9.4 in Quarter 2. A working group is being set up to support 
departments to manage this and work towards achieving the target of 9 days. 

Kept on track to achieve all planned budget savings in the medium term 
 

The projected achievement of budget savings of £13.280m at Quarter 3 is still well below the target of £26.059m. The resulting base budget overspend 
is offset to some extent by one-off underspends, one-off funding from earmarked reserves and additional grant funding received.  Where a department is 
unable to achieve the original saving, alternative saving proposals must be identified.  

Number of older people and disabled people able to access short term assistance to regain or increase independence 
 

In the year to December 2021, 2,301 people accessed short-term assistance against a target of 2,691. There is a national shortage of homecare; an 
Adult Social Care action plan has been drawn together and wider system work is under way to seek mitigations.  

Percentage of Principal roads where maintenance should be considered 
 

Maintenance should be considered for 15.2% of principal roads, against a target of 13%. The Council continues to deploy additional resources for road 
maintenance, focusing on priority areas such as drainage improvements, carriageway and footway surfacing and surface dressing. Targets for the 
percentage of classified and unclassified roads where maintenance should be considered have been achieved. The annual survey is undertaken 
between April and June and therefore the results do not reflect the investment and work undertaken over the last six months. The results from the survey 
are being factored into the development of Forward Programmes. 

P
age 99



  

 

Percentage of defects completed within target 
 

77.8% of defects completed were completed within target for the year to date at the end of Quarter 3. Within Quarter 3, a total of 4,056 defects were 
fixed with 90.3% of defects being completed within target, which meets the 90% target set.  

Percentage of 16 to 17 year olds in education, employment or training (3 month avg) 
 

78% of 16 to 17 year olds were in employment, education or training at the end of November 2021, compared to an end of year target of 96%. This 
indicator has a strong seasonal pattern in outcomes. Performance at this point in the year is better than the same point last year when 72% of 
Derbyshire young people were confirmed as being in education, employment or training. 

Headline Initiatives 

The following activity in support of our headline initiatives has taken place over this quarter – we have: 

 

 

 Delivered £9.5m of expenditure on the Local Transport Programme 
making a total of £30.5m for the year so far; 

 Completed work to rectify 4,056 road defects making a total of 15,640 for 
the year so far. 

Economic and 
community recovery 
from Covid-19 

 Made £250,000 payments to providers in each district area in Derbyshire 
to ensure adequate infrastructure capacity to support volunteering; 

 Released £25,000 of funds available via grants from the Covid-19 
Response Fund; 

 Issued seven contracts totalling £8,853 to support scholarships to retrain 
in the field of alternative energy; 

 Secured £1.99m in funding from the Government's Community Renewal 
Fund to support Covid-19 economic recovery in Derbyshire. 

Well maintained roads 
and sustainable 
methods of travel 

P
age 100



  

 

 

 

 

 

 Published the new Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan; 

 Commissioned work to assess Electric Vehicle demand over the next 5 to 
10 years. 

 Worked with people with a learning disability or who are autistic to put in 
place 352 new outcome focused plans so far this year; 

 Exceeded quality and timeliness targets for the 4 key measures relating to 
consistent, high quality early help and safeguarding services for children; 

 Provided 224 people with assistive technology to support independent 
living, making a total of 660 people supported so far this year. 

 Approved a detailed programme plan for organisational support for the 
Thriving Communities programme; 

 Produced a programme of activity for January to April 2022; 

 Set foundations to support locality staff to deliver the approach. 

 Commenced on Risk Profiling of departments so appropriate resources 
and support can be provided; 

 Continued to progress the Modern Ways of Working programme; 

 Developed a working group to examine how best to support departments 
to manage absence. 

Taking action on 
climate change 

Transformation of 
social care 

Thriving Communities 

Employees' wellbeing 
and potential 

P
age 101



  

 

Resilient, healthy and safe communities 

1.1.2 Overview 

This priority shows overall “Good” progress for deliverables however measures are rated as “Review” based on 2 rated 
measures. 

 Deliverable Progress Key Measures 

   

P
age 102



  

 

1.1.3 Progress on our deliverables and key measures 

1.1.3.1 Worked with communities in a further 8 areas across the county as part of the Thriving Communities 
programme, listening to and understanding their needs and working together to ensure they thrive 

 

Rating: Good (Review in Q2) Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The pandemic has slowed down progress in identifying and taking forward work in 
new areas, however the establishment of the Thriving Communities Board has 
ensured that progress and activity are being driven forward. 
Due to the restrictions and impact on working arrangements caused by Covid-19 
throughout the year the number of new areas has been scaled back for this year 
however overall progress has been good. 
The Thriving Communities Board, bringing together representatives from across the 
Council departments has continued to keep the pace of the work moving with a 
session held on 29 October 2021 setting the brief for organisational support of the 
approach and approval of a detailed programme plan at its session on 3 December 
2021. A programme of activity for January to April 2022 has been produced, which 
includes inductions for new staff throughout January, tools and resources and a 
series of follow up learning sessions to help the system learn how it can better 
support communities to thrive. 
Community activity at the hyper-local level continues to be predominantly led by 
community members and groups, as the majority of services operate online services 
and working from home arrangements. Additionally, the Government's 
announcement in this period to reduce physical contact as cases of the Omicron 
variant increase, places additional difficulty in building relationships and Thriving 
Communities activity in community settings. However, progress has been made to strengthen Connected Teams locally, both in existing and new areas 
with strategic director and manager support allocated to all localities. 
During this period the foundations have been set to support locality staff to deliver the approach locally and dynamically share experiences within the 
system to bring about radical changes in policy and practice. 
The responses to three of the questions in the Your Council Your Voice survey carried out in Quarter 3 are being  analysed to give an indication of 
experience within Thriving Community Areas and will be reported in Quarter 4.  
 

Residents can i nfluence decisi ons (TC Areas)  

2019-2020 51.1% 

2020-2021 54.5% 

Target 20-21 58.0% 

2021-2022 Due in Q4 

Target 21-22 55.0% 
 

Residents have peopl e around them to avoid a crisis (TC Areas)  

2019-2020 64.2% 

2020-2021 83.6% 

Target 20-21 70.0% 

2021-2022 Due in Q4 

Target 21-22 70.0% 
 

Residents have given unpaid help (TC  Ar eas)  

2019-2020 33.1% 

2020-2021 35.7% 

Target 20-21 32.0% 

2021-2022 Due in Q4 

Target 21-22 36.0% 
 

P
age 103



  

 

1.1.3.2 Worked with partners through the Active Derbyshire network to increase the number of people in 
local communities taking part in physical activity, including reviewing and updating the Derbyshire Cycle 
Plan 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

'Making Our Move' the 10 year physical activity plan has been launched with several successful network sessions with representatives from around 50 
different organisations. The Walk Derbyshire project is well into the planning stage with a start date of January 2022. 
The Council's Key Cycle Network continues to be developed as part of the Council's Capital Programme with feasibility studies underway  looking at the 
viability of the Derwent Valley Cycleway and key sections, in and around Buxton as part of the White Peak Loop. 

1.1.3.3 Provided support to people and communities in need, including financial help from our discretionary 
fund, and support for those affected by flooding 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Flood team continue to work with communities affected by flooding including supporting Flood Warden Groups. Small amounts of funding have 
been awarded to Flood Warden Groups to assist in the their activities (eg PPE, small tools and equipment etc). 
The Derbyshire Discretionary Fund has supported Derbyshire residents with 5,608 awards in Quarter 3 totalling around £600,000. There were 5,047 
awards of Emergency Cash Payments; 225 awards of Exceptional Pressure Grants; and 336 awards of Covid-19 Support Payments.  
Household Support Grant funding has been used to support expanded provision of Emergency Cash Payments and Exceptional Pressure Grants, 
allowing an increase in the number of awards made and the value of the awards. The 5,047 Emergency Cash Payment awards include 2,057 awards 
from the Household Support Fund, which do not count towards the maximum amount of Emergency Cash Payments an applicant is allowed to receive 
from the Fund. 
In October 2021 the Council received notification it would receive £5.4m in funding from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) Household 
Support Fund (HSF) to provide financial support to households in Derbyshire who were struggling to pay for food, energy and essential living costs over 
the winter. In Quarter 3 of 2021-22, HSF was used to award direct cash grants to 2,333 households facing financial hardship. 2,057 of these were 
awarded via the existing Derbyshire Discretionary Fund scheme, with another 276 awarded via a newly created route for Children's Professionals to 
award grants to families in need. Funds were also used to support young people who have recently left care pay for food, energy and essential living 
costs in the quarter. 
£1.6m from the fund were awarded to District and Borough Councils within Derbyshire to address housing and homelessness related hardship, with 
each of the 8 districts to receive at least £200k from the fund over the grant period (up to 31 March 2022). Work is ongoing to collate a full and clear 
picture of the spending of all elements of the fund distribution up to 31 December 2021, with an interim report due to be submitted to the DWP by 21 
January 2022. This will allow the Council to assess the success of the distribution plans in Quarter 3 and make any adjustments needed to ensure the 
funds are utilised in the most effective way to meet local need in Quarter 4 and minimise underspend.  Additional plans in Quarter 4 include distributing 
food vouchers to families of children eligible for benefit related free school meals, children in an early years setting receiving the Pupil Premium and care 
leavers aged up to 21, and funding to community organisations such as food banks. 
The Council's Department For Education funded Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) programme was delivered over the Christmas school holiday period. 
Our winter HAF programme funded 50 delivery partners, creating over 19,000 places across 80 delivery sites. Healthy meals and a varied selection of 
activities, such as pantomime trips, breakfasts with Santa, discos and sport and gym sessions were targeted at families of the 27,000 children in receipt 

P
age 104



  

 

of benefit related free school meals. The Council's mapping system used on the website to advertise provision was reported to cause issues for some 
users and alternative solutions are being identified for future HAF provision. Close consultation with our Public Health team ensured all delivery was 
delivered as safely as possible amidst the impact of the huge spike in Covid-19 infections. We are currently gathering attendance data from the winter 
HAF programme and the data are being analysed, at present it is unclear to what extent Covid-19 has affected attendance at our winter HAF sessions. 
Planning is also underway for the 2022-23 HAF programme. 
There have been no instances of flooding hardship this quarter. 

1.1.3.4 Put in place a new Equality and Diversity Strategy, setting out priority actions the Council will take to 
reduce discrimination and tackle inequalities 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Work to develop the initial draft Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy is on track. Public consultation on the draft Strategy is taking place during 
December 2021 - January 2022 with plans to approve the final draft Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy for adoption by March 2022. 

1.1.3.5 Provided targeted support to protect residents who are most susceptible to scams, fraud and 
financial abuse 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Officers have responded to over 600 referrals from the National Trading Standards Scams team, and other local partners. 244 residents have received 
one-to-one support to help protect them from scams and fraud. Where a client has been a victim, officers have intervened with banks and other 
businesses to seek compensation. Officers have continued to install call blocker devices for those who are most vulnerable. These produce an effective 
block on nuisance calls. 

1.1.3.6 Provided green grants to community projects to support investment in sustainable and green 
community activity 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Council has developed a new funding approach for the sector and a report outlining this new way of working will be taken to Cabinet in January for 
the 2022 and 2023 period. This report sets out the focus of the Council's grant funding priorities over the forthcoming year, which includes investing in 
local people and communities to create opportunities for them to adapt, develop and grow. 
This new approach has been outlined through the development of a new grant funding Prospectus, which supports the Council to provide grants which 
promote positive behaviours for young people and residents, improve local networks, help people to feel safer, and encourage sustainable and green 
activity. 
This funding will enable groups and communities to access resources to make their communities better places, whilst also delivering on the ambitions 
outlined in the Council Plan. 

P
age 105



  

 

1.1.3.7 Supported more Derbyshire people to volunteer to help their communities, learning from and 
building on the remarkable response to the Covid-19 pandemic 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Sep 2022 

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) infrastructure providers across the county have been a vital source of support in mobilising volunteers and the 
wider sector to assist with response and recovery efforts and support residents. To ensure that there is adequate VCS infrastructure in place to provide 
ongoing support to Covid-19 the Council has made an additional £250,000 payment to providers for twelve months, per district area in Derbyshire, this 
will be used to support adequate infrastructure capacity including funding to volunteer centres, understanding COVID volunteer needs and promote 
volunteering. Agreement on the allocation of these resources will take place in January 2022. 
At its meeting on 6 December 2021, Cabinet also agreed to maintain all existing grant allocations to VCS infrastructure organisations, until March 2023. 
This includes an additional £100,000 for providers compared to pre-pandemic levels. Whilst this is allocated across infrastructure support, one key 
objective of this provision is the recruitment and management of volunteers. 
The Council has also developed a new funding framework for the sector and a report outlining this new approach will be taken to Cabinet in January for 
the 2022 and 2023 period. This report sets out the focus of the Council's grant funding priorities over the forthcoming year, which includes investing in 
local people and communities to create opportunities for them to adapt, develop and grow. 
This funding will enable groups and communities to access resources to make their communities better places, whilst also delivering on the priorities 
outlined in the Council Plan. This should give charities, social enterprises, community groups and community minded organisations to opportunity to 
mobilise local people, increase civic participation and deliver community identified priorities. 
There is also a need to investigate whether the Council should develop a whole Council approach to volunteering, for example through a volunteering 
strategy for example. Work will be taking place over the coming months to scope out this work and understand the Council's drivers for such an 
approach given the broad spectrum of activity that falls under the volunteering banner. 

1.1.3.8 Worked with partners and supported individuals, communities and businesses who have been 
impacted by the pandemic 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Public Health continues to work alongside local partners and the Local Resilience Forum to support communities to manage the ongoing impacts of the 
pandemic, including in relation to the Omicron strain which will have a significant impact in the last few weeks of this quarter. The Community 
Champions network has been extended for a further 12 months and we continue to work with communities across the county to provide preventative 
advice about Covid-19 and also ensure we encourage people to come forward for their first, second, third and booster vaccines as appropriate. The 
Covid-19 Response Fund is still operational and around £25,000 of funding has been released in the last quarter via grants of up to either £250 or £2000 
depending on the size and nature of the organisation applying. We continue to work with partners to provide mental health support to individuals who are 
at risk of feeling isolated. We have also written to all residents previously identified as clinically extremely vulnerable to provide them with advice about 
winter wellbeing and warmth. The Winter pressures hub continues to operate and receive referrals from professionals working in the health and social 
care sector. 

P
age 106



  

 

1.1.3.9 Worked with people with learning disabilities and/ or who are autistic to develop Council services to 
ensure they are tailored to meet individuals needs and help people achieve their personal goals 

 

Rating: Review (Good in Q2) Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2023 

During Quarter 3 there has been a continued focus on the Better Lives programme 
of work. The central team of practitioners continue to work actively with people with 
a learning disability or who are autistic. Of these people 352 have a new outcome 
focused plan in place; with 190 people choosing to take up an alternative community 
opportunity and the community connection service is currently working alongside 74 
people. 9 building based day centres are now open and 111 people have chosen to 
access only this service. Attendance remains limited due to capacity constraints to 
ensure the offer remains Covid-19 secure. Further progress has been made to 
support people with a learning disability to move from a short term residential 
placement to a supported living long term home within local communities. 32 people 
have moved so far which, although this remains below target, there are plans in 
place for a further 15 people to move, although a number of these moves are likely 
to take place after April 2022.  
 

1.1.3.10 Transferred a minimum of 5 libraries to community management, engaging and involving 
communities in the development of a cost-efficient library service 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Oct 2024 

Woodville Library transferred to Community Management on 21 August 2021. The Library Service has received Expression of Interest and Business 
Case applications for a further 3 libraries to be transferred: Old Whittington, Wingerworth and Melbourne. Expressions of Interest have also been 
received for Tideswell and Etwall Libraries. Four libraries at Hayfield, Whaley Bridge, Borrowash and Duffield have withdrawn from the process. The 
Library Strategy was relaunched in September 2021 to help drive renewed community interest in the transfer scheme. 

1.1.3.11 Finalised the review of voluntary and community sector grants and established a consistent 
approach to future funding to support the sector to recover well, grow and thrive 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Review of recurring grants has been finalised and the proposed approach was outlined in a report to Cabinet on 6 December 2021 for public 
consultation. Consultation on the proposed approach was launched on 22 December 2022 for a period of thirteen weeks. A further report on the 
Council's proposed grants Prospectus and framework will be considered by Cabinet on 13 January 2022. This will include plans to launch a new 
outcomes-based grants programme by the end of January 2022. 

Peopl e with a l ear ning disability with a support  pl an 

2021-2022 352 

Target 270 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Peopl e with a l ear ning disability movi ng fr om 24-hour care 

2021-2022 32 

Target 48 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
 

P
age 107



  

 

High performing, value for money and resident focused services 

1.1.4 Overview 

This priority shows overall “Good” progress for deliverables however measures are rated as “Review” based on 14 rated 
measures. 

 Deliverable Progress Key Measures 

   

P
age 108



  

 

1.1.5 Progress on our deliverables and key measures 

1.1.5.1 Worked with schools to ensure that the percentage of children in Derbyshire schools which are 
‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ is in line with the national average 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2025 

Graded school inspections resumed from 4 May 2021. The number of inspections 
completed since the Covid-19 suspension remains small limiting any significant 
improvement on the overall inspection figures. At the end of December 2021, 82.1% 
of pupils in Derbyshire were attending primary schools that were judged to be good 
or outstanding. This is slightly above the 81.6% at the end of Quarter 2 and remains 
below the national average of 88.9% placing Derbyshire as the 135th ranked local 
authority nationally. The percentage of secondary aged pupils attending schools 
judged to be good or better in Derbyshire was 56.9% at the end of December which 
is slightly above the 55% at the end of Quarter 2. Performance remains significantly 
below the national average (80.7%) with Derbyshire ranked 141st nationally. 
The timing of inspections for an individual school depends on the findings of its 
previous inspection. However, since the re-starting of routine inspection activity, it is 
more challenging to predict when a school may be inspected but we anticipate that 
inspection activity will be more prevalent in 2022-23 than in 2021-22.  
Since September 2021,13 maintained schools have been inspected. Of these: 

 1 school previously judged as outstanding has been notified at their most recent 
section 8 inspection that the next inspection will be a section 5 inspection to check whether the school is still an outstanding school; 

 6 schools previously judged as good have been confirmed by Ofsted as remaining good; 

 1 school previously judged as good has been notified at their most recent section 8 inspection that the next inspection will be a section 5 inspection 
to check whether the school is still a good school; 

 schools previously judged as Requiring Improvement have now been judged as good; 

 schools previously judged as Requiring Improvement have been judged to be still Requiring Improvement. 

Schools continue to be well supported. Locality meetings led by senior advisers this quarter have continued to focus on improving the implementation of 
the curriculum.  
 

Pupils i n ‘Good’ or better  pri mar y schools  

2019-2020 80.7% 

2020-2021 81.2% 

2021-2022 82.1% 

Target 84.0% 

Performance 
 

Review 
National 
Benchmark 

88.9% 

 

Pupils i n ‘Good’ or better  secondar y schools  

2019-2020 54.9% 

2020-2021 55.0% 

2021-2022 56.9% 

Target 68.0% 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
National 
Benchmark 

80.7% 

 

P
age 109



  

 

1.1.5.2 Increased the number of Council foster carers and improved the availability of high quality children’s 
homes within Derbyshire, so that more children are cared for locally 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

We passionately believe that the time that children spend in our care should be a 
positive experience, with access to a range of activities and opportunities to develop 
skills and confidence to allow them to achieve their full potential. At the end of 
Quarter 3, all 12 (100%) of Derbyshire's children's homes which have been 
inspected are rated good or better with two judged as outstanding. This is 
exceptional performance. Our recently refurbished and re-registered Linden House 
is awaiting its first inspection and Spring Cottage, a new children's home to support 
fragile placements, was rated good at its first inspection. It is very important to us 
that our children's homes are homes that children feel happy to live in and we are 
extremely proud of the positive and often heart-warming feedback and comments 
we receive from inspections of our children's homes. 
Derbyshire's fostering service is our provider of choice due to both quality and cost 
and we continue to work hard to ensure an efficient and effective growth strategy for 
fostering to improve the quality and placement choice for our children. The number of approved fostering households was 291 at the end of Quarter 3. 
This is a decrease from 305 at the end of Quarter 2 and 319 at the end of Quarter 1. 8 foster families (2 mainstream and 6 Family and Friends) were 
approved during the quarter; however, 18 foster families left the service during the same period, resulting in a net loss of 10 families. The difference of 4 
fostering households can be accounted for by the data cleansing exercise that has taken place within the service. 
The most common reasons for foster carers leaving are retirement (due to age and ill health), changing circumstances (including family and work 
commitments and the impact of the pandemic on family life), and achieving permanency for children (through adoption, Special Guardianship and 
children returning to family). The Fostering Network estimates that the average length of service for a foster carer is 6.3 years. Of the 18 fostering 
households who left the service in Quarter 3, 28% had been fostering for 5-10 years and 39% for more than 10 years. This indicates a vulnerability for 
the service in terms of our ability to retain foster families in the future. Whilst it is positive that there are currently 20 mainstream fostering assessments in 
progress, achieving the outcome of 350 fostering households delivering 580 places by the end of 2021-22 remains at risk because the number of foster 
families leaving the service is not keeping pace with the number of carers being approved. 
Specific actions to improve our performance in relation to recruitment in the last quarter include the work completed through the Achieving Great Futures 
Sufficiency Workstream to improve recruitment and retention as well as the utilisation of foster care placements. We have: 

 Improved joined-up working between the Fostering Service and the Digital Communications Team to monitor enquiries and direct advertising 
funding; 

 Increased the Refer a Friend bonus for existing foster carers who recommend a friend who goes on to be approved as a foster carer; 

 Trialled 'Support to Stay' conversations and Exit Interviews with foster carers who are considering leaving the service and those who have left to 
understand the strengths of the Fostering Service and areas for improvement; 

 Improved the data available to the Fostering Service about vacancies to increase our utilisation; 

 Trialled weekly Utilisation Meetings to identify unavailable places and the actions needed to get placements back online; 

 Trialled conversations with foster carers to identify actions to increase the number or age range of the children they can care for. 

The Fostering Service Modernisation Programme will enable the service to build on its strengths while ensuring that we are in the best position to grow 
the service and care for more children in high-quality family placements, against the backdrop of an increasingly competitive market. Phase 1 of the 

Children’s homes rated as ‘Good’  or ‘ Outstanding’  

2019-2020 83.9% 

2020-2021 83.9% 

2021-2022 100.0% 

Target 91.0% 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Number of appr oved fos teri ng households  

2020-2021 312 

2021-2022 291 

Target 350 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
 

P
age 110



  

 

Fostering Service Modernisation Programme has focused on work in the Achieving Great Futures Sufficiency Workstream to improve recruitment and 
retention, as well as the utilisation of foster placements. Work is currently in progress to create an evidence base which will inform the future vision and 
development plan for the Fostering Service.  
 

1.1.5.3 Provided consistent, high quality early help and safeguarding services for children and families 
across Derbyshire 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

A stable, motivated and high-performing workforce is essential to providing 
consistently good services for our children and young people and we have continued 
to strengthen our recruitment and retention strategy alongside our learning and 
development programme. Activity has included implementing a market supplement 
for child protection social workers in place until 2023, streamlining our recruitment 
process and strengthening links with universities, and the development of a social 
work apprenticeship programme to enable recruitment of high quality social workers. 
We have a dedicated systemic practice lead who continues to train new workers to 
support the embedding of our practice model, 'Stronger Families, Safer Children'. 
We have an established 12-day programme of systemic training for social workers 
which runs twice a year. We also have an induction programme for all children's 
services staff, a supportive programme for Newly Qualified Social Workers to 
complete their first year of practice and an Assessed and Supported Year in 
Employment workshop programme enhanced this year with increased mentoring. 
Our learning and development pathway and structured progression framework for all 
levels of social work provides clear expectations and differentials between grades 
and roles. We utilise the Practice Supervisor Development Programme, the Firstline 
programme for social work managers leadership skills, apprenticeship opportunities 
and partner with Research in Practice to enhance what we offer locally and in the 
delivery of bespoke training to support leadership development for leaders, 
managers and practice supervisors. 
We have a well-established programme of multi-agency and internal quality 
assurance (QA) activity including reflective case reviews (RCRs), our approach to 
case file auditing. RCRs are moderated and are focused on the quality of practice 
and outcomes for children with an emphasis on practice learning. This is enhanced 
by an annual programme of practice learning days. These are led by senior leaders 
and include focus groups, RCRs, feedback from service users and other activities to 
identify strengths and areas for improvement. There is regular sampling of casework 
by managers and review of the themes emerging from feedback including 
compliments and complaints. 

Children’s car e reflec ti ve case r evi ews good or better  

2020-2021 57.3% 

2021-2022 77.0% 

Target 70.0% 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Earl y help assessments completed within 45 days  

2019-2020 91.3% 

2020-2021 86.9% 

2021-2022 97.3% 

Target 91.0% 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Soci al wor k assessments compl eted withi n 45 days  

2019-2020 86.5% 

2020-2021 92.2% 

2021-2022 89.6% 

Target 91.0% 

Performance 
 

Good 
National 
Benchmark 

87.6% 

 

Initi al child protec tion conferences within 15 days  

2019-2020 81.4% 

2020-2021 84.2% 

2021-2022 89.1% 

Target 87.0% 

Performance 
 

Good 
National 
Benchmark 

83.0% 

 

P
age 111



  

 

77% of practice areas within the RCRs completed over the last rolling 6 month period are judged to be good or outstanding. In particular we have 
evidenced positive impact on assessments, particularly in terms of the identification of risk and overall timeliness. There has also been improvement in 
quality, including through the wider involvement of family members and social workers ensuring that their views are captured and influence decisions 
regarding next steps. Dip sampling of our private fostering and homeless and vulnerable cases evidences increasing compliance and management 
oversight. More children are contributing to their child protection conferences. Feedback confirms that the child-centred approach and language is 
enabling parents and carers to participate fully.  
Our improvement activity around initial health assessments (IHA's) for children in care has resulted in a gradual improvement; 81% of children in care 
placed within Derbyshire had an IHA completed within timescale. Performance for first personal education plan (PEP) initiation rates have improved 
significantly. Monthly performance consistently exceeds 90% of PEPs being initiated within 10 days of the child coming into care. 
Supervision and management oversight have also improved, practice supervisors are providing additional supervisory capacity and oversight. Social 
workers feel more supported and traction on cases is increasingly helping to improve children's outcomes. Our QA activity evidences this improvement 
and how it is enabling an improving trajectory in quality and consistency of practice. We have embedded a strong culture of listening to and involving 
children. Our QA activity and casework oversight continue to tell us that direct work is meaningful, more clearly informing assessments and plans, with 
children having a stronger voice in their plans leading to a reduction in risk. Performance focussed on the timeliness of key processes to keep children 
safe continues to be solid.  
 

1.1.5.4 Implemented recommendations from our children’s services evaluation to reduce demand, improve 
outcomes for children, young people and families and reduce expenditure 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Achieving Great Futures (AGF) programme is still within the first of two parts, 
called the 'Design Phase'. This is focused on working with a few trial teams across 
Derbyshire to lead on developing and testing possible solutions in a safe but realistic 
space with frontline staff, and ensuring that we have strong data and evidence for 
each workstream that the new ways of working are demonstrably achieving 
outcomes. The second part is the 'Implementation Phase', which is about taking 
these proven solutions and rolling them out to all the different teams, and ensuring 
that we take into account the individual challenges of different parts of the County 
whilst also balancing standardisation of processes. A Benefits Monitoring Board has 
been set up to review the progress of the key performance indicators of the 
programme every few weeks and ensure the change in outcomes and financial 
savings are on track to be achieved. 
This programme is focused on delivering the following 6 workstreams with 
associated outcomes: 

 Reducing Demand and Early Intervention: The trial has been working with the 
Elm Foundation in North East Derbyshire since Autumn 2021, focusing on connecting the process and data between specialist domestic abuse 
(DA) services and the allocated social worker. This has involved introducing consultations before, during, and after a specialist course or 
intervention in setting clear and personal goals for the parent or child to ensure we are targeting their specific domestic abuse needs. The 
workstream has set up clear and live measures around the number of people completing an intervention, which is currently 50% on average for our 

Children r eturni ng home from care 

2019-2020 19.0% 

2020-2021 15.0% 

2021-2022 15.4% 

Target 16.0% 

Performance 
 

Review 
(Action in Q2) 

National 
Benchmark 

16.0% 

 

Aver age cos t of childr en in car e placements  

2019-2020 £46,091 

2020-2021 £53,241 

Target 20-21 £41,000 

Target 21-22 £41,000 
 

P
age 112



  

 

3 main DA providers, and the number of people who have fully met and partly met their specific domestic abuse goal, which is now up to 86% for 
Elm Foundation. In December 2021 and continuing during January 2022, we are introducing further trials around boosting the completion rate 
further for the Elm Foundation, and beginning set-up across the other two domestic abuse organisations and their corresponding locality social work 
teams in preparation for rolling out this new way of working. 

 Planning Permanence Outside of Care: The trial in Amber Valley over the last 4 months has developed both the methods around how we review 
and identify which children this may be suitable for, and how we prioritise and support those on a plan for this to achieve permanence outside of 
care. So far, the trial has increased the number of children on these plans in Amber Valley from 2 to 22 children (out of the 60 children on Full Care 
Orders) with 16 expected to complete this within the next 18 months. 

 Placement Sufficiency: This workstream is looking to change the recruitment, utilisation, and retention of Council foster carers to ensure that 
children can get the ideal setting for their outcomes. The trial has taken place across the whole fostering team process, rather than one area of the 
county. So far, in recruitment, we have had a significant increase in enquiries due to a more targeted use of the marketing budget - seeing almost 
double the enquiries at the start of December compared to the previous year, and the assessment process showing double the success in 
conversion rate at each stage as well as taking  60% less time on average to complete a step. Current forecasts are that the number of approved 
carers could be almost 3 times as high by Summer 2022. In utilisation, we are looking to increase how we use existing carers and increase available 
placements by over a third (around 10 placements a year). This is currently on track and has already brought on 3 additional carers, with 8 more 
identified and in the process for approval. 

 Children In Need Plan Progression (CIN): The trial in Glossopdale has seen the average durations of closed CIN cases reduce from 22 weeks to 16 
weeks and caseloads of CIN cases drop by nearly 40% - with all cases closed being step downs. The trial has expanded early to the whole of High 
Peak and has already seen an 18% drop in CIN caseload. This will expand into the remaining 5 geographic localities at the start of 2022. 

 Transitions to Adulthood for Disabled Children: This workstream is focused on ensuring that our processes and reviews support collaboration from 
all the different groups around the transition of the young person, allowing us to make clearer more unified plans around their ambitions and plans 
for the future. The trial has taken place across the whole Disabled Children's Team and their respective Adult Social Work locality teams. Activity 
has already identified a change in expected ongoing adult care package cost from age 18 from £669 per week to £630 per week. This is a third of 
the way to the target through reviewing less than a fifth of cases. 

 Home to School Transport for Special Needs Children: This workstream is looking at how we deliver our home to school transport for these children 
with the most effective use our resources. The revised trial start date of October 2021 was not met due to resource challenges within the Transport 
team, and the trial is now expected to commence in January 2022. This will be looking at using a data driven costing model on agreeing new 
contracts with providers, ensuring the fairest and best value costs possible.  
 

1.1.5.5 Increased the levels of customer satisfaction in the Council’s Highway Service 
 

Rating: Review (Good in Q2) Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The National Highways and Transportation Survey result for customer satisfaction 
with Highways and Transportation is 53% which is a slight reduction of one 
percentage point compared with the result of 54% last year. The national average 
was 52% with the majority of authorities' customer satisfaction levels with Highways 
and Transportation Services down compared with last year, which reflects a national 
trend. 

Residents sati sfied with Hig hways and Tr ansport ser vices  

2019-2020 55.0% 

2020-2021 54.0% 

2021-2022 53.0% 

Target 57.0% 

Performance 
 

Review 
National 
Benchmark 

52.0% 

 

P
age 113



  

 

The area with the highest level of satisfaction was in the provision of street lighting with the public expressing the lowest level of satisfaction with 
highway maintenance. Further analysis of the results is being undertaken and a report will be presented within Quarter 4. 
The Council continues to deploy additional resources to address highway defects and deliver the capital programme for 2021-22, however as this survey 
was undertaken during June/July 2021, it will not reflect the response to the substantial investment and good progress made in delivering the local 
transport programme up to the end of the year.  
 

1.1.5.6 Implemented new national performance measures for Adult Social Care to benchmark across the 
sector to improve outcomes for local people and drive value for money 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2023 

The Council continues to work with the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services and other regional Local Authorities to provide feedback on the 
proposed new national measures. This is being considered nationally and we are awaiting the outcome of this consultation.  
 

1.1.5.7 Supported a resident-first approach through a range of mechanisms to improve access to online 
services and customer service performance 

 

Rating: Strong (Good in Q2) Expected completion date: 30 Jun 2022 

Phase one of the Channel Shift programme is now complete with 140 services being 
available to the public through the system, against a target of 80. Further services 
will be added in phase 2 (January - June 2022) and reporting, which will contribute 
to performance and demand management, will be in place from January 2022.  

 

1.1.5.8 Put in place a new complaints and feedback system to improve service delivery and resident 
experience 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Dec 2022 

The new customer feedback system (including complaints) has been established and is in place in Children's Services, being run alongside existing 
processes for the first two months of 2022 to ensure system stability. Phase 2 of the Channel Shift programme (January - June 2022) will see the system 
expanded into Adult Social Care and Place, with Corporate Services and Transformation to follow later in 2022. 

Ser vices available thr oug h the C ouncils Websites  

2021-2022 140 

Target 80 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

P
age 114



  

 

1.1.5.9 Developed our understanding of the resident experience when interacting with the Council, using 
that insight to improve our approach 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Dec 2022 

Focus group feedback has been built into the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system and feedback from launch is being continually 
collected and analysed, with system amendments being made to improve the customer experience. Over 200 customer journeys have been mapped 
and have been translated into 'Help guides' for use within Call Derbyshire to support customer service. 
Automated reporting from the Granicus CRM system will begin in January 2022. 

1.1.5.10 Delivered Phase 3 of Vision Derbyshire including activity on business support, climate change, 
homelessness, independent living and skills and employment priorities, creating new arrangements to 
speed up joint decision making with partners 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Sep 2024 

 Vision Derbyshire continues to be driven forward and involve the investment of time, hard work and goodwill from participating councils and their 
leaders, executive officers and lead officers. 

 Significant progress has been made on completing phase 3 of the programme which involves building the Phase 4 programme. This has involved 
developing delivery plans and broadening involvement in those plans through engagement with elected members and leadership teams. 

 Securing Council sign up to Phase 4 is still taking place. Chesterfield Borough Council, Derbyshire Dales District Council and High Peak Borough 
Council alongside the County Council, have committed to the approach with North East Derbyshire anticipated to seek approval to sign up in the 
New Year 2022. 

 A key principle of Vison Derbyshire has been to put in place arrangements and a model which positions Derbyshire at the forefront of any national 
developments, including securing a potential devolution deal and maximising additional resources into the county. The progress made on Vision 
Derbyshire has supported the Council to engage in discussions with central government and other key stakeholders on 'County Deals' which has 
emerged as a significant opportunity for Derbyshire to support identified ambitions and priorities. These opportunities have placed additional 
emphasis on Vision Derbyshire as a potential model for a County Deal. 

 Work is now taking place to initiate the new Joint Committee at the end of January 2022 and put in place the programme resource required to 
accelerate delivery, following agreement about how interim hosting arrangements can be progressed in the short term. 

1.1.5.11 Worked with partners to secure additional funding into Derbyshire and progress a devolution deal 
for the East Midlands 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Sep 2022 

 The Council has continued to develop proposals alongside partner Councils to secure a County Deal for Derbyshire. 

 Following the Cabinet reshuffle, Government department rebranding in October 2021, and recent developments regarding Covid-19, the Levelling 
Up White Paper has  been delayed and it is now not expected until early in the new year 2022. Despite this a follow up meeting with the Department 
for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities took place in November 2021 with Derby City Council and colleagues representing district and 

P
age 115



  

 

boroughs to present further detail to Ministers in relation to proposals for Derbyshire. The expectation is that the Government will pick approximately 
four/five pilot areas that they will work with to become pathfinders.  

 Whilst the Council awaits the publication of the White Paper and announcement of pathfinders, work has been taking place to further develop 
outline proposals in advance of notification and to develop a plan to set out key actions to be undertaken over forthcoming months should 
Derbyshire be successful. 

1.1.5.12 Developed a medium and long-term organisational recovery and renewal strategy to address the 
challenges and opportunities presented by Covid-19 

 

Rating: Action Original completion date: 30 Sep 2021 Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Due to the continued Covid-19 response extending into 2021, the commencement of this activity was delayed, and progress has been challenging. The 
aim is to conclude this work by the end of Quarter 4. The current activity is focused around developing a draft Recovery Strategy using the Economic 
Development Recovery Strategy as the platform to build outwards from there. The aim is to identify new and better ways of working for improved 
common outcomes. There is considerable opportunity for improved connectivity across the Council to join up the recovery activity, particularly around 
employment and skills. 

1.1.5.13 Identified and implemented a programme of strategic transformation as part of Phase 2 of the 
Enterprising Council Strategy 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Dec 2021 

The Enterprising Council programme covers the key workstreams of Strategic Transformation and the establishment of a corporate Portfolio 
Management Office; Modern Ways of Working; Workforce Leadership and Behaviours; Demand Management; Organisational Recovery and Renewal 
Strategy. The programme continues to progress on each of the workstreams as follows with more details for some areas set out in the report below: 

 the establishment of the Portfolio Management Office continues to progress with the detailed operating model and governance arrangements 
developed that will provide assurance of the major programmes taking place across the Council; 

 the Modern Ways of Working programme is delivering phase 1 of the activity that includes the depersonalisation and clearance of County Hall and 
the reopening of the wider estate; 

 the People Strategy has been agreed by Cabinet; 

 progress on Demand Management has been more difficult due to the role of key staff in the ongoing Covid-19 response. The approach is now to 
embed Demand Management within the development of the new corporate Portfolio Management Office to ensure that demand is a key 
consideration of the project commissioning cycle. 

P
age 116



  

 

1.1.5.14 Established a new Portfolio Management Office to ensure projects and programmes are coordinated, 
consistent and deliver improved outcomes and value for money 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The development of the detailed approach to the design and implementation of the new Portfolio Management Office (PMO) has progressed during this 
quarter. A report setting out the progress with recommendations and proposals for the next phase of the work has been completed and the Portfolio 
Assurance Board has been established. This sets out the model for the corporate PMO and cross Council business change capability, including the 
governance arrangements for the existing major programmes. The next phase of the work will include the review of the portfolio, to ensure it is delivered 
in a coordinated and consistent way, and the future prioritised pipeline of change to deliver improved outcomes and value for money. 

1.1.5.15 Implemented Phase 1 of the Modern Ways of Working strategy working with employees across the 
Council to design new approaches to agile and flexible working 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Modern Ways of Working programme continues to make good progress over the last quarter. The short-term sprint to clear offices in County Hall is 
underway and on target to deliver the objectives in the revised timetable. There will be a phased return to County Hall and the reopening of the wider 
estate in Quarter 4 when Government guidance allows. Proposals are now being developed about the approach scoping for the longer-term programme, 
with a timeline now in place for this activity. The programme aims to build on the significant shift in working practices that has taken place in the 
pandemic, including the rapid adoption of new technology, greater home working and more flexible agile working practices. 

1.1.5.16 Developed and approved the Council’s People Strategy and associated people priorities, 
encompassing the Council’s people vision, employee values and behaviours 

 

Rating: Good Completed: 30 Sep 2021 

This deliverable has now been completed. 

P
age 117



  

 

1.1.5.17 Implemented the Wellbeing Action Plan to support employee wellbeing, reduce sickness absence 
and improve service delivery 

 

Rating: Review (Good in Q2) Expected completion date: 30 Apr 2022 

Work has commenced on Risk Profiling of departments. This is a long term project 
aimed at identifying the areas of most significant risk within departments and across 
the Council so that appropriate resources and support can be targeted to these. 
Work has also begun on refreshing the Councils Wellbeing Strategy and from this 
the action plan. Work has also continued to support the wellbeing  aspects of the 
Modern Ways of Working agenda. A review of the Council's Occupational Health 
provision has begun. 
The average number of days lost to sickness in the Council has gone up to 10.1 
days from 9.4 days in September 2021, which is above the target of 9 days. The 
percentage of employees sickness has risen from 4.6% at the end of August 2021 to 
4.9% for the current year up to end of November 2021. In light of the increase in 
sickness absence rates a working group to examine how best to support 
departments to manage this is being developed.  
 

1.1.5.18 Carried out reviews of Human Resources and Finance functions to further improve these services 
and make savings 

 

Rating: Strong Completed: 30 Sep 2021 

This deliverable has now been completed. 

1.1.5.19 Implemented a programme to centralise the Council’s property assets and budgets to ensure the 
most effective use of our land and buildings 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2025 

The analysis of existing property data has commenced along with analysis of data 
required. 
A gap analysis is in progress, which will vary according to quality of data held by 
various service areas. 
Service area portfolios are being listed capturing assets for transfer. 
A suitability study of existing data platforms is being carried out and options 
appraisal for alternatives prepared. 
Principles around which budgets transfer and how to manage any shortfall are being established. 

Money r aised from the disposal of l and and buildi ngs  

2019-2020 £2,898,546 

2020-2021 £3,961,593 

2021-2022 £2,783,000 

Target £2,037,500 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Empl oyee sickness  absence (C ouncil,  not incl udi ng schools)  

2020-2021 4.1% 

2021-2022 4.9% 
 

Days l ost per appoi ntment to sickness  

2019-2020 10.4 

2020-2021 8.7 

2021-2022 10.1 

Target 9.0 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
(Review in Q2) 

 

P
age 118



  

 

During Quarter 3 sales to the value of £1.783m were completed making a total of £2.783m against the target of £2.037m. However some sales expected 
during Quarter 4 have been rescheduled for 2022-23 so the year end figure is expected to reach £3.421m against the annual target of 3.621m.  
 

1.1.5.20 Kept Council Tax within the lowest 25% of County Council areas and lobbied government to secure a 
better funding settlement 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Provisional Finance Settlement announced in December 2021 confirmed details of the Council Tax principles for 2022-23, including the flexibility for 
the Adult Social Care (ASC) Precept of 1% in addition to any unused flexibility from 2021-22. The Council will respond to the Provisional Settlement 
Consultation in early January 2022.   
Council Tax for 2021-22 has increased by 2.5%. Compared to the 13 similar county councils, i.e. those without fire and rescue service responsibility, the 
Council set the 2nd lowest council tax increase. The average percentage increase for similar authorities was 3.81%. The Council had the option to 
increase the ASC Precept by 3%, however, the Council opted for a 1% increase with the option to levy the remaining 2% ASC Precept in 2022-23. 

P
age 119



  

 

1.1.5.21 Kept on track to achieve all planned budget savings in the medium term 
 

Rating: Action Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Quarter 3 position shows a slightly improved projected achievement of savings 
of £13.280m; this is still well below the target of £26.059m. The resulting base 
budget overspend is offset to some extent by one-off underspends, one-off funding 
from earmarked reserves and additional grant funding received. Where a 
department is unable to achieve the original saving, alternative saving proposals 
must be identified.  
 

1.1.5.22 Demonstrated value for money through excellent procurement and contract management 
 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Following approval at the Value for Money Board implementation work is now ongoing to embed additional value drivers into procurement activities. 
Procurement practices are being amended to include consideration of environmental, social, and economic benefits so they become an integral part of 
all relevant contracts. 
These will then be captured and monitored as part of the establishment of best practice contract management across the Council – due to commence 
during the first quarter of 2022-23. 

Projected achievement of budg et savi ngs 

2019-2020 £11.006m  

2020-2021 £12.359m  

2021-2022 £13.280m  

Target £26.059m  

Performance 
 

Acti on 
 

P
age 120



  

 

Effective early help for individuals and communities 

1.1.6 Overview 

This priority shows overall “Good” progress for deliverables and a “Good” rating based on 7 rated measures. 

 Deliverable Progress Key Measures 

   

P
age 121



  

 

1.1.7 Progress on our deliverables and key measures 

1.1.7.1 Continued to operate the Community Response Unit, established during the pandemic, as part of our 
work to improve health and wellbeing 

 

Rating: Good Original completion date: 30 Sep 2021 Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

During Quarter 3 the Community Response Unit has received 272 calls between October and 12 December 2021, the calls are mainly related to Covid-
19, test and trace, isolation, help with food and financial support. Calls are continuing at a similar rate to Quarter 2. 
The Winter Pressures Professional Single Contact Point started on 1 October 2021 and 86 referrals have been received to 16 December 2021. This 
number has already overtaken the total number received between 1 November 2020 to 31 March 2021, which was 51. 

1.1.7.2 Undertaken local Covid-19 testing and contact tracing activity and provided advice to schools, care 
homes, businesses and communities to help manage the spread and outbreaks of coronavirus 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Whilst the majority of Quarter 3 has seen little national restrictions, the latter part of Quarter 3 has seen the introduction of Plan B measures in response 
to the new Omicron variant. There has also be amendments to the testing requirements for close contacts. These changes have been communicated to 
all settings. 
There have been 69,506 Covid-19 cases in Derbyshire in Quarter 3, an increase of 30,699 cases in Quarter 2. Quarter 3 has therefore remained 
exceptionally busy for the Health Protection/Outbreak Response Team in Public Health. The contact tracing team dealt with 9,790 cases completing 
7,202 successful calls, an increase from 5,935 in Quarter 2. 3,426 text messages or follow up calls have been given to individuals declaring a need for 
self-isolation support from the local authority. The Council are the first point of contact for a number of priority areas across Derbyshire (aligned with the 
enhanced vaccination plans) and retain responsibility for contacting all positive cases in the rest of Derbyshire if the national team have been 
unsuccessful. 
In Quarter 3 1,321 lateral flow tests for Covid-19 have been conducted through the Council's Community Testing Service for Derbyshire residents.  
There have been 354 incidents or outbreaks in education settings and 40 in workplaces and other settings that have been managed by the Council. 
Support including individual queries, including from parents, support to settings regarding the implementation of additional measures within their setting. 
Changes in guidance and self-isolation in December has led to revision of previous communication and clarification for education settings on the 
Christmas activities and trips has been given. In addition, there have been 61 outbreaks in care homes that Public Health and Adult Care staff have 
worked with NHS colleagues and providers to manage the outbreak and reduce risk of further transmission. 
Targeted engagement work alongside NHS partners has supported the uptake of Covid-19 vaccinations and Covid-19 vaccination information sessions 
for care home staff and community leaders have been delivered.  
 

P
age 122



  

 

1.1.7.3 Increased the number of people taking part in stop smoking and weight management programmes 
 

Rating: Strong Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Stop smoking service projected figures for Quarter 3 are 528 quit dates set and 343 
(forecast) 4 Week quits based on a 65% quit rate. The number of people setting a 
quit date in Quarter 3 2020-21 was 529 so performance is similar. To date 237 
participants have achieved a 4 Week Quit (figures taken as at 14 December 2021). 
Champix, a drug used to help people stop smoking, is still not available which could 
effect quit dates set and quit rate. In Quarter 2, 401 people achieved a 4 Week Quit 
against a target of 300. 
For weight management services, 373 people started the programme in Quarter 3 
and the projected figures for Quarter 3 are that 224 will complete the programme, 
168 will lose weight with 67 achieving a 5% weight loss. 
The stop smoking and weight management service continue to be delivered virtually 
and via telephone due to the impact of Covid-19.  
 

 

Number partici pants who stop smoki ng for 4 weeks  

2019-2020 1,158 

2020-2021 1,554 

2021-2022 1,257 

Target 900 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Partici pants who achieve 5% weight l oss ( proj ected)  

2019-2020 232 

2020-2021 129 

2021-2022 227 

Target 171 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

 Number of participants who stop smoking Number of participants who lose weight 

   

P
age 123



  

 

1.1.7.4 Provided training to all schools and education providers to support the emotional wellbeing and 
mental health of children following the coronavirus pandemic 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Wellbeing for Education Return project is now complete having delivered mental health training to 218 staff from education settings across 
Derbyshire including from 123 state-funded primary schools and 11 secondary schools. In May, the Council received further funding from the 
Department for Education (Wellbeing for Education Recovery) to provide ongoing support and advice to education setting across Derbyshire. The 
proposal to employ two additional assistant educational psychologists to support children and young people has now been agreed and recruitment is 
now underway. The project is planned to go live in March 2022 and will run for 18 months.  
Additionally Public Health have allocated funding for 4 years for the delivery of "Emotional Wellbeing of Children and Young People: Whole School 
Approach" which is available to all schools and settings in Derbyshire from January 2022 and is delivered by Educational Improvement - Childrens 
Services. The aim is to develop a preventative approach that enables the expansion of mental health awareness, promotion of protective factors, early 
identification, early intervention and support for the emotional wellbeing of children and young people through a settings-based approach. 110 settings 
have signed up to be involved in various aspects of the whole school approach with the offer ranging from staff wellbeing coaching to whole school 
mapping and action plan development. 

1.1.7.5 Worked with partners to join up existing mental health services to promote positive mental wellbeing 
and improve support for local people 

 

Rating: Good Original completion date: 30 Sep 2021 Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Additional sections of the countywide website on adult mental health and neurodiversity were launched in October. The Public Health Wellbeing 
Counsellor started in post in October and has begun engagement with voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations to co-produce support 
for mental wellbeing. Mentell were recommissioned to deliver peer support for men for another year. Public Health promoted and raised awareness of 
World Mental Health Day in October and has also supported the delivery of Thinkfest in Chesterfield throughout the autumn. 

P
age 124



  

 

1.1.7.6 Joined up Health Visiting Services and Childrens Centre activities with the NHS to improve service 
delivery for 0-5s across Derbyshire 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Work is continuing between the 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service and Children's 
Centres to increase both the number and quality of Early Help Assessments being 
undertaken by the 0-19 Public Health Nursing Service. The Service Level 
Agreement between Public Health and Children's Services to support the delivery of 
Early Help interventions in Children's Centres has been extended by 12 months to 
30 September 2022. This will enable time to scope out longer term plans for the 
Public Health contribution into Children's Centres. 
Broader performance measures across the 0-19 Public Health Nursing contract 
remain good or strong, with 98.8% of infants receiving a new baby review and 
92.4% of pregnant women receiving an antenatal contact.  

 

1.1.7.7 Worked with District and Borough Councils and other partners to develop new sites that will 
increase the amount of age-appropriate accommodation and support for older people 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2035 

During Quarter 3 the Adult Social Care Strategic Accommodation Group has continued to oversee the strategy implementation programme. This 
includes identifying and prioritising the need and demand for accommodation by locality, and joint working between Adult Social Care and Property 
Services. A Development Pipeline spreadsheet has been created to track the various approaches and offers to the Council from potential developers, 
and work is also taking place to produce interactive maps to show where there is existing provision and local demand. The development of a full Older 
People's Market Position Statement is underway, this will include updating the population information and other relevant data. This will also be used to 
refresh the Older People's Housing, Accommodation and Support Strategy. Sortified was awarded the contract to undertake extensive engagement with 
the residents of Derbyshire to gather data, intelligence and insight that will tell us how people want to live their best lives now, and in the future. The 
findings of this engagement activity are currently being analysed. 

Pregnant women r ecei ving an antenatal contact  

2020-2021 93.5% 

2021-2022 92.4% 

Target 93.0% 

Performance 
 

Good 
 

Infants r ecei ving a new baby revi ew between 10- 14 days  

2020-2021 96.9% 

2021-2022 98.8% 

Target 94.0% 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

P
age 125



  

 

1.1.7.8 Finalised the new ways of working with older people and disabled people to increase their 
independence so that they remain part of their local communities 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2023 

The Better Lives programme work has continued in Quarter 3. Adult Social Care is 
seeing an unprecedented increase in demand to support people leaving hospitals 
and this combined with an acute shortage of homecare availability within the private, 
voluntary and independent (PVI) sector is impacting on performance targets in this 
area. Whilst the short term service continues to support a significantly higher 
proportion of local people compared to prior to the Better Lives programme, service 
capacity is being used to support people who have finished their reablement journey 
but require long term community support from the PVI homecare sector. Admissions 
into residential care are increasing as short term services are not available to 
support people to return or remain at home. 
In Quarter 3 there have been 144 admissions to residential care, making a 
provisional total of 506 for the year to date. The shortage of homecare is not unique 
to Derbyshire and is a national issue. An Adult Social Care action plan has been 
drawn together and wider system work is under way to seek mitigations. The reablement service, which helps older and disabled people to regain their 
independence, over the first nine months has supported 2,301 people against a target of 2,691 people.  
 

1.1.7.9 Commissioned and procured a new assistive technology service offer to support people with social 
care needs to live independently in the community 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The business cases for the further extension of the Assistive Technology contract is 
in development. The Assistive Technology Board continues to meet on a monthly 
basis to progress priorities of the service both current and future. The Brain in Hand 
(BiH) 12 month pilot is progressing well. BiH provides digital self-management 
technology, which, combined with human support, helps people live more 
independently. The business case for a further 12 month extension of BiH has been 
approved. 224 new people have been referred for some level of Assistive Technology equipment this last quarter, reducing the need for formal support 
and promoting independence in their own homes. This makes a total of 660 referrals for the year so far.  
 

Peopl e with soci al care needs  recei ving Assisti ve Technol og y 

2021-2022 660 

Target 450 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Helpi ng ol der & disabl ed peopl e to r egain independence 

2021-2022 2,301 

Target 2,691 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
(Review in Q2) 

 

Admissi ons to r esidential car e (pr ovisi onal) 

2020-2021 956 

2021-2022 506 

Target 699 

Performance 
 

Strong 
(Action in Q2) 

 P
age 126



  

 

1.1.7.10 Developed a needs assessment and strategy to improve arrangements for tackling domestic 
violence and supporting victims 

 

Rating: Strong (Good in Q2) Completed: 05 Jan 2022 

The statutory deadline for completing needs assessments and publishing a draft Domestic Abuse Support in Accommodation Strategy was 26 October 
2021. The Draft Strategy was published on this date.  A further deadline of 5 January 2022 was in place for the publication of a final strategy. The 
Strategy has now been finalised and was agreed by the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities on 20 December 2021. It was published on the 5 
January 2022 and can be found on the Council's website. 

1.1.7.11 Delivered the ‘Pause’ programme, to address the needs of more than 50 women who have had 
multiple children removed into care and to prevent this cycle recurring 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Sep 2024 

Pause Derbyshire started in 2020 and has now delivered 18 months support to the first community of women. The initiative has so far reached a total of 
51 women across Derbyshire who had a total of 154 children removed from their care. 32 of those women became open on the program and remained 
part of our first community. During this period all of the women have continued to take a pause in pregnancy. 
Pause has worked with women with a range of unmet needs which include domestic violence, housing, debt, mental ill health, substance misuse and 
children in care. We have now collated data regarding the distance travelled in womens' mental and emotional health for community one. There is a 
clear increase in women describing their mental and emotional health as 'very good' – 'good' (from 23% to 52%) and a decrease in women describing 
their mental and emotional health as 'very bad'– 'bad' (from 41% to 13%).  
This has been achieved by working systemically and in partnership across a number of organisations. Data indicates that the greatest presenting need 
over the 18 months has been mental health (72%) and domestic violence (63%). 29 women directly engaged with the Pause programme and have now 
transitioned from the program and are receiving next steps light touch support (target being 32). This equates to a 91% maintenance rate exceeding the 
contractual threshold of 80%. This involvement with the project is outstanding given the challenges to models of delivery due to the pandemic. There 
have been no further care proceedings; all women are now registered with a GP; 7 women are registered with a dentist with all women engaging with 
community dental services and 13 women are now in Education, Training, Employment or Volunteering. Qualitative evidence through self-reporting 
indicates 100% improvement across multiple issues. The Pause team comprises 4 practitioners - with an average practitioner caseload of 6-8 women. 
We have started to recruit women as part of "community two" with 121 referrals, including from women leaving care. To date we have 12 women open 
on the program with a further 21 engaging. 

P
age 127

https://www.saferderbyshire.gov.uk/what-we-do/domestic-abuse/strategy/strategy-and-policy.aspx


  

 

1.1.7.12 Undertaken an evaluation of the early help support and training offered to partner agencies, and 
developed measures to monitor the effectiveness of early interventions for children and families 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

An evaluation of the Early Help Transition Team has progressed and a report will be presented to Cabinet in the next few weeks proposing that the 
service continues as a permanent structure following the very positive feedback on the performance of the team internally and externally from partner 
agencies. 
A wider evaluation will be required of the early help offered through other partner agencies such as schools and health during the course of 2022. This 
broader evaluation will also include the impact of the Children's Services Early Help service. The scope of this element of early help evaluation is yet to 
be determined. 

1.1.7.13 Worked with partners, including young people and their parents and carers, to produce a set of clear 
expectations about what good inclusion looks like in mainstream schools across Derbyshire and to 
define the specialist provision that should be accessible in each locality 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The final draft of the co-produced guidance document for providers on graduated response has been completed and the final version designed. There 
has been a soft launch with Derbyshire leaders of inclusion and a more formal launch scheduled to take place in the Spring 2022. 
The Derbyshire promise has been through governance and is also now ready to launch across the special educational needs and disability (SEND) 
community. There has been a change in senior leadership leading this area with a key post at recruitment stage and so the launch is expected late 
Spring. 
Derbyshire Parent Carer Voice have supported interviews and the appointment of two strategic posts within the service area. They have also completed 
a survey with parents addressing how welcome they and their children feel in school to aid a greater understanding of the small but effective actions 
providers can aid inclusion for children and young people with additional needs. 
A co-produced SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy across Education, Health and Care is in the final stages of draft and has been completed through a 
strengthened Joint Commissioning Hub task and finish group. This will be advanced to the next stage during the Spring. 
A co-produced strategy to support development of the Preparation for Adulthood agenda is currently in draft and undergoing final review. The 
Preparation for Adulthood Lead Officer has secured a promotion and the post, currently at advert stage, will deliver the recommendations of the strategy, 
once approved.   
Seven workstreams have been set up and collaborative groups are meeting to define and strengthen elements of specialist provision across the county 
over the coming year – increasing special school places, increasing enhanced resource provision, pilot of satellite provisions, enabling spaces in 
secondary schools, reducing unnecessary travel to special schools, reducing independent placements and strengthening the offer in county special 
schools and building a flexible system for children to return to mainstream when appropriate. 

P
age 128



  

 

A prosperous and green Derbyshire 

1.1.8 Overview 

This priority shows overall “Good” progress for deliverables and a “Good” rating based on 7 rated measures. 

 Deliverable Progress Key Measures 

   

P
age 129



  

 

1.1.9 Progress on our deliverables and key measures 

1.1.9.1 Delivered a £40m Local Transport Programme to provide well maintained roads and highways and 
address road safety concerns 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Building on the Quarter 2 report we continue to deliver the enhanced local transport 
£40m programme, utilising our hybrid delivery model (inhouse/external delivery) with 
£30.5m of the £40m budget spent up to the end of Quarter 3. 
The Council continues to deploy additional resources to address highway defects 
and the delivery of the capital programme for 2021-22. It has focused on priority 
areas such as drainage improvements, carriageway and footway surfacing and 
surface dressing. This will help improve levels of customer satisfaction and provide 
additional resilience to the network by preventing and/or minimising further damage. 
The percentage of Principal, Non-Principal and Unclassified roads where 
maintenance should be considered details the percentage of roads that fall in the 
Poor and Very Poor condition banding and is derived from the Annual Engineers 
Inspection survey. Areas of the network that fall below a condition level are 
calculated to form the percentage result. The Annual Engineers Inspection is then 
factored into the Value Management Process to enable development of Forward 
Programmes. 
The annual survey is undertaken between April and June and therefore the results 
do not reflect the investment and work undertaken over the last six months. The 
outcome of the survey will support the preparation of the following year's delivery 
programme and information regarding this which will be provided in Quarter 4. 
A total of 4,056 defects were fixed in Quarter 3 with 90.3% of defects being 
completed within target timescales, which meets the 90% target set. This means 
that the year to date data at the end of Quarter 3 for defects completed within target 
is at 77.8%. This is split between the different priorities with 94.3% of urgent defects 
completed within target, 85.2% of defects with a 32 hour target completed on time, 
64.5% of defects completed within timeframe with a 9 day target and 81.8% of 

Expenditure on the Local  Transport Progr amme 

2021-2022 £30.500m 

Target £30.000m 

Performance 
 

Good 
 

Principal r oads needing maintenance 

2019-2020 13.0% 

2020-2021 17.0% 

2021-2022 15.2% 

Target 13.0% 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
 

Classified r oads  needi ng mai ntenance 

2019-2020 23.0% 

2020-2021 17.0% 

2021-2022 19.6% 

Target 23.0% 

Performance 
 

Strong 
 

Unclassified r oads needing maintenance 

2020-2021 27.0% 

2021-2022 29.9% 

Target 31.0% 

Performance 
 

Good 
 

Defects  completed wi thi n target  

2019-2020 77.3% 

2020-2021 71.0% 

2021-2022 77.8% 

Target 90.0% 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
 

P
age 130



  

 

defects with a 28 day target completed within target.  
 

 

1.1.9.2 Opened the Woodville-Swadlincote Regeneration Route, the Ashbourne Airfield Link Road and Hollis 
Lane Link Road Phase 1 in Chesterfield to improve road access 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Woodville-Swadlincote Regeneration Route opened to traffic at the end of Quarter 3, despite the main construction contractor going into 
administration over the latter weeks of September. This enables a private contractor to develop the adjacent land for housing and employment. The 
Ashbourne Airfield Link Road is also progressing well on site but will now be completed during Quarter 4. Work on the Hollis Lane Link Road Phase 1 is 
currently being carried out by Chesterfield Borough Council, preparing a site for a displaced business. Phase 1 of this will take place in Quarter 4 as 
expected and highway construction is programmed to begin in Quarter 1 2022-23. 

Defects completed within target 

 

P
age 131



  

 

1.1.9.3 Prepared a countywide response to the Integrated Rail Plan in relation to HS2, minimising any 
potential disruption and taking full advantage of the economic growth opportunities linked to the 
proposals 

 

Rating: Review Original completion date: 30 Sep 2021 Expected completion date: 31 May 2022 

The Integrated Rail Plan was published on the 18 November 2021 over 9 months later than anticipated. Work to prepare a response is now taking place 
following detailed discussions with Chesterfield Borough Council and other regional partners to agree a joint way forward and a list of future asks of 
government. This response is expected to be produced and agreed by April/May 2022. 

1.1.9.4 Completed the viability assessment to progress the Chesterfield to Staveley Regeneration Route, 
which will create new homes and jobs for the area 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Jun 2022 

The viability assessment is now complete and work is continuing with the preparation of an Outline Business Case as part of the next stage. It is 
anticipated that the Outline Business Case will be submitted for review to the Department for Transport in Quarter 4. 

1.1.9.5 Reduced carbon emissions from Council property and vehicles, street lighting and procurement 
 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2032 

Final data for Council emissions for 2020-21 are now available. Emissions have 
reduced by 63% to 15,807 tonnes CO2e from the 2009-10 baseline. The total is 
made up from 9,126 tonnes from property energy use, 3,667 tonnes from 
streetlighting electricity usage, 2,025 tonnes from fleet vehicle mileage and 989 
tonnes from grey fleet mileage where officers use their own vehicle for work 
purposes. Core fleet emissions have increased from the previous year, which is 
believed to be due to extra services delivered and the necessity of staff not sharing vehicles due to Covid-19 restrictions. Consequently it is expected to 
reduce in future years. With continued homeworking and the introduction of Modern Ways Of Working it is expected that grey fleet emissions will not 
return to pre-pandemic levels but will rise slightly as services continue to return to normal. The streetlighting LED replacement programme will come to 
an end in 2022 and further reductions in emissions are not expected other than a gradual decrease as the national electricity grid decarbonises. Work to 
identify, quantify and reduce Scope 3 emissions (e.g. from school transport, procurement, air travel, water and waste) is continuing with the aim of 
baselining these emissions by 2023.  
 

Reducti on in CO2e from 2009- 10 baseline 

2018-2019 47.9% 

2019-2020 55.3% 

2020-2021 63.2% 

Target 20-21 52.0% 

Target 21-22 63.0% 
 

P
age 132



  

 

 

1.1.9.6 Reduced the level of flood risk to the residents and businesses of Derbyshire through our planning 
role, the delivery of flood mitigation schemes and working with communities to develop flood resilience 
measures 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Flood Risk team continues to respond to significant numbers of Planning Consultations and Flooding enquiries. The Flood Risk Team continues to 
manage the Property Flood Resilience Grant Scheme, and continues to process grant claims into Quarter 3. The Renishaw Property Flood Resilience 
scheme has been awarded to a Contractor to provide flood protection to 12 properties in Renishaw, which will be delivered in Quarter 4. Funding has 
been confirmed to undertake the Matlock Integrated Catchment Model, which will also commence in Quarter 4. 

1.1.9.7 Developed and commenced implementation of a Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan which 
sets out priorities to reduce the county’s carbon emissions 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Oct 2021 

The Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan was approved by Cabinet in October 2021. The Action Plan is being developed, implemented and 
monitored with actions being delivered across the Climate Change Theme Teams. Work to develop a co-ordinated climate change programme of action 
across the county is continuing through Vision Derbyshire along with the Derby and Derbyshire Local Authority Energy Action Group which is focusing 
specifically on county-wide energy projects. Vision Derbyshire is currently developing a Climate Change Strategy to reduce emissions across the county. 

Breakdown of CO2e emissions by main sources 

 

P
age 133



  

 

Funding has been secured from Midlands Energy Hub, the Local Enterprise Partnership for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, and Nottinghamshire 
(D2N2) and the Joint Economic Prosperity Board to produce a Renewable Energy Planning Study for the county. 

1.1.9.8 Developed and agreed the Council’s approach to Good Growth to maximise low carbon economic 
opportunities 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The Council's approach to good growth is now captured in the approved Covid-19 Economic Recovery Strategy. Substantial progress has been made 
against all priorities and actions, as set out in the action plan. An impact assessment against the strategy has been completed in Quarter 3 which 
confirms the extent of progress. Key success areas to date include: implementation of Green Entrepreneurs fund (£60,000), submission of funding bid to 
the Local Enterprise Partnership for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, and Nottinghamshire (D2N2) to support hydrogen infrastructure and buses (£2m). 
We have also secured Capability Funding from the government to support sustainable travel projects (£200,000), digital connectivity in hard to reach 
places (£1m) and a programme of digital skills improvement (£3.1m). The approach needed for the Council's growth strategy for 2022 onwards is 
currently being reviewed. 

1.1.9.9 Developed the Natural Capital Strategy, identifying areas where the natural environment can be 
further enhanced in order to support healthy thriving communities, a vibrant economy and a healthy 
environment 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Aug 2022 

Environment Systems are still developing the natural capital baseline and are reporting every other week to the project steering group. The Strategy is 
due to be completed by the end of August 2022. 

1.1.9.10 Explored initiatives to tackle climate change including low carbon local energy generation and 
working with partners to provide further publicly accessible electric vehicle charge points 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Corporate Property are currently re-visiting plans to develop a solar farm at the Williamthorpe site in the east of the county. 
In order to help meet the Council's target of having 1,000 Electric Vehicle (EV) chargepoints in situ for the public to access across Derbyshire by 2025, 
the Council has commissioned Jacobs to undertake a body of work that will provide a likely assessment of what demand for EVs will look like over the 
next 5 to 10 years and, from that, where the infrastructure needs to be located to help meet that demand, and what type of infrastructure is most 
appropriate. Key to this will be working with stakeholders both externally (district and borough councils) and internally (key officers who can provide 
input/advice to this work), initially through workshops. Part of the workshops will focus on refreshing/updating the Low Emission Vehicle Infrastructure 
Strategy. The latest Department for Transport figures show 218 public facing EV chargepoints are currently in operation in Derbyshire as at October 
2021. 

P
age 134



  

 

1.1.9.11 Developed and delivered a strategic approach to sustainable travel and transport across the county, 
including the promotion of cycling and walking 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Active Travel - Tranche 2 work on the East-West Chesterfield cycle route continues. The Council is still awaiting confirmation from the Department for 
Transport (DfT) as to whether the Council's application for funding from Active Travel - Tranche 3 has been successful or otherwise. Work on the 6 work 
packages funded via the DfT's Capability Fund are well underway and progressing well. Feasibility studies looking at the viability of the Derwent Valley 
Cycleway and key sections, in and around Buxton as part of the White Peak Loop, are also underway. Both form key elements of the Council's Key 
Cycle Network which continues to be developed as part of the Council's Capital Programme. Finally, the Council's Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) 
was approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2021 and submitted to the DfT before 31 October 2021. The Council is expecting notification of whether it has 
been successful during January 2022, meanwhile work on the Enhanced Bus Partnership is also now underway. The work on the transport hubs, as 
reported in Quarter 2, has been expanded to cover all Derbyshire's key market towns as part of the BSIP. 

1.1.9.12 Implemented year 1 of the Covid-19 Economic Recovery Strategy Action Plan including rolling out a 
new £1m Business Start-up programme to support business growth and a £2m Green Entrepreneurs 
scheme to support innovation in low carbon technologies 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

A full team of five business advisers will be place for Quarter 4. The business start up grant scheme is live and five contracts have been issued in 
Quarter 3 to support business start up growth. The Green Entrepreneur scheme Board meeting was held in Quarter 3 to consider Demonstrator and 
small grant projects. A Demonstrator project is to present to the board in Quarter 4. Seven Scholarship contracts for retraining with skills in alternative 
energy have been issued in Quarter 3 totalling £8,853. Monitoring is on-going for small business grants through the Green Entrepreneur fund with a total 
of £60,000 contracted. 

1.1.9.13 Implemented year 1 of the Covid-19 Employment and Skills Recovery Action Plan including delivery 
and expansion of a careers hub and development and implementation of a youth hub 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Progress continues to be made in delivering the Council's Employment and Skills Recovery Action Plan. £1.99m in funding was secured from the 
Government's Community Renewal Fund to support Covid-19 economic recovery in Derbyshire. The Hospitality Charter was agreed with an official 
launch in January, designed to promote the sector as a good place to work. Funding for a Youth Hub was secured with the launch due in early January 
to support unemployed young people. The South Derbyshire Careers Hub was also launched this quarter. 

P
age 135



  

 

1.1.9.14 Developed and secured funding to implement Wi-Fi infrastructure in 27 town centres to better 
understand how town centres are being used, to help shape future economic renewal programmes 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

The funding bid to implement Wi-Fi infrastructure in town centres through the Community Renewal Fund was unsuccessful. The project is now being 
developed as part of a wider Vision Derbyshire Phase 2 proposal. This is currently at project inception stage and is likely to develop to project initiation in 
Quarter 1 2022-23. 

1.1.9.15 Implemented the gigabit top up voucher scheme and increased take-up of fibre enabled broadband 
across Derbyshire, particularly in rural areas, to improve access, speed and reliability for homes and 
businesses 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Dec 2021 

The Derbyshire Superfast Programme is now complete and the target of 300 premises to be delivered under the final Phase (6B) has been achieved. 
We are currently awaiting the final delivery reports from Openreach to allow the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) contract 
closure process to commence. DCMS and suppliers were still experiencing some delays with the Gigabit Voucher registration process but performance 
improved towards the end of the quarter. In total, 7 new Derbyshire projects have been approved and registered by DCMS and 25 additional Top Up 
Vouchers were issued for new or existing projects in the quarter. 

1.1.9.16 Provided support and advice to local businesses as the UK leaves the European Union, helping them 
to maximise new opportunities and ensure compliance with relevant legislation 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

In 2021 Officers have provided guidance to consolidate post EU Exit legislation on over 400 separate occasions, through a combination of direct 
intervention and remote contact such as face to face visits/inspections, written advice and broader mailshots to specific businesses These have covered 
areas such as food and feed standards, product safety and fair trading law. 

1.1.9.17 Attracted more businesses to relocate to Derbyshire or expand through delivery of the “Invest in 
Derbyshire” plan 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Sep 2022 

The level of investment in the county has remained stable over the period January to March 2022, with enquiries continuing to show good levels of 
business confidence in Derbyshire as a place to invest. During the Quarter, through the Council's work with Marketing Derby, two businesses have 
relocated to Derbyshire or expanded. 

P
age 136



  

 

1.1.9.18 Worked with partners to develop a county wide approach to improve social mobility, targeting 
underperforming areas across the county 

 

Rating: Review Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

Social mobility is one of the key priority areas of work to be taken forward under Vision Derbyshire. Phase 4 proposals, which include the development of 
thematic programmes under four key ambitions areas, is currently underway. The development and implementation of proposals to improve social 
mobility is a key area of focus for the Achieving Relentless Ambition theme. Whilst progress to identify key activity is taking place, the development of a 
new approach is reliant on additional capacity through the programme team being made available; work is taking place to address this. 

P
age 137



  

 

1.1.9.19 Worked with schools and other education providers to implement new strategies and support, to 
enable children and young people to achieve their educational potential and begin to catch up on learning 
they have missed due to Covid-19 restrictions 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 30 Jun 2022 

The Education Improvement Service is continuing to work robustly with schools to 
improve outcomes for children and young people. 
Recent activities have included: 

 Training and support provided to link advisers about the new Early Years 
Foundation Stage curriculum and profile. This will enable link advisers to both 
challenge and support their link schools to adapt their curriculum plans so that 
children who have been most negatively impacted by missing learning due to 
Covid-19 restrictions can make progress to meeting expected standards. 

 A focus during locality meetings led by senior advisers for headteachers on 
raising outcomes particularly in phonics. This had been reported by 
headteachers as an aspect which had been the most challenging for parents 
and carers to support during periods of lockdown. 

 Providing updates to headteachers and governors regarding Ofsted's areas of 
focussed activity and about assessment arrangements for 2021-22. 

In 2021-22, the provisional data for phonics in Derbyshire (79.9%) indicates that 
outcomes are slightly higher than national (79.8%). If confirmed, this marks good 
improvement compared to previous years. The provisional data for disadvantaged 
pupils is even better with Derbyshire outcomes at 67.3% compared to 66.6% 
nationally. 
In English and Maths GCSEs, students in Derbyshire performed well with the 
proportion achieving both grades 9-4 and 9-5 being significantly higher than England 
averages. However, the rate of improvement seen nationally has been greater and 
Derbyshire rankings have fallen. The target this year was to remain in the upper-
quartile nationally but performance places Derbyshire in the lower-middle quartile. 
The percentage of 16 to 17 year olds in education, employment or training is 78% as 
at the end of November 2021. This indicator has a strong seasonal pattern in 
outcomes with young people's activity status needing to be established at the start 
of every academic year. Performance at this point in the year is better than the same 
time last year.  

 

Pupils achi evi ng a standard pass i n English and Maths at GCSE 

2019-2020 65.4% 

2020-2021 72.2% 

2021-2022 71.6% 

Target 72.2% 

Performance 
 

Good 
National 
Benchmark 

67.1% 

 

16- 17 year olds  in education, employment or trai ning  

2019-2020 93.1% 

2020-2021 95.5% 

2021-2022 78.0% 

Target 96.0% 

Performance 
 

Acti on 
(Good in Q2) 

 

16-17 year olds in education, employment or 
training 

 

P
age 138



  

 

1.1.9.20 Worked with Derbyshire businesses to support the creation of apprenticeship opportunities in key 
economic sectors, connecting people to local job opportunities 

 

Rating: Good Expected completion date: 31 Mar 2022 

To date this financial year, 66 apprentices from 30 different employers across Derbyshire have been supported via the transfer of Apprenticeship Levy. 
The total since the programme started is 163 apprentices, from 95 different employers. The total value of funds committed to support this is £1,101,610. 
Employment areas are as follows: Health and Social Care 39%; Early Years 14%; Construction 19%; Engineering 11%; Visitor Economy 7%; Digital 5%; 
Finance/Legal 5%. 

P
age 139



  

 

Notes 

This report set out progress on deliverables and key measures as outlined in the Council Plan 2021-25. The following 
table lists the measures not included in this report, or where changes have been made: 

Measures Reporting 

Measure on local Covid-19 testing and contract tracing 
activity 

A national performance measure has not been identified, 
however information on the volume of testing and 
contract tracing activity supported by the Council is 
included in this report 

Proportion of children’s social care audit judgements 
(including children in care and care leavers) graded good 
or better 

This measure has changed to “Percentage of children’s 
social care reflective case review judgements (including 
children in care and care leavers) rated as “Good” or 
“Outstanding”” 

Number of children returning home after a period of 
being in care 

This measure has changed to “Percentage of children 
returning home after a period of being in care” 

Early help assessments completed within 45 days, 
Social work assessments completed within 45 days and 
Initial child protection conferences within 15 days 

These measures have been added to the deliverable 
“Provided consistent, high quality early help and 
safeguarding services for children and families across 
Derbyshire” 

Established a new Programme Management Office to 
ensure projects and programmes are coordinated, 
consistent and deliver improved outcomes and value for 
money 

This deliverable has been renamed to “Established a 
new Portfolio Management Office to ensure projects and 
programmes are coordinated, consistent and deliver 
improved outcomes and value for money” 

 

P
age 140



  

 

Key 

 Deliverables Measures 

 
Strong 

Strong – performing strongly Strong – more than 5% better than target (2% better than target if the 
target is greater than 95%). 

 
Good 

Good – performing well Good 

 
Review 

Review – will be kept under review to ensure performance is brought 
back on track 

Review – more than 2% worse than target. 

 
Acti on 

Action – additional action will be/is being taken to bring performance 
back on track 

Action – more than 10% worse than target. 

 
Unknown 

No commentary has been received Data not available/Target not set. 

 

P
age 141



Appendix 4 

 

Adult Care - Portfolio Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress Key Measures Against Target 

 

Progress is "good" for the majority of the Council Plan deliverables led by the 
portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 The central hub of practitioners have continued to work successfully 
alongside people with a learning disability and / or are autistic to ensure 
an outcome focused support plan is in place and people continue to 
access support in the community. 

 Targets have been established for Assistive Technology. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 The impact of the new Covid variant on the number of people with a 
learning disability and / or autistic to move to a more independent 
setting. This will be more fully understood in Quarter 4. 

 The impact of the shortage of homecare on both the Short Service 
performance and residential placements for older people and disabled 
people. 

 

 

 

Page 142



Appendix 4 

 

There is a forecast overspend of £4.770m on 
the portfolio after the allocation of  
£4.716m of funding from DLUHC Covid-19 
emergency grants and compensation for lost 
income under the sales, fees and charges 
scheme.  Before the allocation of this funding, 
the main variances are: 
 

Purchased Services, £10.462m overspend 
– due to an increase in the number of 
placements with the independent sector.  
This has resulted in a high level of voids 
(low occupancy) being carried within the 
Council’s in-house service provision and 
consequently in double running costs. 

Unallocated Budgets, £0.923m underspend – amounts which have not yet 
been allocated to services.  Held as contingency. 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 

One-off funding of £1.500m, identified in the 2021-22 Revenue Budget Report 
to fund the development of an Assistive Technology Service, has been 
transferred from the Adult Care portfolio to the Risk Management budget.  The 
amount was no longer required after Adult Care transferred this amount from 
its 2020-21 underspend to an earmarked reserve to fund this initiative. 
 
Ongoing funding of £0.585 relating to Transition Funding approved in the 
Council’s 2020-21 Revenue Budget allocation for Demographic Growth has 
been transferred from the Adult Care portfolio to the Risk Management 
budget.  This amount had not been utilised as at 31 March 2021. 
 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £7.441m, with a further £1.894m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £9.335m, 

Forecast Outturn against 
Target Budget 

 

 

Page 143



Appendix 4 

 

£8.294m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £1.041m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings.  However, this shortfall is underpinned by an allocation of 
£4.257m of one-off funding to provide flexibility to achieve the target in 2022-
23. 
 
Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 Budget Support - £4.257m (one-off), provided to the Adult Social 
Care and Health department to provide flexibility to plan to achieve 
the 2021-22 savings target in later years. 

 Independent Sector Fee Increases - £4.113m, to meet the 
increase in independent sector care-home and home-care fees. 

 Demographic Growth - £2.794m, to meet additional costs from 
increases in the 65+ population, the number of disabled adults 
accessing services, cases of early onset of dementia, the 
complexity of need and the complexity of clients transitioning from 
Children’s Services. 

 Independent Living Fund (ILF) - £2.534m (one-off), support 
pending receipt of any further information on whether the 
Government will continue to provide funding in 2021-22 to support 
clients previously supported through the ILF. 

 Assistive Technology - £1.500m (one-off), to pump prime the 
development of a county wide Assistive Technology service.  This 
funding has been returned to the Risk Management budget. 

 

Other significant additional items of funding that the portfolio is expected to 
receive or has received since the budget was set are: 

 Social Care Contingency - £1.000m, from the Social Care Contingency 
provided in the 2021-22 budget, to support the increase in the cost of 
Purchased Services including transition cases and independent sector 
care fees.

Page 144



Appendix 5 

 

Clean Growth and Regeneration - Portfolio Summary 

 
Deliverable Progress 

 

Progress is "good" for all of the Council Plan deliverables led by the portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 The viability assessment to progress the Chesterfield to Staveley 
Regeneration Route, which will create new homes and jobs for the 
area, is progressing with the outline business case being submitted in 
Quarter 4 2022. 

 Substantial progress has been made with developing the Council’s 
approach to good growth, to maximise low carbon economic 
opportunities, against all prioritise and actions. 

 Implementation and progress of the Covid-19 Economic Recovery 
Strategy Action Plan, including the Business Start-up programme and 
Green Entrepreneurs scheme, is progressing well. 

 Implementation and progress of the Covid-19 Employment and Skills 
Recovery Action Plan, including the expansion of the career’s hub and 
implementation of a youth hub, continues to progress well.  

 Continued progress working with Derbyshire businesses to support the 
creation of apprenticeship opportunities in key economic sectors and 
connecting people to local job opportunities is progressing. 

Page 145



Appendix 5 

 

 Continued progress is being made to attract more businesses to 
relocate to Derbyshire or expand through delivery of the “Invest in 
Derbyshire” plan. 

 

There is a forecast underspend of £0.192m on 
the portfolio after the allocation of £0.024m of 
funding from DLUHC Covid-19 emergency 
grants and compensation for lost income under 
the sales, fees and charges scheme. 

There were no significant variances within this 
portfolio. 

 
 
 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 of £0.330m is now reflected in the 
Infrastructure and Environment portfolio. 
 
Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 Regeneration Kick-Start - £2.000m (one-off), preliminary design 
and feasibility to allow external grant funding to be sought for 
capital projects that can bring forward good growth for Derbyshire: 
providing housing, jobs and skills. 

 HS2 - £0.250m (one-off), to support the Council’s project delivery 
team and relevant specialist support to increase its activity during 
the parliamentary bill process, which will establish how the line will 

Forecast Outturn against 
Target Budget 

 

Page 146



Appendix 5 

 

be built, the designs of key elements of infrastructure as well as 
other measures which HS2 will need to include in the final project. 

 Employment and Skills £0.070m - Employment and Skills have 
been highlighted as a critical part of the Covid-19 recovery for 
Derbyshire. Additional funding is required to deliver on these 
priorities.  

Page 147



Appendix 6 

 

Corporate Services and Budget - Portfolio Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 
 

 

Key Measures Against Target 

 

Progress is "good" or "strong" for the majority of the Council Plan 
deliverables led by the portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 Work is progressing with the programme to centralise the Council 
property assets with sales of £1.7 million during Quarter 3. 

 The Value for Money Board is progressing with work ongoing to 
embed additional value drivers. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 The projected achievement of budget savings of £13.280m at 
Quarter 3 is still well below the target of £26.059m.  

 The latest data on sickness absence show an increasing trend for 
both measures with average days per appointment up to 10.1 from 
9.4 at Quarter 2 and above the year end target of 9 days. A 
working group is being set up to support departments in 
addressing this trend going forwards. 

 Whilst capital receipts up to end of December are ahead of target 
some sales have been moved into 2022-23 so the year end figure 
is expected to be below target. 

Page 148



Appendix 6 

 

 

 

There is a forecast overspend of £3.637m on 
the portfolio after the allocation of £1.758m of 
funding from DLUHC Covid-19 emergency 
grants and compensation for lost income 
under the sales, fees and charges scheme.  
Before the allocation of this funding, the main 
variances are: 

Corporate Property, £4.914m overspend – 
mainly due to £2.512 m of savings targets 
which are not expected to be achieved 
this year.  It is hoped that these savings 
can be delivered in a future year through 
use of PSP Derbyshire LLP.  Industrial Development is £0.481m 
overspent as units cannot achieve 100% occupancy and some rents are 
offered at below market rates for occupying charities or rent-free periods 
in exchange for tenants undertaking essential repair and maintenance 
work.  There is a £0.305m overspend on County Buildings due to the 
running costs of buildings that are awaiting disposal or repurpose. 

Legal Services, £0.812m overspend - due to a delay in the implementation 
of the “Core/Core-Plus” offer.  Under the offer, core legal functions are 
funded corporately, with all other legal activities funded by alternative 
means.  The new operating model was implemented in October 2021.  
Work is ongoing to update forecasts for the impact of the change.  Other 
contributing factors include salary overspends relating to the Childcare 
and Environmental/Commercial teams, agency payments and one-off 
payment of allowances.  Also, initiatives to meet a savings target in 
Democratic Services have yet to be identified. 

Strategic Management, £0.385m overspend - due to an unallocated 
savings target for Channel Shift.  Savings from the programme will be 
allocated to departments as the benefits are realised from individual 
schemes. 

Finance and ICT, £0.317m underspend - due to vacancies following 
completion of phase 2 of a planned restructure of the ICT function.  A 
recruitment campaign is underway, but it is unlikely that these positions 
will be filled before the end of the financial year. 

It is proposed to contribute £0.480m from the Finance & ICT services 
budget to an earmarked reserve to support the funding gap on the data 
centre to cloud transition programme and a further £0.040m to support the 
training requirements for the ICT Schools Traded Services function.  
These amounts have already been accounted for in the Corporate 
Services and Budget portfolio’s forecast outturn position.  It is further 

Forecast Outturn against Target 
Budget 

Page 149



Appendix 6 

 

proposed that £0.050m is transferred to a reserve to support the 
modernisation of the ICT traded service function. 

 

Forecast Actual Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £2.197m, with a further £3.363m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £5.560m, 
£1.163m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £4.397m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings.  However, this shortfall is partially underpinned by an 
allocation of £0.390m of one-off funding to provide flexibility to achieve some 
of the target in 2022-23. 
 
Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 ICT Telephony - £0.433m, to implement a soft telephony solution 
with the flexibility required to meet the needs for agile and remote 
working. 

 Legal Services - £0.300m (one-off), to support with sustained 
increase in demand for all services, especially for childcare legal 
advice and representation. 

 Budget Support - £0.390m (one-off) provided to the 
Commissioning, Communities and Policy (now Corporate Services 
and Transformation) department to provide flexibility to plan to 
achieve the 2021-22 savings target in later years. 

 ICT Strategy - £0.200m, to enhance the ICT Service offering to 
embed remote working to support an agile and flexible workforce. 

 Digitisation of Employment Records - £0.100m (one-off), to save 
employment records in a digital format. This will reduce off-site 
storage costs and reduce the ongoing cost of maintaining and 
accessing records. 

Page 150



Appendix 6 

 

 ICT Customer Service Platform - £0.075m, investment in a new 
customer service system to support the ICT Service Desk and 
self-service offering. 

Page 151



Appendix 7 

 

Children’s Services and Safequarding and Education - Portfolios 
Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 
 

 
 
 
 

Key Measures Against Target 
 

 

 

Progress is "good" or "strong" for the majority of the Council Plan deliverables 
led by the portfolios. 

Key areas of success are: 

 Consistent, high quality early help and safeguarding services for 
children and families - we continue to see positive impact from the 
changes we have implemented across early help and safeguarding 
services with improving practice consistency and solid performance 
across a range of performance measures. Our strengthened case audit 
processes, Reflective Case Reviews, are demonstrating greater 
consistency in practice and improvements in delivery of services in 
children's social care. 

 Implement recommendations from our children's services evaluation to 
reduce demand, improve outcomes for children, young people and 
families and reduce expenditure – good progress is being made by all 
six of the workstreams of our Achieving Great Futures (AGF) 
programme. Trials within the 'Design Phase' are delivering positive 
impact with some now being implemented wider across Children's 
Services. 

Page 152



Appendix 7 

 

 Our innovative 'Pause Derbyshire' programme, aimed at supporting the 
needs of women who have had multiple children removed with the aim 
of preventing this cycle recurring - is delivering clear, measurable 
impact. 100% of the women who remained part of the first community 
have not had a further pregnancy 18 months after starting the 
programme. Recruitment has started for the second community. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 The number of approved fostering households – remains below target 
this quarter. Whilst there are a number of fostering assessments in 
progress, this is not keeping pace with the number of foster families 
leaving the service for a variety of reasons including retirement and the 
impact of the pandemic on family life. Phase 1 of the Fostering Service 
Modernisation Programme is in progress and involves targeted 
intervention through the Achieving Great Futures Sufficiency 
Workstream to improve recruitment and retention, as well as the 
utilisation of foster placements. Whilst trials are proving positive, this is 
unlikely to deliver the increase in foster carer numbers in time to reach 
the end of March 2022 target. 

Key areas to note are: 

 Percentage of pupils attending good or better schools - any opportunity 
to improve performance is dependent on Ofsted's programme of school 
inspections. School inspections were suspended at the end of March 
2020 due to Covid-19. Whilst graded school inspections resumed from 
4 May 2021, the number of inspections completed since suspension 
remains small limiting any significant improvement on the overall 
inspection figures. Since the re-starting of routine inspection activity, it is 
more challenging to predict when a school may be inspected but we 
anticipate that inspection activity will be more prevalent in 2022-23 than 
in 2021-22. 

 

 
The portfolios have a forecast overspend of 
£2.796m after the allocation of  
£5.226m of funding from DLUHC Covid-19 
emergency grants and compensation for lost 
income under the sales, fees and charges 
scheme. 

The forecast outturn position includes 
£1.112m of Dedicated Schools Grant income, 
as a contribution to the cost of supporting 
Early Help services and children with 
additional needs.  Income from this source is 

Forecast Outturn against Target 
Budget 

Page 153



Appendix 7 

 

not guaranteed to continue at the same level in future years. 
 

Before the allocation of the Covid-19 grant funding detailed above, the main 
variances are: 

Placements for Children in Care (or unable to remain at home), £6.302m 
overspend – there are currently more placements required than can be 
funded from the allocated budget.  The needs of individual children and 
the availability of placements has also meant that there are an increased 
number of children placed in both more expensive fostering arrangements 
and more expensive residential provision.  In their 2020 Childrens Social 
Care Forecast Assessment Programme, Grant Thornton predicted that the 
rising cost and demand pressures of placements would continue over 
2021-22 and 2022-23.  Like many other councils across England, there 
has been a higher rate of increase in placements following Covid-19 
lockdown periods; it is estimated that an additional £3.3m of costs are 
related to the pandemic. 

Home to School Transport, £2.463m overspend – an increase in the 
number of journeys and the average cost per journey being provided, 
mostly in respect of children with special educational needs (SEN).  
Additional specialised vehicles are required to transport individual children 
and economic factors are affecting contractors. 

Unallocated Budget, £1.729m underspend – amounts which have not yet 
been allocated to services.  These comprise in-year grant funding, of 
which the largest unallocated item is £1.112m from the Dedicated Schools 
Grant.  The continuation of these funding streams beyond 31 March 2022 
have not been confirmed. 

Grant Income, £1.556m underspend – additional income from Public 
Health. 

Children’s Safeguarding Services, £1.555m overspend – demand 
pressures from greater numbers of children in care and children in need; 
including children in care support expenditure, support for families in need 
to avoid care admissions and legal services costs.  Also, the increased 
cost of employing agency social workers to ensure caseload levels remain 
appropriate and the market supplement for front line social workers.   

Education Support Services, £1.473m overspend – the ability of the Sport 
and Outdoor Education service (SORE) to undertake commercial income 
generation activities has been severely limited by the Covid-19 pandemic.  
Income losses from April to June 2021 have been included in a claim for 
funding under the Sales, Fees and Charges compensation scheme. 

Management, ICT, Business services and other support services, 
£1.374m underspend – temporary vacancies within Business Services. 

Page 154



Appendix 7 

 

Support for Children with Disabilities, £1.030m overspend – the need to 
provide high cost packages to support children with complex needs to 
remain with their families or maintain their current placement. 

Early Help & Preventative Services, £0.299m underspend – vacancies in 
the Early Help team due to recruitment difficulties. 

Pensions Payable to Former Teachers and Other Staff, £0.158m 
overspend – enhanced pension obligations payable to staff who left under 
efficiency programmes during the early 1990s.  Whilst the number of 
pensions being paid reduces each year, this is outweighed by the annual 
increase to those pensions still in payment. 

 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £0.085m, with a further £1.965m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £2.050m, 
£1.372m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £0.678m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings. 
Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 Placement Demand Pressures - £5.400m, to support the increase 
in the demand for placements and the increasing complexity of 
children and young peoples’ needs.  This is consistent with 
increases in demand experienced nationally. 

 Social Worker Recruitment - £1.300m, as part of a four-year 
recruitment plan, agreed in 2018-19, to increase the number of 

Page 155



Appendix 7 

 

social workers to ensure caseloads are at a healthy working level 
consistent with an individual worker’s experience. 

 Children in Care Legal Proceedings - £0.950m (one-off), reflecting 
the greater number of court proceedings and the increased use of 
external legal firms to present cases. 

 Home to School Transport (Mainstream) - £0.680m, to cover the 
increased costs in the sector of fuel, salaries and compliance 
requirements. 

 Home to School Transport (SEN) - £0.620m, to support the 
increased cost of transporting children and young people to 
school, pupil resource units or alternative provision when they 
have been excluded from mainstream schools.  The additional 
cost of service provision is driven by greater numbers of children 
and young people with special educational needs an increased 
cost of journeys. 

 Care Leavers - £0.510m (one-off), to meet the cost of additional 
statutory duties towards care leavers. 

 Sports and Outdoor Education (SORE) - £0.362m (one-off), to 
support the service during 2021-22 pending a review of the needs 
of the service moving forwards. 

 Programme Teams - £0.333m (one-off), to continue dedicated 
project resource to effect change and deliver one-off initiatives 
within Children’s Services. 

 Process Improvement - £0.193m (one-off), to fund a dedicated 
team to review and improve processes within Children’s Services. 

 Participation - £0.177m (one-off), to develop a strategic network to 
replace Derbyshire Youth Council, to increase participation in 
development of SEND services by children and families in 
Derbyshire, to increase the participation of care-leavers and to 
maintain current levels of participation from other children and 
young people. This allocation covers work proposed for 2021-22 
and 2022-23. 

 

Other significant additional items of funding that the portfolio is expected to 
receive or has received since the budget was set are: 

 Social Care Contingency - £9.000m to support the increase in the 
demand for placements from the Social Care Contingency 
provided in the 2021-22 budget 

 Achieving Great Futures - £5.685m (one-off) from the general 
reserve, to fund the Children's Services transformation programme 
that will run over the 2021-22 and 2022-23 financial years. 

 Public Health funding - £1.500m (one-off) contribution to 
Children’s Centres and Early Help services. 

Page 156



Appendix 8 

 

Health and Communities - Portfolio Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 
 

 

Key Measures Against Target 
 

 

 

 

Progress is "good" or "strong" for the majority of the Council Plan 
deliverables led by the portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 Performance of Live Life Better Derbyshire services which support 
people to stop smoking and lose weight continue to be strong, 
building on previously strong performance in Quarter 2. 

 Performance related to developing an integrated approach to 
mental health services for adults continue to be good. Additional 
wellbeing advice regarding mental health and neurodiversity was 
put online. This is especially important throughout the autumn/ 
winter period to ensure communities and individuals remain 
resilient. 

 To support Active Derbyshire activity the 10 year physical activity 
plan, called Making Our Move has launched. 

 Public Health is continuing to play an active role leading the Covid-
19 response at the end of Quarter 3 had increased support due to 
the emerging Omicron variant and requirement to deliver the 
booster vaccine. 

 The Winter Pressures Single Point of Contact launched in Quarter 
3 to provide a single point of access for health and social care 

Page 157



Appendix 8 

 

professionals to receive referrals for housing support. To date the 
single point of contact has received more referrals than last year. 

 The pandemic has slowed down progress in identifying and taking 
forward work in new Thriving Community areas, however the 
establishment of the Thriving Communities Board has ensured that 
progress and activity are being driven forward. 

 The Domestic Abuse Support in Accommodation Strategy was 
published on 5 January 2022. 

Key areas to note are: 

 The impact of the Omicron variant was emerging at the end of 
Quarter 3 and the full impact of this on health protection functions 
and other services will be managed throughout Quarter 4 and that 
may have an impact on performance reporting. 

 The Derbyshire Discretionary Fund has supported Derbyshire 
residents with 5,608 awards in Quarter 3 totalling around 
£600,000. There were 5,047 awards of Emergency Cash 
Payments; 225 awards of Exceptional Pressure Grants; and 336 
awards of Covid-19 Support Payments. 

 Work on developing a county wide approach to social mobility has 
been delayed; however work is taking place to provide capacity to 
move this forward. 

 

There is a forecast underspend of £1.716m on 
the portfolio after the allocation of £0.095m of 
funding from DLUHC Covid-19 emergency 
grants and compensation for lost income under 
the sales, fees and charges scheme.  Before 
the allocation of this funding, the main variances 
are: 

Prevention, £0.653m underspend – 
additional contribution from the Public 
Health Grant and one-off Government 
funding, both towards Covid-19 mitigation 
responsibilities. 

Coroners, £0.350m underspend – the basis 
of apportionment of Coroners’ costs between the Council and Derby City 
Council has been renegotiated, which is expected to result in additional 
contributions from Derby City to the Council. 

Registrars, £0.308m underspend – a temporary increase in registration 
income following the easing of Covid-19 restrictions from events such as 
weddings which had been postponed. 

Forecast Actual Outturn 
against Target Budget 

 

Page 158



Appendix 8 

 

Trading Standards, £0.134m underspend – due to vacancy control.  This 
will assist in managing a planned restructure of the function. 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £0.271m.  An over-achievement of 
budget savings of £0.016m has been brought forward, resulting in total 
reductions to be achieved of £0.255m at the start of the financial year.  Of this 
target, £0.213m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £0.042m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings. 
 
No additional funding has been provided to this portfolio in the 2021-22 budget 
for growth items.

Page 159



Appendix 9 

 

Highways Assets and Transport - Portfolio Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 
 
 

Key Measures Against Target 
 
 

 

Progress is "good" for the majority of the Council Plan deliverables led by the 
portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 Progress is good on the £40m Local Transport Programme, to provide 
well maintained roads and highways and address road safety 
concerns, with £30.5 million spend up to the end of Quarter 3. 

 The Woodville-Swadlincote Regeneration Route is open, the 
Ashbourne Airfield Link Road will be completed in Quarter 4 and Hollis 
Lane Link Road Phase 1 in Chesterfield to improve road access is on 
track 

 The viability assessment to progress the Chesterfield to Staveley 
Regeneration Route is now complete with the outline business case 
now being developed. 

 The flood team continues to deal with significant numbers of planning 
consultations and flooding enquiries to reduce the level of flood risk to 
the residents and businesses of Derbyshire through our planning role, 
the delivery of flood mitigation schemes and working with communities 
to develop flood resilience measures. 

Page 160



Appendix 9 

 

 Good progress on developing and delivery of a strategic approach to 
sustainable travel and transport across the county, including the 
promotion of cycling and walking is being made. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 The levels of customer satisfaction in the Council’s Highway Service 
within the National Highways and Transportation Survey has reduced, 
with a national trend of satisfaction levels being down compared to last 
year.  

 

 

The portfolio has a forecast overspend of 
£3.435m after the allocation of £0.843m of 
funding from DLUHC Covid-19 emergency grants 
and compensation for lost income under the 
sales, fees and charges scheme.  Before the 
allocation of this funding, the main variances are: 

 
Unallocated Budget Savings, £1.842m 
overspend – savings targets not yet allocated 
to specific services. 

Winter Maintenance, £1.327m overspend – 
the Council has to build up a large stockpile 
of grit salt to comply with Department for 
Transport recommendations, based on an average year, prior to the onset 
of winter.  The vehicles associated with gritting are a high fixed cost 
overhead, irrespective of the severity of the conditions.  The Winter 
Service budget of £2.173m does not provide for more than a mild winter, 
so the Council is reliant on using contingency reserves for additional costs 
incurred as a result of a moderate or severe winter. 

Highways Maintenance, £0.725m overspend – increased reactive 
maintenance and pothole repair required as a result of the winter weather. 

Public and Community Transport, £0.393m underspend – reduction in 
demand for concessionary fares in respect of Gold Card holders. 

Road Safety, £0.320m overspend – implementation of a savings initiative, 
based on additional income being generated, has been delayed as 
legislation has yet to be enacted. 

Highway Management and Land Reclamation, £0.310m overspend – 
under-recovery of salaries recharged to capital schemes. 

Forecast Outturn against 
Target Budget 

 

Page 161



Appendix 9 

 

Council Fleet Services, £0.284m underspend – higher than budgeted 
income from vehicle maintenance. 

Management Team, £0.283 overspend – consultant fees for Capital 
programme manager and recruitment costs. 

Resources and Improvement, £0.175m overspend – staff savings targets 
allocated but not yet achieved. 

  

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £1.239m, with a further £1.842m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £3.081m, 
£0.175m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £2.906m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings. 
 

Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 

 Winter Maintenance - £0.700m, to realign the winter maintenance 
budget so it more accurately reflects winter maintenance 
expenditure required in a mild winter.

Page 162



Appendix 10 

 

Infrastructure and Environment - Portfolio Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 

 

 

Progress is "good" for 2 out of the 5 Council Plan deliverables led by the 
portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 The viability assessment to progress the Chesterfield to Staveley 
Regeneration Route, which will create new homes and jobs for the 
area, is progressing with the outline business case being submitted in 
Quarter 4 2022. 

 The Natural Capital Strategy to identify areas where the natural 
environment can be further enhanced to support healthy thriving 
communities, a vibrant economy and a healthy environment is 
progressing further. The strategy will be completed be the end of 
August 2022. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 Following the delay of the Integrated Rail Plan, 9 months later than 
anticipated, a response to the plan with regional partners is expected 
to be produced in May 2022. 

 The gigabit top up voucher scheme is now complete but is awaiting the 
final delivery reports from Openreach to close down the scheme. 

Page 163



Appendix 10 

 

 The funding application to secure funding to implement Wi-Fi 
infrastructure in town centres was not successful.  An alternative 
project is being developed as part of the wider Vision Derbyshire 
Phase 2 proposal. 

 

 

The portfolio has a forecast underspend of £0.572m after the allocation of  
£2.523m of funding from DLUHC Covid-19 
emergency grants and compensation for lost 
income under the sales, fees and charges 
scheme.  Before the allocation of the Covid-19 
grant funding detailed above, the main 
variances are: 

Unallocated Budget Savings, £1.842m 
overspend – savings targets not yet 
allocated to specific services. 

Waste Management, £0.253m overspend 
– an increase in household residual waste 
tonnages due to more people working 
from home as part of the Covid-19 
response. 

 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £0.774m, with a further £2.472m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £3.246m, 
£0.544m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £2.702m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings. 

Forecast Outturn against Target 
Budget 

 

Page 164



Appendix 10 

 

 

Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 

 Elvaston Castle Masterplan - £0.550m (one-off), the Masterplan, a 
programme of capital investment and income generation at 
Elvaston Castle, was approved by Cabinet on 20 December 2018.  
Preliminary studies, assessments and design work are required 
prior to capital investment. 

 Budget Support - £0.230m (one-off), provided to the Place 
department to provide flexibility to plan to achieve the 2021-22 
savings target in later years.  This is supporting the phasing of 
savings planned to be delivered by the Countryside Service. 

Page 165



Appendix 11 

 

Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change - Portfolio 
Summary 
 

Deliverable Progress 
 

 

Key Measures Against Target 
 

 

 

 

Progress is "good" or "strong" for the majority of the Council Plan 
deliverables led by the portfolio. 

Key areas of success are: 

 As part of Phase one of the Channel Shift programme 140 services 
have been made available online, double the target of 70. 

 Work on Vision Derbyshire has progressed well with the new Joint 
Committee due to be initiated in January. 

 The Modern Ways of Working programme progressed with the 
clearing of offices in County Hall ready for a phased return when 
Government guidance allows. 

Key areas for consideration are: 

 The medium and long term organisational recovery plan has been 
delayed by Covid-19 with work now rescheduled for completion in 
Quarter 4. 

Page 166



Appendix 11 

 

 Whilst progress has been made on individual work streams Phase 
2 of the Enterprising Council had been rescheduled for completion 
in Quarter 4. 

 

The portfolio has a forecast underspend of 
£0.247m after the allocation of £0.079m of 
funding from DLUHC Covid-19 emergency grants 
and compensation for lost income under the 
sales, fees and charges scheme.  Before the 
allocation of this funding, the main variances are: 

Libraries, £0.555m overspend – achievement 
of savings is delayed as the Covid-19 
pandemic meant proposals to transfer the 
Library Service to community management 
and to transfer the Arts Development service 
to an alternative provider had to be 
suspended.  The transfer to community managed libraries, proposed in 
the Library Strategy, has now been relaunched.  Proposals for an 
alternative way to deliver the Arts Service are expected in early 2022-23. 

Policy, £0.499m underspend – vacant posts only expected to be filled in 
the second half of the year and unallocated budget growth provided to 
support the development of a more equitable distribution of Voluntary and 
Community Sector (VCS) Infrastructure funding across the county. 

Call Derbyshire, £0.190m underspend – mainly due to staff turnover. 

Communications, £0.141m underspend – due to vacancy control.  This 
will assist in managing a planned restructure of the function. 

Head of Organisation Development & Policy, £0.123m overspend – 
following restructure of the Human Resources service, underspends are 
no longer available to fund this post. 

 

Forecast Outturn against 
Target Budget

 

Page 167



Appendix 11 

 

Forecast Under (-)/Over Spend by Service Line 

 

 
The budget savings target for 2021-22 is £0.284m, with a further £0.595m 
target brought forward from previous years.  Of this total target of £0.879m, 
£0.234m is expected to be achieved by the end of the financial year.  
Therefore, there is currently a £0.645m forecast shortfall in achievement of 
budget savings. 
 

Additional funding has been provided in the 2021-22 budget for the main 
growth items: 

 

 Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Infrastructure - £0.199m, 
to support the development of a more equitable distribution of 
funding across the county, recognising the contribution the sector 
makes in supporting communities across Derbyshire. 

 Performance Monitoring and Reporting - £0.140m, to create a 
performance service partner role to support the ongoing 
development and implementation of the corporate performance 
framework, whilst also supporting the annual Council Plan refresh 
and service planning process.

Page 168



Appendix 12 

 

Traded Services 
 
Fully Traded 
‘Fully traded’ trading areas are separately identifiable and have a net controllable budget of £0, i.e. there is an 
expectation that on average all the controllable expenditure within this area will be funded from external income. 
 

Portfolio 
Service 

Area 
Trading Area 

Projected 
Gross 

Controllable 
Expenditure* 

Projected 
Gross 

Controllable 
Income 

Forecast 
Contribution/ 
Deficit(-) to 

General 
Overheads 

Performance 

Is Contribution/ 
Deficit transferred 

to Earmarked 
Reserves? 

£m £m £m 

CSB 
Finance & 
ICT 

IT Support 
Services 

1.015 1.156 0.141   No 

CSB HR 
Schools Advisory 
Service 

0.566 0.846 0.280   No 

CSB HR Work Experience 0.120 0.080 -0.040 
 

No 

CSB 
Corporate 
Property  

Direct Service 
Organisation 
Operations 
(Turnover at 
period 6) 

12.096 11.846 -0.250 
 

Yes 

CSSGE 
School 
Catering 

School Catering + 
FSM checking 

22.502 22.679 0.177   No 

P
age 169



Appendix 12 

 

CSSGE SORE Swimming 0.782 0.856 0.074   No 

      

 

   

      37.081 37.463 0.382     

  
 
*This is the expenditure remaining after any costs have been recharged to other service areas internal to the Council. 
 
 
Partially Traded 
‘Partially traded’ trading areas do not have a net controllable budget of £0, but they do receive income from external 
entities which contributes to funding some of the discretionary services they provide. 
 

Portfolio Service Area Trading Area 

Budgeted 
Income Target 

Projected Actual 
Income 

Forecast 
Excess/ 

Shortfall(-) 
compared to 

Target 

Performance 

£m £m £m 

CSB 
Legal and 
Democratic 

Legal Services 0.556 0.528 -0.028 
 

CSB 
Legal and 
Democratic 

Registrars 1.394 1.909 0.515   

CSB Corporate Property 
Disability Design Team 
(DFG agency fees) 

0.080 0.090 0.010   

P
age 170



Appendix 12 

 

Portfolio Service Area Trading Area 

Budgeted 
Income Target 

Projected Actual 
Income 

Forecast 
Excess/ 

Shortfall(-) 
compared to 

Target 

Performance 

£m £m £m 

CSB Corporate Property Estates 0.026 0.049 0.023   

CSB Corporate Property 
Energy Management: 
Commissioning Fees 

0.065 0.076 0.011   

CSB Corporate Property 
Energy Management: 
Display Energy Certificates 

0.000 0.009 0.009   

CSB Corporate Property Asbestos Surveys 0.053 0.050 -0.003 
 

CSB Corporate Property 
SMHP Repairs & 
Maintenance Contract Mgt 
Fee 

0.045 0.062 0.017   

CSB Corporate Property 
County Buildings incl. 
Members Bar 

0.584 0.438 -0.146 
 

CSB Corporate Property Industrial Development 2.018 1.707 -0.311 
 

CSB HR 
Occupational Health 
Services 

0.080 0.083 0.003   

P
age 171



Appendix 12 

 

Portfolio Service Area Trading Area 

Budgeted 
Income Target 

Projected Actual 
Income 

Forecast 
Excess/ 

Shortfall(-) 
compared to 

Target 

Performance 

£m £m £m 

CSB HR Learning & Development 0.379 0.509 0.130   

CSB HR H&S 0.295 0.254 -0.041 
 

CSB HR Payroll Services 1.510 1.626 0.116   

CSB Finance & ICT Exchequer 0.328 0.232 -0.096 
 

CSSGE 
Education 
Improvement 

Various 0.816 0.432 -0.384 
 

CSSGE 
Education 
Psychology 

Education Psychology 0.528 0.677 0.149   

CSSGE SORE Outdoor Education & Sport 2.139 0.872 -1.267 
 

CSSGE SEMH Services Behaviour support 0.252 0.262 0.010   

CSSGE Adult Education Adult Education 0.579 0.240 -0.339 
 

CSSGE Education Welfare Education Welfare 0.009 0.010 0.001   

CSSGE Music Music  0.135 0.144 0.009   

CSSGE 
Children Missing 
Education  

Out of School Tuition 0.114 0.114 0.000   

P
age 172



Appendix 12 

 

Portfolio Service Area Trading Area 

Budgeted 
Income Target 

Projected Actual 
Income 

Forecast 
Excess/ 

Shortfall(-) 
compared to 

Target 

Performance 

£m £m £m 

CSSGE SEMH Services Positive play 0.037 0.034 -0.003 
 

CSSGE Early Years Early Years  0.049 0.005 -0.044 
 

CSSGE Early Years Early Years SEN 0.010 0.009 -0.001 
 

CSSGE Information & ICT Various 0.022 0.976 0.954   

HC Public Health 
Mental Health course 
delivery 

0.003 0.003 0.000   

HC Public Health 
School Crossing Patrol 
SLA sites 

0.012 0.012 0.000   

HC 
Central Services to 
the Public 

Registrars 1.248 1.625 0.377   

HAT Highways Highways Laboratory 0.100 0.035 -0.065 
 

HAT Fleet Services Vehicle Maintenance 1.300 1.500 0.200   

IE Countryside Shops 0.219 0.278 0.059   

IE Countryside Cycle Hire 0.019 0.030 0.011   

SLCTCC 
Organisational 
Development & 
Policy 

Crisis Communications 0.043 0.049 0.006   

P
age 173



Appendix 12 

 

Portfolio Service Area Trading Area 

Budgeted 
Income Target 

Projected Actual 
Income 

Forecast 
Excess/ 

Shortfall(-) 
compared to 

Target 

Performance 

£m £m £m 

SLCTCC Heritage 
Derbyshire Environmental 
Studies Service 

0.113 0.018 -0.095 
 

      
 

      15.160 14.947 -0.213   

 P
age 174



Appendix 13 

 

Earmarked Reserves 
 

Earmarked Reserves as at 31 December 2021  

  

Adult Care £m 

Older People's Housing Strategy 16.103 

Telecare 1.500 

Other reserves 0.039 

Total Adult Care 17.642 

  

Clean Growth and Regeneration  
Regeneration Kick-Start Feasibility Fund 2.000 

Vision Derbyshire Economic Development Pilot 1.000 

Markham Environment Centre 0.114 

D2 Growth Fund 0.100 

Other reserves 0.300 

Total Clean Growth and Regeneration 3.514 

  

Corporate Services and Budget  
Revenue Contributions to Capital 30.357 

Covid Emergency and SFC Losses Grants 26.585 

Loan Modification Gains 25.254 

Insurance and Risk Management 17.105 

Post-Covid Funding Risks 14.000 

Budget Management 11.845 

Covid-19 Recovery Fund 11.639 

Planned Building Maintenance 6.553 

Business Rates Pool 6.301 

Prior Year Underspends 3.304 

Computer Purchasing 2.850 

Property Insurance Maintenance Pool 2.603 

Investment Losses Contingency 2.500 

PFI Reserves 1.980 

Property DLO 1.481 

Change Management 1.163 

Other reserves 5.865 

Total Corporate Services and Budget 171.385 

  

Childrens Services and Safeguarding and Education  
Tackling Troubled Families 3.516 

Page 175



Appendix 13 

 

Childrens Services IT Systems 0.444 

Home to School Transport Covid Grant 0.230 

Other reserves 0.427 

Total Childrens Services and Safeguarding and 
Education 4.617 

  

Health and Communities  
Covid Test and Trace Grant 3.385 

Domestic Abuse 1.104 

Prior Year Underspends 0.807 

Mass Community Testing Grant 0.771 

CEV Individuals Support Grant 0.698 

Public Health S256/External Funds 0.240 

Other reserves 0.528 

Total Health and Communities 7.533 

  

Highways and Transport  
Prior Year Underspends 11.933 

Winter Maintenance 2.000 

Commuted Highways Maintenance 1.710 

Road Safety Public Service Agreement (PSA) 0.627 

Derby and Derbyshire Road Safety Partnership Reserve 0.617 

Other reserves 1.227 

Total Highways and Transport 18.114 

  

Infrastructure and Environment  
Waste Recycling Initiatives 0.598 

Elvaston Maintenance 0.198 

Other reserves 0.298 

Total Infrastructure and Environment 1.094 

  

Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate 
Change  
Green Entrepreneurs 2.000 

Community Managed Libraries 0.742 

Policy and Research 0.660 

Channel Shift 0.446 

Library Restructure 0.429 

Derwent Valley Mills World Heritage Site 0.189 

Other reserves 0.405 

Page 176



Appendix 13 

 

Total Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate 
Change 4.871 

  

Total Portfolio Earmarked Reserves 228.770 

  

Schools  
Schools Balances 34.925 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) (0.306) 

  

Total balances held for and on behalf of schools 34.619 

  

Public Health Grant 8.382 

 

Page 177



Appendix 14 

 

Budget Savings Monitoring 2021-22 
 

 
 
*The Adult Care portfolio is being supported with £4.257m of one-off funding. This reduces the total target for this portfolio from £9.335m down to 
£5.078m. The savings supported by this funding in 2021-22 are required to be achieved in 2022-23. 

  

P
age 178



Appendix 14 

 

**The Corporate Services and Budget portfolio is being supported with £0.390m of one-off funding. This reduces the total target for this portfolio 
from £5.560m down to £5.170m. The savings supported by this funding in 2021-22 are required to be achieved in 2022-23. 

  
***The Infrastructure and Environment portfolio is being supported with £0.230m of one-off funding. This reduces the total target for this portfolio 
from £2.916m down to £2.686m. The savings supported by this funding in 2021-22 are required to be achieved in 2022-23. 

 

P
age 179



Appendix 15 

 

 
Aged Debt 
 

Age profile of debt, relating to income receivable, at 31 December 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
Aged Debt over Time 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The value of debt written off in the 12 months up to 31 December 2021 
 

 
 

Page 180



Appendix 15 

 

 

Page 181



Appendix 16 

 

Covid-19 Financial Impacts and Funding 
 
Covid-19 Forecast Gross Costs and Additional Income by Portfolio 
 

 Covid-19 related 
Costs 

LESS: Specific 
funding for 

Portfolio Covid-
19 Costs 

Use of DLUHC 
Covid-19 and 

SFC Grant 
Funding 

 £m £m £m 

Adult Care 27.192 (22.476) 4.716 

Clean Growth and Regeneration 0.024 0.000 0.024 

Corporate Services and Budget 1.758 0.000 1.758 

Childrens Services and Safeguarding and Education 8.375 (3.149) 5.226 

Health and Communities 10.318 (10.223) 0.095 

Highways and Transport 0.843 0.000 0.843 

Infrastructure and Environment 2.523 0.000 2.523 

Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change 0.079 0.000 0.079 

Total Portfolio Outturn 51.112 (35.848) 15.264 

 

P
age 182



Appendix 16 

 

Forecast use of Specific funding for Portfolio Covid-19 Costs 
 

Adult Care  £m 

Hospital Discharge Recharge  4.802 

Infection Control Fund  15.218 
Workforce Recruitment and Retention 
Fund  2.456 

Total Adult Care   22.476 

   

Childrens Services and Safeguarding and 
Education  
Home to School Transport  0.385 

Wellbeing for Education return  0.043 

Winter Grant Scheme  0.155 

Covid Local Grant Scheme  2.566 

Total Childrens Services and Safeguarding and 
Education 3.149 

   

Health and Communities   

Test and Trace  0.081 

Contain Outbreak Management  6.261 

Mass Community Testing  1.989 

Support CEV Individuals  1.872 

Practical Self-Isolation Support  0.020 

Total Health and Communities   10.223 

   

TOTAL   35.848 

 

Page 183



Appendix 16 

 

Register of Covid-19 Funding Receivable (updated January 2022) 
 
 

Portfolio Description Type 
Awarding 

Body 

Residual 
Funding 
Brought 
Forward 

from 
2021-22 

Additional 
Funding 

Expected 
by 31 

March 2022 

Expenditure 
Forecast 1 
April 2021 

to 31 March 
2022 

Ring-
Fenced 

Purpose 

        £m £m £m     

N/A 

Coronavirus (COVID-19): 
emergency funding for local 
government Grant DLUHC 11.248 15.337 15.090 No 

Unringfenced funding for local 
authorities to use to respond to the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

N/A 
Sales Fees and Charges Income 
Losses Compensation Scheme Grant DLUHC 0.000 1.473 1.473 No 

To compensate lost sales, fees 
and charges income, as a result of 
the Covid-19 pandemic, at a rate 
of 75p in every pound, over and 
above the first 5% of budgeted 
income for the Apr 2021 to Jun 
2022. 

AC 

Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) funding for additional 
costs associated with COVID-19 
including hospital discharge Recharge NHSE 0.000 4.802 4.802 Yes 

NHS/CCG funding to help local 
authorities with Covid-19 
associated costs including those 
relating to hospital discharge and 
follow-on care. 

AC 
Adult Social Care Infection 
Control Fund (ICF) - Round 3 Grant DHSC 0.000 5.293 5.293 Yes 

To support adult social care 
providers, to reduce the rate of 
Covid-19 transmission in and 
between care homes and 
support wider workforce 
resilience.    

P
age 184



Appendix 16 

 

Portfolio Description Type 
Awarding 

Body 

Residual 
Funding 
Brought 
Forward 

from 
2021-22 

Additional 
Funding 

Expected 
by 31 

March 2022 

Expenditure 
Forecast 1 
April 2021 

to 31 March 
2022 

Ring-
Fenced 

Purpose 

        £m £m £m     

AC 
Adult Social Care Infection 
Control Fund (ICF) - Round 4 Grant DHSC 0.000 3.935 3.935 Yes As above. 

AC 
Adult Social Care Infection 
Control Fund (ICF) - Round 5 Grant DHSC 0.000 5.990 5.990 Yes As above. 

AC 
Workforce Recruitment and 
Retention Fund Grant DHSC 0.000 2.456 2.456 Yes 

To provide funding to adult social 
care care providers to improve the 
recruitment and retention of care 
staff. 

HC 
Test and Trace Service Support 
Grant  Grant DHSC 3.385 0.000 0.081 Yes 

For local authorities in England to 
develop and action their plans to 
reduce the spread of the virus in 
their area.   

HC 
Contain Outbreak Management 
Fund (COMF)   Grant DHSC 19.058 3.958 6.261 Yes 

To support local authorities to 
deliver their non-pharmaceutical 
interventions and to support their 
Covid response. The funding is a 
non-recurring payment for the 
2020–21 financial year.  

HC 
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 
(CEV) Funding  Grant DLUHC 0.698 1.294 1.872 No 

Funding to support clinically 
extremely vulnerable (CEV). 

P
age 185



Appendix 16 

 

Portfolio Description Type 
Awarding 

Body 

Residual 
Funding 
Brought 
Forward 

from 
2021-22 

Additional 
Funding 

Expected 
by 31 

March 2022 

Expenditure 
Forecast 1 
April 2021 

to 31 March 
2022 

Ring-
Fenced 

Purpose 

        £m £m £m     

HC Mass Community Testing Grant DHSC 0.771 1.219 1.989 Yes 

To provide support to the Local 
Authority towards expenditure in 
relation to Community Testing in 
response to the Covid-19 
outbreak.  

HC 
Practical Support for those Self-
isolating Grant DHSC 0.000 1.334 0.020 Yes 

Support for those self-isolating in 
accessing food where they are 
unable to rely on family, friends or 
other support networks and to 
carry out essential tasks and social 
/ emotional support 

CSSGE 
Additional Home to School 
Transport Grant DfE 0.231 0.262 0.385 No 

To create extra capacity and allow 
more students to use alternatives 
to public transport, while social 
distancing measures remain in 
place.  

CSSGE COVID Winter Grant Scheme Grant DWP 0.253 -0.098 0.155 Yes 

Made available in early December 
2020 to support those most in 
need with the cost of food, energy 
(heating, cooking, lighting), water 
bills (including sewerage) and 
other essentials.  

P
age 186



Appendix 16 

 

Portfolio Description Type 
Awarding 

Body 

Residual 
Funding 
Brought 
Forward 

from 
2021-22 

Additional 
Funding 

Expected 
by 31 

March 2022 

Expenditure 
Forecast 1 
April 2021 

to 31 March 
2022 

Ring-
Fenced 

Purpose 

        £m £m £m     

CSSGE COVID Local Grant Scheme Grant DWP 0.000 2.566 2.566 Yes 

To support those most in need with 
the cost of food, energy (heating, 
cooking, lighting), water bills 
(including sewerage) and other 
essentials.  

CSSGE Well-Being for Education Return Grant DfE 0.032 0.121 0.043 No 

To better equip education settings 
to support pupils and students’ 
wellbeing and psychosocial 
recovery as they return to full-time 
education following the disruptions 
to schooling because of Covid. 

         

        35.676 49.942 52.411     

 
 

P
age 187



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  

   
 
 

FOR PUBLICATION 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

COUNCIL 
 

25 May 2022 
 

Report of the Director of Legal & Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

 
Decisions taken as a matter of Urgency and Key Decisions and Special 

Urgency 
 
 
 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 In accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, to report to Council 

those executive decisions taken as a matter of urgency where 28 days’ 
notice of the decision could not be given and where call-in has been 
waived.  

 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
2.1  Members of Council will be aware that on occasion there is a necessity 

for decisions to be taken urgently, most recently predominantly as a result 
of the covid-19 pandemic and the need to respond to changing 
government guidance in a timely fashion. 

 
Key decisions – Cases of special urgency  
  
2.2  Under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 

Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, before the Council 
makes a key decision certain information needs to be published 28 clear 
days in advance. This is usually known as the ‘Forward Plan’. The 
Regulations recognise that in the case of urgent decisions, this is not 
possible. As a result:  

Page 189

Agenda Item 16



 

  

a) where a key decision needs to be taken and publication of the 
information is impracticable, the decision can be made as long as five 
clear days’ notice of the decision is given to the relevant Improvement 
and Scrutiny Committee Chairman; and  
b) in cases of special urgency, a key decision can be taken with less 
than five clear days’ notice if agreement is obtained from the 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee Chairman that the making of the 
decision is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.  

  
2.3 The Regulations require a report to Council at least once a year detailing 

each key decision taken where it was agreed that the special urgency 
provisions apply. The Access to Information Procedure Rules included in 
Appendix 6 to the Constitution requires this report to be submitted on a 
quarterly basis to full Council.  

  
2.4 In accordance with the above requirement, Appendix 2 sets out the key 

decisions taken where special urgency provisions were agreed since the 
last report to Council.  

  
Waiver of Call-in provisions  

  
2.5   Members will be familiar with the Council’s Improvement and Scrutiny 

Procedure Rules included at Appendix 5 to the Constitution which sets 
out the call-in procedure. The call-in procedure does not apply where the 
executive decision being taken is urgent: that is where any delay likely to 
be caused by the call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s 
or the public interest. In such cases call-in can be waived if the Chairman 
of the appropriate Improvement and Scrutiny Committee agrees both the 
decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being 
treated as a matter of urgency.   

  
2.6  The Improvement and Scrutiny Procedure Rules require such urgency 

decisions to be reported to the next available meeting of the Council, 
together with the reasons for urgency.  

  
2.7  In accordance with the above requirements, details of urgent decisions 

where the call-in process was waived since the last report to Council and 
the reasons for urgency are set out in Appendix 3.  

 
3. Alternative Options Considered 
 
3.1 Not to consider those executive decisions taken as a matter of urgency 

where 28 days’ notice of the decision could not be given and where call-
in has been waived; however, this is not recommended as this would not 
be in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. 

Page 190



 

  

 
4. Implications 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 sets out the relevant implications considered in the 

preparation of the report. 
 
5. Consultation 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6. Background Papers 
 
6.1 None.   
 
7. Appendices 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 – Implications. 
 
7.2 Appendix 2 – Key decisions taken where special urgency provisions were 

agreed. 
 
7.3 Appendix 3 - Details of urgent decisions where call in procedure was 

waived and the reasons for urgency. 
 
8. Recommendations 
 
That Council notes:  
 
a) the key decisions taken where special urgency provisions were agreed 

as detailed in Appendix 2; and  
 
b)  the urgent decisions taken where the call-in procedure was waived 

under the Improvement and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as detailed in 
Appendix 3.   

 
9. Reasons for Recommendations 
 
9.1 In order to comply with the provisions in the Council’s Constitution and the 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 
 
 
Report Author: Roz Savage  
Contact details:   roz.savage@derbyshire.gov.uk  

Page 191



 

  

 
Appendix 1 

 
 
Implications 
 
Financial  
 
1.1 None. 
 
Legal 
 
2.1  As set out in the report.  
 
Human Resources 
 
3.1 None. 
 
Information Technology 
 
4.1 None. 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
5.1 None. 
 
Corporate objectives and priorities for change 
 
6.1 None. 
 
Other (for example, Health and Safety, Environmental Sustainability, 
Property and Asset Management, Risk Management and Safeguarding) 
 
7.1 None. 
 

Page 192



Appendix 2. Key decisions taken where special urgency provisions were agreed 
12 March 2022 to 13 May 2022 

 

Subject of 
Decision 

Decision Taken 
by 
and Date Taken 
 

Decision Taken  
 

Reason for Decision Reason for Urgency 

Household Support 
Fund Grant 

Council Leader 
11 May 2022 

To approve spending 
plans for Derbyshire 
County Council’s second 
£5.4 million allocation of 
the Household Support 
Fund grant to cover the 
period April-Sep 2022 

To provide targeted 
financial support to 
vulnerable families in 
need over the spring 
and summer period. 

To minimise the delay 
in the provision of 
financial support to 
vulnerable families. 
The draft guidance 
regarding the 
distribution of this 
fund was not released 
until 1 April 2022 and 
this created a tight 
timeframe for meeting 
the requirement to 
provide an indicative 
plan to the DWP by 
29 April 2022 and to 
distribute the funds in 
a timely fashion, to 
those in need.  
 

 

P
age 193



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 3:  

Urgency decisions taken under the Improvement and Scrutiny Procedure Rules where call-in was waived 

12 March 2022 to 13 May 2022 
 

 
Subject of 
Decision 

Decision Taken 
by and Date 
Taken 

Decision Taken  
 

Reason for Decision Reason for Urgency 

Enhanced Partnership 
for Bus Services in 
Derbyshire 

Executive Director 
of Place 
29 March 2022 

To make the Enhanced 
Partnership for Bus 
Services in Derbyshire 
and to Accept Bus 
Service Improvement 
Plan Funding 

To make the 
Countywide 
Enhanced Partnership 
and the Enhanced 
Partnership Plan and 
Scheme, agreed by 
Cabinet on 10 March 
2022, and for the 
Enhanced Partnership 
to come into effect 
from 31 March 2022 
 

To receive funding the 
Enhanced Partnership 
and Scheme must be 
in place. To delay the 
start date of the 
Enhanced Partnership 
would delay the 
receipt of funding and 
the commencement of 
work to deliver 
improved bus 
services across 
Derbyshire. 

Household Support 
Fund Grant 

Council Leader 
11 May 2022 

To approve spending 
plans for Derbyshire 
County Council’s second 
£5.4 million allocation of 
the Household Support 
Fund grant to cover the 
period April-Sep 2022 

To provide targeted 
financial support to 
vulnerable families in 
need over the spring 
and summer period. 

To minimise the delay 
in the provision of 
financial support to 
vulnerable families. 
The draft guidance 
regarding the 
distribution of this 

P
age 195



fund was not released 
until 1 April 2022 and 
this created a tight 
timeframe for meeting 
the requirement to 
provide an indicative 
plan to the DWP by 
29 April 2022 and to 
distribute the funds in 
a timely fashion, to 
those in need.  

 P
age 196



 

 

 

Motion One 
 

Title: 
 

Decarbonisation of the Domestic Sector 

Proposer of motion: 
 

Councillor Gez Kinsella 

Background/supporting information: 
 
1. The 54% increase in the price cap on energy bills from 1st April, has led to 
an estimated 6.3m households (27% of homes in England) now being in  
fuel poverty. A further increase is expected in October. 
 
2. The latest figures show an increase in fuel poverty across Derbyshire.1 
 
3. There is an urgent need to eliminate fossil fuel imports from the Russian 
Federation in solidarity with the people of Ukraine. 
 
4. There is also an urgent need to decarbonise our energy system to deliver on 
Derbyshire County Council’s net zero targets. In 2018 emissions from the 
domestic sector in Derbyshire account for 18% of all Derbyshire emissions2. 
 
5. 63% of domestic properties in Derbyshire have Energy Performance 
Certificates (A to G) of D or below. The Climate Change strategy target is for all 
domestic properties to be C or above by 20353. 
 
6. Friends of the Earth research shows energy bills of almost 8m households 
could be slashed by up to 40% if the government prioritises retrofitting the 
country’s draughty, heat-leaking homes. Approximately 60% of homes could 
see lower bills in areas where household incomes are below the national 
average. 
 
7. Trailed plans for an expansion to the Energy Company Obligation (ECO) 
scheme as part of the Government’s British Energy Security Strategy were 
abandoned.  
  
8. The Energy Strategy stated that “onshore wind is one of the cheapest forms 
of renewable power.” 83% of voters support its expansion, yet suggestions to 
ease planning restrictions to facilitate onshore wind were abandoned. 
 

                                                           
1 Derbyshire County Council Observatory 
2 Derbyshire County Council Climate Change Strategy: Achieving Net Zero 2021-25 
3 Derbyshire County Council Climate Change Strategy: Achieving Net Zero 2021-25 

Page 197

Agenda Item 17

https://www.endfuelpoverty.org.uk/major-home-insulation-programme-would-drastically-slash-bills/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/british-energy-security-strategy/british-energy-security-strategy
https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2022/04/05/rishi-sunak-turns-spending-taps-green-homes-plan-cut-energy/
https://www.telegraph.co.uk/politics/2022/04/05/rishi-sunak-turns-spending-taps-green-homes-plan-cut-energy/
https://www.renewableuk.com/news/590243/New-Government-poll-shows-record-level-of-public-concern-about-climate-change.htm


 

 

9. Nuclear energy production costs roughly twice as much as new wind and 
solar energy and, according to government research. It will also take up to 17 
years to bring on stream. 
 
10. Derbyshire’s Climate Change Strategy states that an approach to deliver 
the targets to decarbonise the domestic sector has to be in place by 2023. 

 
Council believes:  
 

1. The Energy Strategy was a huge, missed opportunity to deliver urgent 
additional investment in home energy efficiency.  

 
2. The Energy Strategy also failed to deliver affordable and timely 

renewable energy production. In doing so, it failed to: 
 

- Provide energy security  
- Protect the poorest households against impact of the energy price rises 
- Have a lasting impact in reducing carbon emissions.  

 
 
 

Motion to be proposed: 
 

That Council resolves to:  
 

1. Update the out of date Derbyshire County Council webpage  
 

2. Work with Vision Derbyshire and take a lead on developing and funding 
a Derbyshire ‘one stop shop’ that: 

 
- Provides a comprehensive and trusted single point of contact, giving 

advice on reducing household energy costs, as well as providing a sign 
posting service.  

- Provides vulnerable residents with high energy costs, advise on how to 
make affordable energy saving improvements to their homes 

- Facilitates direct referrals into a host of other organisations to provide 
expert energy advice and information on accessing grants and funding 
for insulation and heating 
 

3. Build on and go beyond the actions set out in the Climate Change 
Strategy by establishing a Vision Derbyshire Retrofit Taskforce. Working 
with the districts and other interested parties who can offer technical 
expertise to: 

 

Page 198

https://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/community/lottery-funding/energy-grants/energy-grants.aspx


 

 

- Identify the most inefficient homes. Using GIS mapping identify the worst 
cases of energy loss and determine appropriate retrofit interventions as 
has been successfully done by other councils 

- Use the county and district councils’ spending power to purchase loft 
insulation at a discount and administer a loft insultation scheme targeting 
the most inefficient homes  

- Replicates Cosy Homes Oxfordshire retrofitting advise website aimed at 
both householders (including landlords) and building professionals 

- Fund and coordinate an ‘eco homes’ events in virtual and ‘roadshow’ 
form.  

 
4. Working in partnership with other agencies, such as Nottingham Energy 

Partnership to assist householders to: 
 

o Provide independent advice on ways to reduce fuel poverty and 
improve homes energy efficiency  

o Access revenue and capital funding to make householders’ homes 
more energy efficient 

o Provide contacts of reputable and trust marked installers. 
 

5. To leverage the county council’s financial strength to provide households 
with loans for retrofitting homes throughout Derbyshire. 
 

6. Provide interest free or very low interest loans to householders for 
retrofits similar to Salix Finance who provides interest-free Government 
funding to the public sector to improve energy efficiency, reduce carbon 
emissions and lower energy bills. 
 

7. Issue bonds (also known as Community Municipal Investment) to raise 

money from Derbyshire residents and community groups to fund 

retrofitting projects. Successful examples include Conservative county 

council West Berkshire's CMI. £1 million was raised though this bond 

issue. West Berkshire used the money to finance numerous rooftop solar 

installations, as well as funding a range of other initiatives, such as active 

travel infrastructure improvements. 

 
8. In the light of these proposals refresh the Climate Change Strategy, 

setting out greater ambition, reflecting the climate emergency. 

 

Date and time received: 
(for completion by Democratic Services) 

 

11 May 8:12 am 

 

 

Page 199

https://cosyhomesoxfordshire.org/
https://nottenergy.com/
https://nottenergy.com/
https://www.salixfinance.co.uk/
https://info.westberks.gov.uk/wbcmi#:~:text=Investing%20in%20a%20greener%20future%20for%20West%20Berkshire!&text=In%20summer%202020%2C%20we%20launched,become%20carbon%20neutral%20by%202030


 

 

 

Motion Two 
 

Title: 
 

A motion that calls upon the Derbyshire and 
Derby Mineral Local Plan to include a 
presumption against conventional and 
unconventional gas and oil extraction unless a 
proposal can demonstrate it has net zero 
impact on carbon emissions, and 
that the Plan should not permit offsetting as a 
compensatory measure for extractive proposals 

Proposer of motion: 
 

Councillor Michael Yates 

Background/supporting information: 
 

The County Council has recently gone out for an informal consultation on 
the Derbyshire and Derby Minerals Draft Local Plan. 
 
For many centuries Derbyshire has contributed to the economic growth of 
this nation through the exploitation of its mineral reserves, creating jobs 
throughout the whole of the county.  The Plan, when agreed, will ensure that 
Derbyshire continues to contribute to economic growth, but at the same time 
ensure that the right checks and balances are in place to protect for the 
future our communities, our landscape and the environment against climate 
change. 
 
However, whilst the draft plan does focus on climate change and its 
consequences, it is flawed in that it fails to recognise that the world is now 
facing a “climate change emergency.”  It is regrettable that last year when 
the Labour group proposed a motion to declare such an emergency, the 
majority group removed any reference to an emergency in an amendment to 
the motion. 
 
This may go some way to explaining why the plan is not robust enough in 
dealing with fossil fuels. 
 
The Labour group has concerns about the sections on coal extraction, for 
example, “opencasting”, and hydraulic fracturing, so called “fracking” given 
that the Plan acknowledges if local authority carbon budget targets are to be 
met this “will require immediate and rapid programmes of decarbonisation 
across all sectors if they are to be met.” (Draft plan, para 5.2) 
 
Therefore, to strengthen the plan, we propose the motion below. 
 

Page 200



 

 

This motion does not divert the Mineral Planning Authority from delivering 
on its statutory responsibility, under the National Policy and Planning 
Framework, to delineate Mineral Safeguarding Areas. 
 

Motion to be proposed: 
 

That Council in its Derbyshire and Derby Minerals Local Plan  
(1) should include a presumption against conventional and 

unconventional gas and oil extraction unless a proposal can 
demonstrate it has net zero impact on carbon emissions, and 

(2) That the Plan should not permit offsetting as a compensatory 
measure for extractive proposals. 

 
 

Date and time received: 
(for completion by Democratic Services) 

 

11 May 9:38 am 

 

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To confirm, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2022
	12 Committee Memberships, Schedule of meetings and Outside Body Appointments for 2022/23
	Appendix 2- Committee Memberships
	Appendix 3 - Committee dates
	Appendix 4 - Out Bods

	13 Notification of Portfolio Holders and Membership of the Cabinet
	Appendix 2 - Cabinet Appointments

	14 Appointment of the Executive Director for Corporate Services and Transformation and Recruitment of the Director of Public Health
	15 Council Performance Monitoring and Budget Monitoring/Forecast Outturn 2021-22 as at Quarter 3 (31 December 2021)
	16 Decisions taken as a matter of Urgency and Key Decisions and Special Urgency
	Enc. 1 for Decisions taken as a matter of Urgency and Key Decisions and Special Urgency
	Enc. 2 for Decisions taken as a matter of Urgency and Key Decisions and Special Urgency

	17 Notices of Motion

